
 CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING  

REVISED AGENDA 
  

Tuesday, April 16, 2013  
5:30 P.M. 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
City Council Chambers 

 
5:30 P.M. CLOSED SESSION 
 
Public Comment on this item will be taken prior to adjourning to Closed Session 
CL1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6 to conference with labor  
 negotiators regarding labor negotiations with the Police Officers Association (POA) and 

Police Management Association (PMA).  Attendees: Alex McIntyre, City Manager, Starla 
Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City Manager, Bill McClure, City Attorney, Gina Donnelly, 
Human Resources Director, Robert Jonsen, Police Chief, Dave Bertini, Commander  

 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION  
 
ROLL CALL – Carlton, Cline, Keith, Ohtaki, Mueller  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
A1. Proclamation declaring April 19th as “Menlowe Ballet Day” (Attachment) 
 
A2. Presentation of Environmental Quality Awards 
 
A3. Presentation regarding San Francisquito Creek Community Outreach Plan Program EIR 

for projects upstream of Highway 101 and Pope/Chaucer Bridge Project by Len Materman, 
SFCJPA Executive Director 

 
A4. Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency (BAWSCA) update by Representative 

Kelly Fergusson 
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS 
 
B1. Consider applicants for appointment to fill three vacancies on the Parks and Recreation 

Commission; and one vacancy on the Transportation Commission (Staff report #13-061) 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1 (Limited to 30 minutes) 

Under “Public Comment #1”, the public may address the Council on any subject not listed 
on the agenda and items listed under the Consent Calendar.  Each speaker may address 
the Council once under Public Comment for a limit of three minutes.  Please clearly state 
your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live.  The Council cannot act 
on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Council cannot respond to non-
agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general 
information. 

Note: Only revision is to add 
PMA to Closed Session. 
 

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight



April 16, 2013 
Agenda Page 2 

  

D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
D1. Adopt a resolution accepting dedication of a public access easement and authorizing the 

City Manager to sign the certificate of acceptance for the 1035 O’Brien Drive Frontage 
Improvements Project (Staff report #13-058) 

 
D2. Adopt an amended Resolution of Intention to abandon a portion of Louise Street  
 (Staff report #13-057) 
 
D3. Approve the response to the San Mateo Grand Jury Report “Can We Talk?  Law 

Enforcement and Our Multilingual County” (Staff report #13-063) 
 
D4 Receive the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority projects update and approve 

the Project Community Outreach Plan (Staff report #13-062) 
 
D5. Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Municipal Revenue Advisors, 

Inc., to perform sales and use tax services in connection with the Development Agreement 
for the Facebook West Campus Project and approval of a resolution authorizing the 
examination of sales and use tax records by Municipal Revenue Advisors, Inc.  
(Staff report #13-064) 

 
D6. Accept minutes from the Council meetings of March 26 and April 2, 2013 (Attachment) 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
E1. Conduct a Public Hearing and consider a resolution approving a Conditional Development 

Permit amendment for the property located at 401 Pierce Road (Staff report #13-059) 
 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Consideration of a Mixed-Use Development Proposal at 500 El Camino Real, including 

options for the project review process (Staff report #13-066) 
 
F2. Adopt a resolution taking the following actions: 1. Appropriating an additional $715,000 to 

the Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project from the General Fund CIP fund 
balance; 2. Authorizing the City Manager to award a contract to the lowest responsible 
bidder for the Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project authorizing a total budget 
of $1,060,000 for construction, contingencies, material testing, and construction 
administration; and 3. Awarding contracts up to $250,000 for the purchase and installation 
of the downtown benches and solid waste and recycling bins (Staff report #13-065) 

 
F3. Consider appointing a Councilmember to serve on the Blue Ribbon Task Force as 

proposed by the City of Redwood City regarding South Bay Waste Management Authority 
(SBWMA) board governance (Staff report #13-060) 

 
F4. Consider appointment of a director to the Boards of the Bay Area Water Supply & 

Conservation Agency and the Bay Area Regional Water Supply Financing Authority 
 (Attachment) 
 
F5. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 

such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item – None  
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None  

 
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None  

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight



April 16, 2013 
Agenda Page 3 

  

I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – None  
 
J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (Limited to 30 minutes) 

Under “Public Comment #2”, the public if unable to address the Council on non-agenda 
items during Public Comment #1, may do so at this time.  Each person is limited to three 
minutes.  Please clearly state your name and address or jurisdiction in which you live. 

 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956.  Members of the public can view 
electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at http://www.menlopark.org  and can receive e-mail notification 
of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Home Delivery” service on the City’s homepage.  Agendas and staff 
reports may also be obtained by contacting the City Clerk at (650) 330-6620.  Copies of the entire packet are available at the library 
for viewing and copying.  (Posted: 04/11/2013)   
 
At every Regular Meeting of the City Council, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the right to 
address the City Council on the Consent Calendar and any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the 
public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either 
before or during the Council’s consideration of the item.   
At every Special Meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item 
listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during consideration of the item.  
 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public record 
(subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, Menlo Park 
City Hall, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.  Members of the public may send 
communications to members of the City Council via the City Council’s e-mail address at city.council@menlopark.org.  These 
communications are public records and can be viewed by any one by clicking on the following link: http://ccin.menlopark.org   
 
City Council meetings are televised live on Government Access Television Cable TV Channel 26.  Meetings are re-broadcast on 
Channel 26 on Thursdays and Saturdays at 11:00 a.m.  A DVD of each meeting is available for check out at the Menlo Park 
Library.  Live and archived video stream of Council meetings can be accessed at 
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2
 

   

Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in City Council meetings, may call the 
City Clerk’s Office at (650) 330-6620. 

http://www.menlopark.org/�
mailto:city.council@menlopark.org�
http://ccin.menlopark.org/�
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2�


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 

Menlowe Ballet Day 
April 19, 2013 

 
Whereas, Menlowe Ballet is a new Menlo Park based non-profit professional 
ballet company; and 
 
Whereas, Menlowe Ballet is a dynamic company performing imaginative and 
illuminating new works enhancing the dance canvas for Menlo Park citizens and 
the entire Bay Area community; and  
 
Whereas, Menlowe Ballet offers professional performing opportunities to elite 
students from the award winning, and nationally recognized, Menlo Park 
Academy of Dance; and 
 
Whereas, Menlowe Ballet is performing for the first time in its new home theater, 
the Menlo-Atherton Performing Arts Center; and 
 
Whereas, Menlowe Ballet is supported by the greater Menlo Park community 
through their contributions of time, talents, and resources.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park, 
does hereby proclaim April 19, 2013 as “Menlowe Ballet Day” and encourages 
all citizens to experience and enjoy the works of this Menlo Park company.  
 
 

      
Peter I. Ohtaki, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 

PAGE 5

AGENDA ITEM A-1



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 6



 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES  DEPARTMENT 
  

 
 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-061 
 

 Agenda Item #: B-1 
 
COMMISSION REPORT: Consider applicants for appointment to fill three 

vacancies on the Parks and Recreation 
Commission; and one vacancy of the 
Transportation Commission 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends appointing applicants to fill the three vacancies on the Parks and 
Recreation Commission; and one vacancy on the Transportation Commission.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Staff has been recruiting for the vacant positions by publishing press releases in the 
Daily News and posting notices on the City’s website and City bulletin board. 
 
There are three vacancies on the Parks & Recreation Commission due to the 
resignation of Nick Naclerio, the election of Council Member Carlton to the City Council 
and the expiration of Andrew Kirkpatrick’s term.  One applicant appointed will serve 
through April 30, 2014, one through April 30, 2015 and one through April 30, 2016. 
 
Applicants for the Parks & Recreation Commission vacancies: 

• Kristin Cox 
• Marianne Palefsky 
• Noria Zasslow 

 
There is one vacancy on the Transportation Commission due to the election of Vice 
Mayor Mueller to the City Council.  The applicant selected will serve the remainder of 
the unexpired term through April 30, 2014. 
 
Applicants for the Transportation Commission vacancy: 

• Adina Levin (Currently on Environmental Quality Commission) 
• Philip Mazzara 
• Michael Meyer (Currently on Bicycle Commission) 

 
 
 
 

PAGE 7



Staff Report #: 13-061  

ANALYSIS 
 
Pursuant to City Council Policy CC-01-0004 (attachment A), commission members must 
be residents of the City of Menlo Park and serve for designated terms of four years, or 
through the completion of an unexpired term. 
 
In addition, the Council’s policy states that the selection/appointment process shall be 
conducted before the public at a regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council.  
Nominations will be made and a vote will be called for each nomination.  Applicants 
receiving the highest number of affirmative votes from a majority of the Council present 
shall be appointed. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Staff support for selection of commissioners is included in the FY 2012-13 Budget. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
Council Policy CC-01-004 establishes the policies, procedures, roles and 
responsibilities for the City’s appointed commissions and committees. 
 
Currently the budget metrics set a goal of two applications for each appointment.  Staff 
has not been unable to meet this metric with the Parks and Recreation Commission 
vacancies.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed action does not require environmental review. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Excerpt from Council Policy CC-01-004, page 5 
B. Commission Applications  

 
Report prepared by: 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 
 
 
Attachment B will not be available on-line, but is available for review at City Hall in the 
City Clerk’s Office during standard City operating hours.  

PAGE 8



City of Menlo Park  City Council Policy  

Department  
 City Council  
 
Subject  
Commissions/Committees Policies and Procedures and Roles        

and Responsibilities  

Page 5 of 10 Effective Date 
3-13-01 

Approved by:  
Motion by the City Council   

on 03-13-2001;  
Amended 09-18-2001;  
Amended 04-05-2011 

Procedure # 
CC-01-0004 

 

 
Application/Selection Process  

1. The application process begins when a vacancy occurs due to term expiration, resignation, removal or death of 
a member.  

 
2. The application period will normally run for a period of four weeks from the date the vacancy occurs.  If there 

is more than one concurrent vacancy in a Commission, the application period may be extended.  Applications 
are available from the City Clerk’s office and on the City’s website.  

 
3. The City Clerk shall notify members whose terms are about to expire whether or not they would be eligible for 

reappointment.  If reappointment is sought, an updated application will be required. 
 

4. Applicants are required to complete and return the application form for each Commission/Committee they 
desire to serve on, along with any additional information they would like to transmit, by the established 
deadline. Applications sent by fax, email or submitted on-line are accepted; however, the form submitted must 
be signed.  

 
5. After the deadline of receipt of applications, the City Clerk shall schedule the matter at the next available 

regular Council meeting.  All applications received will be submitted and made a part of the Council agenda 
packet for their review and consideration.  If there are no applications received by the deadline, the City Clerk 
will extend the application period for an indefinite period of time until sufficient applications are received.  

 
6. Upon review of the applications received, the Council reserves the right to schedule or waive interviews, or to 

extend the application process in the event insufficient applications are received.  In either case, the City Clerk 
will provide notification to the applicants of the decision of the Council.  

 
7. If an interview is requested, the date and time will be designated by the City Council.  Interviews are open to 

the public.  
 
8. The selection/appointment process by the Council shall be conducted open to the public.  Nominations will be 

made and a vote will be called for each nomination.  Applicants receiving the highest number of affirmative 
votes from a majority of the Council present shall be appointed.  

 
9. Following a Council appointment, the City Clerk shall notify successful and unsuccessful applicants 

accordingly, in writing.  Appointees will receive copies of the City’s Non-Discrimination and Sexual 
Harassment policies, and disclosure statements for those members who are required to file under State law as 
designated in the City’s Conflict of Interest Code.  Copies of the notification will also be distributed to support 
staff and the Commission/Committee Chair.  

 
10. An orientation will be scheduled by support staff following an appointment (but before taking office) and a 

copy of this policy document will be provided at that time.  
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 9



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 10



 

PUBLIC WORKS  DEPARTMENT 
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-058 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-1 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Adopt a Resolution Accepting Dedication of a 

Public Access Easement and Authorize the City 
Manager to Sign the Certificate of Acceptance for 
the 1035 O’Brien Drive Frontage Improvements 
Project 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) accepting 
dedication of a Public Access Easement and authorize the City Manager to sign the 
certificate of acceptance for the 1035 O’Brien Drive frontage improvements project. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

In October 2012, the City approved construction of a new 36,000 square foot office/ 

research and development and manufacturing/warehouse building at 1035 O’Brien 
Drive.  The Conditions of Approval for the project included construction of frontage 
improvements including all new curb, gutter, driveways and sidewalk along the O’Brien 
Drive and Kelly Court frontages.  While there is adequate right-of-way on O’Brien Drive 
to accommodate the new sidewalk, the existing right-of-way on Kelly Court results in 
approximately one to two feet of sidewalk width falling within the applicant’s private 
property.   
 
ANALYSIS 
 
As a condition of the use permit, the applicant was required to provide public pedestrian 
access along the O’Brien Drive and Kelly Court frontages of their property. Since a 
portion of the new public sidewalk along Kelly Court is located within the applicant’s 
private property, a Public Access Easement is required to allow the public to use the 
sidewalk. The easement dedication is shown in Attachment B.  The sidewalk along 
O’Brien Drive is within the existing right-of-way and therefore does not require an 
easement from the property owner. 
 
Acceptance and recordation of the easement dedication is a condition of final inspection 
for the project and for occupancy of the building. 
 

 

PAGE 11



Staff Report # 13-058  

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The staff time associated with review and acceptance of the easement dedication is 
fully recoverable through fees collected from the applicant.   
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The recommendation does not represent any change to existing City policy. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
On October 29, 2012, the Planning Commission made a finding that the project is 
categorically exempt under Class 32 (Section 15301, “In-fill Development Project”) of 
the current CEQA Guidelines. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Public Access Easement  
 

Report prepared by: 
Roger K. Storz 
Senior Civil Engineer 
 
 
 

PAGE 12



ATTACHMENT A 

  

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF A PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE 
CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE FOR THE 1035 O’BRIEN DRIVE 
FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the 1035 O’Brien Drive Frontage Improvements Project consists of 
construction of new concrete curb, gutter, driveways and sidewalk along O’Brien Drive 
and Kelly Court; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project includes the construction of a new concrete sidewalk on the 
property along the Kelly Court frontage; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of the use permit to provide public pedestrian access along 
the O’Brien Drive and Kelly Court frontages; and 
 
WHEREAS, a portion of the new public sidewalk is located within the applicant’s private 
property requiring a Public Access Easement to allow the public use of the sidewalk.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby accepts the 
required Public Access Easement along the easterly edge of the property at 1035 
O’Brien Drive and is attached hereto as Exhibits A and B and incorporated herein by 
this reference; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the City Manager to sign 
the Certificate of Acceptance for said easements. 

 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on this sixteenth day of April, 2013, by the following votes: 
  
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this sixteenth day of April, 2013. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk      

PAGE 13



WEST\240467952.4 

379373-000004   

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
O’Brien Drive Portfolio 

C/O Tarlton Properties, Inc. 

1530 O’Brien Drive 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 

 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO 
 
City of Menlo Park 

701 Laurel Street 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Attn: City Clerk 

 

 

 SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE 

Documentary Transfer Tax:  $-0- No apparent value 

“No fee required” (Government Code Section 6103 & 27383) 

Recorded for the benefit of the City of Menlo Park. 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Public Access Easement Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made as of this ____ day of 

January, 2013, by and between O’Brien Drive Portfolio, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company (“Grantor”) and the City of Menlo Park, a municipal corporation in the County of San 

Mateo, State of California (“Grantee”).  Grantor is the owner of certain real property situated in 

the City of Menlo Park, County of San Mateo, California, and more commonly known as 1035 

O’Brien Drive (hereafter referred to as the “Servient Tenement”). 

Grant of Easement 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor 

hereby grants to Grantee a nonexclusive easement and right-of-way for public access purposes, 

including the right of ingress and egress, over, under and across a portion of the Servient 

Tenement being that certain real property (“Easement Property”) situated in said City of Menlo 

Park and more particularly described and shown in Exhibit A and B, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference.  The Easement Property shall not be used for any purpose 

other than for public access purposes.   

 

Term 

This easement is granted in perpetuity.  If the public street located adjacent to the Easement 

Property is vacated pursuant to the California Street and Highway Code, then the easement shall 

be deemed abandoned.   

Maintenance 

Grantor shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the Easement Property, including, 

without limitation, the sidewalk located on the Easement Property, in accordance with City of 

Menlo Park Municipal Code Title 13. 

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 14



WEST\240467952.4 

379373-000004   

Nonexclusive Easement 

The easement granted in this Agreement is nonexclusive.  Grantor retains the right to make any 

use of the Servient Tenement, including the right to grant concurrent easements in the Servient 

Tenement to third parties that does not interfere unreasonably with Grantee’s right to use the 

easement as set forth herein. 

Reserving to Grantor the continued use of the Servient Tenement that is subject to the easement 

granted herein, Grantor agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, not to erect, place or 

maintain, nor to permit the erection, placement, or maintenance of any permanent buildings, 

structures or similar improvements that would unreasonably interfere with the ability of Grantee 

to exercise the access rights granted herein.   

The easement granted herein is accepted subject to any and all matters of record and property 

conditions affecting the Easement Property.  The easement is made on an “AS IS” basis, and 

Grantee acknowledges that Grantor makes no representations or warranties regarding the 

Servient Tenement or the Easement Property, including, without limitation, the suitability of the 

Easement Property or the Servient Tenement for the purposes contemplated herein. 

Any modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be made in writing and be executed 

by all parties.   

 

PAGE 15



WEST\240467952.4 

379373-000004   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set 

forth above. 

 

Dated: ____________________   GRANTOR:  

 

       O’Brien Drive Portfolio, LLC, 

       a Delaware limited liability company 

 

 

       By:      

 

 

 

Dated: ____________________   GRANTEE:  

 

       The City of Menlo Park, 

       a municipal corporation 

 

 

       By:      

 

 

PAGE 16



WEST\240467952.4 

379373-000004  

State of California 

County of __________ 

 

On _______________ before me, _______________________, a notary public, personally 

appeared John Tarlton who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) 

whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 

he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 

signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) 

acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

Signature __________________________________ (Seal) 

PAGE 17



WEST\240467952.4 

379373-000004  

State of California 

County of __________ 

 

On _______________ before me, _______________________, a notary public, personally 

appeared John Tarlton who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) 

whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 

he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 

signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) 

acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

Signature __________________________________ (Seal) 

 

 

PAGE 18



PAGE 19



PAGE 20



PAGE 21



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 22



 

PUBLIC WORKS  DEPARTMENT 
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-057 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-2 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Adopt an Amended Resolution of Intention to 

Abandon a Portion of Louise Street 
 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that City Council adopt an Amended Resolution of Intention to 
abandon a portion of Louise Street. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On March 5, 2013, the City Council adopted a Resolution of Intention to abandon a 
portion of Louise Street.  In that resolution, dates were specified for upcoming Public 
Hearings to be held by the Planning Commission and the City Council.  As these Public 
Hearing dates need to change, an Amended Resolution of Intention is required to set 
the new dates. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 

The previously adopted Resolution of Intention set a Public Hearing date of April 22, 
2013 for the Planning Commission.  This Public Hearing date has since become 
unavailable as the Planning Commission meeting scheduled for April 22, 2013 is now 
solely dedicated to actions related to the Housing Element.  The Planning Commission 
Public Hearing is now scheduled for May 6, 2013.  Rescheduling the Planning 
Commission Public Hearing also necessitates the rescheduling of the subsequent City 
Council Public Hearing.  The previously scheduled City Council Public Hearing on May 
22, 2013 is now scheduled for July 16, 2013. 
 

Public Hearings Original Resolution Amended Resolution 
Planning Commission April 22, 2013 May 6, 2013 
City Council May 22, 2013 July 16, 2013 

                                                                                                                                                                                   
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The proposed action will not have a direct financial impact on the City.  The applicant 
has paid the required processing fees. 
 
 

PAGE 23



Staff Report #: 13-057  

POLICY ISSUES 
 
There are no specific policy issues with this action. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 5 of the current California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution 
  
Report prepared by: 
Roger K. Storz 
Senior Civil Engineer 

PAGE 24



  ATTACHMENT A 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK TO AMEND THE 
RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ABANDON A PORTION OF LOUISE 
STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park considered the abandonment of 
Louise Street and approved a Resolution of Intention to abandon a portion of Louise 
Street as Resolution No. 6125 on March 5, 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, the dates set by the previously approved Resolution of Intention for the 
Public Hearings to be held by the Planning Commission and the City Council 
necessitate being changed; and 

  
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on this subject on May 
6, 2013, as required by law to notify property owners; and to find out whether the 
proposed abandonment is consistent with the City’s General Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council will hold a Public Hearing on July 16, 2013 at 
approximately 7:00 p.m. as required by law determining whether recorded public utility 
easements and public access easements, over that area of the property affected, will 
retain the City’s option relative to any utilities and street improvements within that area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that an Amended Resolution of Intention of the 
City Council of the City of Menlo Park, is hereby established, to consider the 
abandonment of a portion of Louise Street. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a 
meeting by said Council on the sixteenth day of April, 2013, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
   
ABSENT:  
   
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
City of Menlo Park on this sixteenth day of April, 2013. 
 
 
________________________ 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

PAGE 25



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 26



 

POLICE  DEPARTMENT 
  

 
 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-063 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-3 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Approve the Response to the San Mateo Grand 

Jury Report “Can We Talk? Law Enforcement and 
Our Multilingual County”  

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the attached response to the San 
Mateo County Grand Jury report “Can We Talk? Law Enforcement and Our Multilingual 
County” dated March 20, 2013, for the Mayor’s signature. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The San Mateo County Grand Jury conducted an investigation on how law enforcement 
agencies in the county handle the issue of dealing with multilingual residents and visitor.   
The Grand Jury conducted research into current Federal and State laws along with the 
relevant policies on language services and language tools throughout the San Mateo 
County law enforcement agencies.  The Grand Jury also conducted several interviews 
with line level staff, supervisors and managers at several police agencies within the 
County. 
 
The Grand Jury filed a report on March 20, 2013 (Attachment B) which contained six 
findings and four recommendations.  Comments responsive to the Findings and 
Recommendations are required to be submitted to the Honorable Judge Richard C. 
Livermore no later than June 18, 2013.  The City’s response must be approved by the 
City Council at a public meeting. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Staffed reviewed and analyzed numerous reports and documents in regards to the 
language services used by this department and others in the County. The Menlo Park 
response includes some of the relevant findings and recommendations gleaned from 
this analysis. 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE 27



Staff Report #: 13-063  

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Approving and submitting a response to the Grand Jury report has no direct impact on 
City resources.  
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
There are no policy implications as the Menlo Park Police Department is in compliance 
with the Grand Jury recommendation. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
No environmental assessment is required. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. City of Menlo Park Response Letter  
B. Grand Jury Report   

  
Report prepared by: 
Dave Bertini 
Police Commander 
 
 
 

PAGE 28



   City Council - City of Menlo Park 
701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
Telephone (650) 330-6610 www.menlopark.org 
 

 
 

 
 
 
April 16, 2013 
 
Honorable Richard C. Livermore 
Judge of the Superior Court 
c/o Charlene Kresevich 
Hall of Justice 
400 County Center; 2nd Floor 
Redwood City, CA. 94063-1655 
 
 Re: Grand Jury Report – “Can We Talk?  Law Enforcement and Our Multilingual County” 
 
Dear Judge Livermore: 
 
The Menlo Park City Council received the above referenced San Mateo County Grand Jury 
Report in March of 2013.  The report identifies certain findings and recommendations, and 
requests that the City Council respond in writing to those findings no later than June 18, 2013.  
On May 21, 2013, the Menlo Park City Council held a public meeting and approved this 
response. 
 
Regarding the “findings” of the San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury, Council is requested to 
respond with one of the following: 
 

1. Council agrees with the finding. 
2. Council disagrees wholly or partially with the finding, in which case the response shall 

specify the portion of the finding that is disputed and shall include an explanation of the 
reasons thereafter.  

 
Regarding the “recommendations” of the San Mateo County Grand Jury, Council is requested to 
report one of the following actions: 
 

PAGE 29

ATTACHMENT A

http://www.menlopark.org/�


1. The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the 
implemented action. 

2. The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in the 
future, with a time frame for implementation.  

3. The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the scope and 
parameters of an analysis or study, and a time frame for the matter to be prepared for 
discussion by the officer or director of the agency or department being investigated or 
reviewed, including the governing of the public agency when applicable.  This time 
frame shall not exceed six months from the date of publication of the Grand Jury report. 

4. The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or 
reasonable with an explanation therefore. 

 
The City of Menlo Park responds to the San Mateo County Grand Jury report as follows: 
 
Findings 
 
F1. The law enforcement agencies in the County are aware of the linguistic issues presented 
by the County’s non-English speaking population and, in general, have responded well by 
implementing written policies for language access and instituting hiring procedures designed 
to recruit multilingual personnel.  
 
Response 
 
The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding. 
 
F2. The 911 Service does a good job for the non-English speakers in the communities serviced 
by the San Mateo County Sheriff’s Office. 
 
Response 
 
The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding.  San Mateo County Public Safety Dispatch, who 
dispatches for the San Mateo County Sheriff’s Office utilizes the same “language line” as many 
other dispatch centers in the County, including the Menlo Park Police Dispatch center.  
 
F3. Written policies and procedures, such as those adopted by, Belmont, Brisbane, 
Burlingame, Foster City, Menlo Park, City of San Mateo, South San Francisco, and the Sheriff’s 
Office, are useful in guiding law enforcement during encounters with non-English speakers. 
 

PAGE 30



Response 
 
The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding. 
 
F4. Language Line is helpful in reducing communication difficulties between the immigrant 
population and law enforcement. 
 
Response 
 
The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding.  The Menlo Park Police Department utilizes this 
service in its dispatch center.  
 
F5. Alternative language translation services such as Google Translate, accessible by smart 
phones in the field, are useful in multilingual law enforcement situations.  
 
Response 
 
The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding. 
 
F6. It would be beneficial for law enforcement agencies to take advantage of low cost Spanish 
education available through POST. 
 
Response 
 
The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Grand Jury recommends to the City Councils of the Cities of San Mateo County that: 
 
R1. The cities of Atherton, Colma, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Hillsborough, Pacifica, Redwood 
City, and San Bruno develop a written policy/procedure for language access based on the 
guidelines set forth by the United States Department of Justice and customized for California 
Law by Lexipol in Policy 368. 
 
  

PAGE 31



Response 
 
Not applicable to Menlo Park.  The Menlo Park Police Department currently has Lexipol Policy 
368 “Limited English Proficiency Services” in effect, and that policy was used as an example 
attached to the Grand Jury report in Appendix D. 
 
R2. The cities of Brisbane and Hillsborough subscribe to a telephonic translation service that 
provides immediate access for dispatchers and officers in the field.  
 
Response 
 
Not applicable to Menlo Park.   
 
R3. Every County policing agency examine the feasibility of providing smart phones to patrol 
officers so that they can access free translation serviced such as Google Translate. 
 
Response 
 
The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or reasonable.  The 
Menlo Park Police Department outfits every marked police vehicle with a Mobile Data Terminal 
(MDT) which has immediate access to the internet, making it possible for officers to use the 
above mentioned Google Translate in the field already.  Also, purchasing smart phones for 
every officer is extremely cost prohibitive.  The initial cost along with the monthly cost of 
cellular and data plans would be unsustainable for most police departments.  Along with the 
cost, mandating that officers carry department issued smart phones raises a labor law issue of 
compensation for use of the phones while off duty.  This issue of compensation in regards to 
department issued phones is currently being litigated in another state and that decision could 
have long term and profound effects on every police department.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Peter I. Ohtaki  
Mayor 

 
 
 

PAGE 32



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

CAN WE TALK? 
LAW ENFORCEMENT AND OUR MULTILINGUAL COUNTY 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The law enforcement agencies for the 20 cities and towns located in San Mateo County 
(County), together with the County Sheriff’s Office, have a mandate to safeguard the County’s 
citizens. This mandate has become more difficult to fulfill as demographic changes over the past 
20 years have brought into the County an increasing number of people who speak English either 
poorly or not at all. 
 
The population of the County is linguistically diverse. The 2010 census lists the County’s 
population at 718,451,1 with 239,225 people indicating a birthplace other than the United States.2 
Immigrants comprise 33% of the County’s total population, which does not include the children 
of immigrants or undocumented immigrants. Over the past decade, San Mateo County has seen 
an increase in the Asian population (25%), the Hispanic population (18%) and a decrease in the 
white population (14%).3  Hispanics represent the largest population (22.1%), followed by 
Asians (18.3%) and Pacific Islanders (1.4%). The chart below shows the most common country 
of origin of immigrants to the County, as measured by the number of permanent visas provided.4 

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

 

                                                 
1 http://www.bayareacensus.ca.gov/counties/SanMateoCounty.htm  (11/28/2012). 
2 Ibid. 
3 Preliminary Findings from the Assessment of Immigrant Needs in San Mateo County,  
http://svcgii.sjsu.edu/content/20120126_SMC_Key_Findings.pdf _ pg. 4 (1/28/2013). 
4 Ibid. 

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 33



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

As part of only the 20005 census, the U.S. Census Bureau gathered English fluency data by 
asking respondents to rate their ability to speak English on a scale from “very well” to “not at 
all.” The results indicated that 55% of the County’s residents speak English “very well,” 22% 
“well,” 16% “not well,” and 7% “not at all.”6 This indicates that a minimum of 23% of the 
County’s residents, or 165,000 people, have some level of difficulty communicating in English. 
 
In light of this problem, the 2012-2013 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury (Grand Jury) sought 
to determine how the law enforcement officers of the 20 cities and towns in the County and the 
County Sheriff’s Office deal with communication obstacles that might prevent them from 
effectively discharging their duties. The Grand Jury found that both the County’s police 
departments7 and the Sheriff’s Office8 are making credible efforts at recruiting, hiring, training, 
and retaining multilingual officers and support personnel. 
 
The Grand Jury recommends that every policing agency in the County develop a written 
policy/procedure for language access, subscribe to effective translation services, and actively 
encourage language training for its personnel. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Whether it is a routine vehicle stop or a high-profile homicide investigation, law enforcement 
officers need to be able to communicate effectively to do their job. The size of the non-English 
speaking population in the County presents a serious challenge for law enforcement to provide 
effective policing programs while developing trust and cooperation in the communities they 
serve. As the number of non-English speakers increases, so does the number of non-English 
speaking residents who become witnesses to crime and even targets of crime. Because of 
language difficulties, these crimes may go unreported. Improved communications between 
officers and citizens can improve upon this situation.  
  
Several laws mandate that law enforcement agencies find ways to overcome language barriers. 
Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.),9 police agencies 
receiving federal assistance must take reasonable steps to ensure that their services are 
meaningfully accessible to those who do not speak English well.10 Additionally, California’s 
Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act (Cal. Gov. Code §7290) requires state and local 

                                                 
5 2000 data is the most recent as the question was not asked in the 2010 census. 
6 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, http://www.ahrq.gov/research/iomracereport/reldata4a.htm 
(11/29/2012). 
7 Atherton, Belmont, Brisbane, Burlingame, Colma, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo 
Park, Pacifica, Redwood City, San Bruno, San Mateo, and South San Francisco.  
8 Includes Half Moon Bay, Millbrae, Portola Valley, San Carlos, and Woodside. 
9 No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving 
Federal financial assistance. 
10 Overcoming Language Barriers, Solutions For Law Enforcement, pg. 5, www.cops.usdoj.gov (11/28/2012). 

PAGE 34



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

agencies serving a “substantial number of non-English speaking people” to employ a “sufficient 
number of qualified bilingual staff in public contact positions” and to translate documents 
explaining available services to their clients’ languages. (See, Appendix A). 

Law enforcement agencies operate within a culture of written policies and procedures. 
Accordingly, written policies and procedures regarding language access would be useful in 
guiding officers and support personnel on how and when to use language resource services. The 
Department of Justice Civil Rights Division has created a number of planning tools for law 
enforcement agencies to assist with formulating such policies and procedures.11 Further, the 
development and implementation of such policies and procedures can demonstrate a 
department’s commitment to ensuring access for residents with limited English skills and 
combating national origin discrimination.12  
 
METHODOLOGY 

The Grand Jury collected information from all the law enforcement agencies in the cities and 
towns in the County, and from the County Sheriff’s Office, regarding the level and efficiency of 
their interactions with non-English speakers in their jurisdictions. The Grand Jury requested 
these agencies’ assessments of the difficulties that language barriers create for both police 
officers and the public. Additionally, the Grand Jury asked these agencies to supply data 
regarding multilingual law enforcement officers and support personnel within their jurisdictions, 
information regarding programs to recruit, hire, train, and retain multilingual personnel, and 
current written policies/procedures addressing language access.   

Interviews 

The Grand Jury interviewed patrol officers from several police agencies to determine the actions 
they take when confronted with a language barrier. The Grand Jury also interviewed personnel 
from the County’s Office of Public Safety Communications (911). 
 
Site Tours 

In an emergency, the public often calls 911 as its first choice for obtaining police and medical 
services. As this is often the public’s initial contact point with law enforcement, the Grand Jury 
sought to determine the linguistic effectiveness of the 911 control center in the County’s Office 
of Public Safety Communications.  
 
 

                                                 
11 Executive Order 13166 Limited English Proficiency Resource Document: Tips and Tools from the Field, 
Washington, D.C: U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, 2004: 
http://www.justice.gov/crt/about/cor/lep/Final%20Tips%20and%20Tools%20Document.%209%2021%2004.pdf 
(1/24/2013). 
12 Ibid. 

PAGE 35



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

Documents 

The Grand Jury reviewed the following documents: 
 

• Civil Rights Act of 1964  
• Summary of Language Access Laws in California (Appendix A) 
• California Government Code Sections 7290-7299.8 (Appendix B) 
• Overcoming Language Barriers, Solutions for Law Enforcement 13 
• Enhancing Community Policing with Immigrant Populations 14  
• Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act 
• Lexipol Policy 368 (Appendix E) 

The Grand Jury gathered statistical information from the 2000 and 2010 U.S. Censuses,15 from 
various websites dedicated to employment opportunities in law enforcement, and from the 
websites maintained by the various law enforcement departments in the County. 
 
DISCUSSION 
  
The Grand Jury’s investigation revealed widespread awareness among the County’s law 
enforcement agencies regarding the need for more multilingual law enforcement and emergency 
personnel, particularly those fluent in Spanish. While several communities have as many as 22% 
of their officers fluent in a second language,16 two cities (Belmont and Hillsborough) reported no 
multilingual officers. The departments in these communities must depend on neighboring 
agencies or non-police employees for their translation needs. Fifteen communities of the 20 
surveyed stated their agencies could benefit from additional multilingual officers. (Appendix C) 
Atherton, Brisbane, Burlingame, Foster City, and Hillsborough stated no additional multilingual 
officers are currently needed.  
 
The primary concern among the policing agencies is how difficult basic communication is with 
non-English speakers during an initial contact, which is often during an emergency. When non-
English speaking residents are involved, the departments reported that delays were common in 
obtaining information critical to the resolution of an incident or the investigation of a crime. 
 
911 Calls 
 
As part of the Emergency Telephone Users Surcharge Law,17 the State of California has 
mandated that language translation services be available to limited or non-English speakers. A 
general tax on telephone usage funds the cost for this service.  

                                                 
13 www.cops.usdoj.gov/Publications/vera_translating_justice_final.pdf  (1/9/2013). 
14 www.cops.usdoj.gov/Publications/e04106266-Enhancing-CP-Immigrant-Populations_b.pdf (1/9/2013). 
15 http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/06/06081.html (1/30/2013). 
16 See Appendix C. 
17 California State Board of Equalization  www.boe.ca.gov./pdf/pub39a.pdf (1/28/2013). 

PAGE 36



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Under the County Manager’s direction the County’s 911 center processes emergency calls for 
the Sheriff’s Office, which services the cities of Half Moon Bay, Millbrae, Portola Valley, San 
Carlos, and Woodside, together with the unincorporated areas of the County. 911 also processes 
calls for all the fire departments in the County and ambulance dispatch, transit police (BART), 
Caltrain, and occasional direct calls from the public.18 As this is generally the first interface the 
public has with potential assistance, the Grand Jury reviewed the Public Safety Communications 
departmental policies and procedures when encountering a non-English speaking caller. This 
review revealed that when necessary, 911 operators can provide translation services for limited 
or non-English speakers through a service called “Language Line.” 
 
Language Line  
  
Language Line is a telephonic service operated by AT&T that enables users to speak through a 
translator in 98.6% of the world’s 6,809 languages, and includes sign language, when a video 
feed is available, and TTY (text telephone) users.19 A transfer button at all 911 operator 
workstations accomplishes this quickly. County administrators track the calls to determine the 
usage of Language Line. 911 Service’s internal policies dictate a 30-second processing time for 
incoming 911 calls. The transfer to Language Line for non-English speakers is occasionally 
longer than the 30-second goal. However, 911 Service reports a favorable experience with this 
service.  
 
All, except two (Brisbane and Hillsborough) of the cities’ police departments, use Language 
Line for translation services.20 The patrol officers interviewed indicated that use of Language 
Line in the field is cumbersome, as officers have to pass a telephone back and forth between the 
officer and the non-English speaker. The patrol officers preferred using Language Line for 
follow up investigations when a second telephone line is available.  
 
Patrol Officers in the Field 
 
Patrol officers in the field are resourceful when dealing with language barriers. They initially 
rely on their dispatchers to identify the language needs of the parties involved. This allows the 
officer to secure necessary translators while in route to the scene. At the scene, their first 
resource frequently is family members and neighbors. If additional translation is necessary, the 
officer can contact multilingual members of their department or neighboring departments for 
assistance. Officers also report having used web-based smart phone translation applications such 
as Google Translate on their personal phones. 
 

                                                 
18 Cities not serviced by the Sheriff’s Office have their own 911 operations that, for whatever reason, seldom receive 
direct calls from the public. 
19 http://languageline.com/main/files/Language_List.pdf (1/30/2013). 
20 See Appendix C. 

PAGE 37



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

All law enforcement agencies in the County stated that they actively recruit multilingual officers. 
Additionally, all responding departments except Brisbane and Colma provide additional 
compensation to their multilingual officers according to their language proficiency.  
 
Written Language Access Policies 
 
The cities of Belmont, Brisbane, Burlingame, Foster City, Menlo Park, City of San Mateo, South 
San Francisco21, and the Sheriff’s Office (which services the cities of Half Moon Bay, Millbrae, 
Portola Valley, San Carlos, Woodside, and the unincorporated areas of the County) provided the 
Grand Jury with written policies and procedures addressing language access. The Sheriff’s 
Office also recognizes the need for additional efforts, such as including the salary premium 
information in job postings and assigning multilingual officers to duty areas aligned with their 
language skills. The cities of Atherton, Colma, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Hillsborough, Pacifica, 
Redwood City, and San Bruno did not provide any written policies or procedures addressing 
language access to the Grand Jury and the Grand Jury is not aware that any such policies or 
procedures exist for those jurisdictions. 
 
POST 
 
The State of California provides continuing education through its Commission on Peace Officers 
Standards and Training (POST) program. POST offers language classes in Spanish (five 
proficiency levels) including courses to develop the basic skills needed for an initial interaction 
with Spanish speakers. The cost for the courses ranges from $20 to $350. The skills thus 
obtained have the potential to minimize language barriers during emergencies with a large 
percentage of the immigrant population, thereby allowing law enforcement officers to render 
better service to their communities.  
 
FINDINGS 
 
F1. The law enforcement agencies in the County are aware of the linguistic issues presented by 

the County’s non-English speaking population and, in general, have responded well by 
implementing written policies for language access and instituting hiring procedures 
designed to recruit multilingual personnel. 
 

F2. The 911 Service does a good job for the non-English speakers in the communities serviced 
by the San Mateo Sheriff’ 

 
F3. Written policies and procedures, such as those adopted by Belmont, Brisbane, Burlingame, 

Foster City, Menlo Park, City of San Mateo, South San Francisco, and the Sheriff’s Office, 
are useful in guiding law enforcement during encounters with non-English speakers. 

 
                                                 
21 Appendix E www.Lexipol.com (1/24/2013). 

PAGE 38



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

F4. Language Line is helpful in reducing communication difficulties between the immigrant 
population and law enforcement. 

  
F5. Alternative language translation services such as Google Translate, accessible by smart 

phones in the field, are useful in multilingual law enforcement situations. 
 
F6. It would be beneficial for law enforcement agencies to take advantage of low cost Spanish 

education available through the POST program.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Grand Jury recommends that: 
 
R1. The cities of Atherton, Colma, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Hillsborough, Pacifica, Redwood 

City, and San Bruno develop a written policy/procedure for language access based on the 
guidelines set forth by the United States Department of Justice22 and customized for 
California Law by Lexipol in Policy 368 (See, e.g., Appendix E) 

R2. The cities of Brisbane and Hillsborough subscribe to a telephonic translation service that 
provides immediate access for dispatchers and officers in the field. 

R3. Every County policing agency examine the feasibility of providing smart phones to patrol 
officers so that they can access free translation services such as Google Translate 23. 

R4. Every County policing agency encourage and financially support participation in POST24 
language skills classes. 

 
REQUEST FOR RESPONSES 
 
Pursuant to Penal code section 933.05, the Grand Jury requests the following, as applicable, to 
respond to the foregoing Findings and Recommendations, referring in such responses to the 
numerical reference thereof: 

• San Mateo County Sheriff 
 

• The Town/City Councils of Atherton, Belmont, Brisbane, Burlingame, Colma, Daly City, 
East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Pacifica, Redwood City, San 
Bruno, City of San Mateo, and South San Francisco. 

                                                 
22 Overcoming Language Barriers, Solutions For Law Enforcement, Community Oriented Policing Services, U.S. 
Department of Justice, www.cops.usdoj.gov/Publications/vera_translating_justice_final.pdf (1/9/2013). 
23https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id...google...apps.translate (1/24/2013). 
24 Ca. Gov. Post, www.post.ca.gov (12/17/2012). 

PAGE 39



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
The governing bodies indicated above should be aware that the comment or response of the 
governing body must be conducted subject to the notice, agenda and open meeting requirements 
of the Brown Act. 

Reports issued by the Civil Grand Jury do not identify individuals interviewed. Penal Code Section 929 requires that reports of 
the Grand Jury not contain the name of any person or facts leading to the identity of any person who provides information to 
the Civil Grand Jury.   

 

PAGE 40



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

SUMMARY OF LANGUAGE ACCESS LAWS IN CALIFORNIA  
 
There are a number of federal, state, and local laws that govern language access for limited-
English proficient (LEP) individuals. The following is an overview of the federal, state, and local 
laws governing language access. 
  
Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act  
“No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” 
 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based on race, color, or national 
origin by any recipient of federal funding. This obligation applies to all recipients, including 
government agencies, public educational institutions, nonprofit organizations, private 
corporations, and other entities. Title VI also applies without regard to the amount of funds 
received by an entity. Although the law does not define national origin discrimination, courts and 
regulations have consistently interpreted the provision as requiring linguistically assessable 
services. This means that agencies that receive federal funds and fail to provide meaningful 
access for limited English speaking individuals to services can violate Title VI. Title VI also 
covers private for-profit and nonprofit entities that receive federal funds, including those re-
allocated by state or local governments.  In the past several years, policies have been put in place 
at the federal level to provide direction that is more specific to federal recipients regarding their 
legal duty to provide language-accessible services. In August 2000, President Clinton issued 
Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency,” requiring federal agencies to develop guidance for federal funding recipients on 
how to comply with Title VI. The Bush administration has reaffirmed Executive Order 13166, 
and the U.S. Department of Justice has led a multi-agency effort to issue guidance outlining four 
factors that a recipient of federal funding should apply in determining its level of obligation to 
provide access to services for people who are LEP:  
 
1. Number or proportion of LEP persons served. While programs that serve fewer LEP 
individuals are still required to take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access, the number 
of LEP individuals expected to be encountered will determine the reasonableness of the efforts.  
2. Frequency of contact with LEP persons. The more frequent the need by LEP individuals to 
access the services, the greater the responsibility to provide meaningful access.  
3. Nature and importance of the program. The greater the importance of the program to  
beneficiaries, the greater the duty to provide access.  
4. Resources available and costs. Cost is a legitimate consideration in assessing the 
reasonableness of particular language access measures, and a smaller recipient of federal funding 
with limited resources may not have to take the same steps as a larger one.   

PAGE 41



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

             
In balancing these four factors, recipients of federal funding must provide an appropriate level of 
both oral interpretation and translation of important written documents. More information about 
Title VI’s language access requirements can be found at the federal government’s web site, 
www.lep.gov. This web site contains: 
  
 Background information about Title VI;  
 Executive Order 13166 (requesting federal agencies to develop detailed guidance on  
 enforcing Title VI);  
 Guidance for implementing Title VI for over 30 federal agencies;  
 Federal implementation and enforcement policies;  
 “Know Your Rights” materials;  
 “I Speak” Flashcards (flashcard written in 38 languages that can be used to identify the  
 language spoken by individuals who attempt to access services); and  
 General resources for providing multilingual services. 
 
Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act  
 
California’s Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act requires state and local agencies serving a 
“substantial number of non-English speaking people,” to employ a “sufficient number of 
qualified bilingual staff in public contact positions” and to translate documents explaining 
available services into their clients’ languages. In enacting the law over 30 years ago, the 
California Legislature recognized that “the effective maintenance and development of a free and 
democratic society depends on the right and ability of its citizens and residents to communicate 
with their government and the right and ability of the government to communicate with them.” 
Gov. Code § 7291. Because a substantial number of limited English proficient (“LEP”) 
Californians were unable to effectively utilize government services to which they were entitled, 
in 1973, the Legislature passed the Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act (the “Act”). See 
Gov. Code §§ 7290 et seq. The Bilingual Services Program of the State Personnel Board 
monitors agency compliance with Dymally-Alatorre and provides guidance to agencies seeking 
to meet their legal obligations to serve LEP individuals. For more information see, 
http://www.spb.ca.gov/bilingual/ 
 
Equal Access to Services Ordinance 
  
San Francisco’s Equal Access to Services (EAS) Ordinance, Chapter 91 of the SF Adm. Code, 
requires covered city departments to make its services accessible in any language spoken by 
limited English proficient persons who make up either 1) five percent of the population served 
by the Department, or 2) 10,000 residents citywide. The EAS Ordinance applies to all city 
departments that provide services to the public and have at least 30 full-time employees. The 
EAS delineates a range of obligations including, but not limited to: conducting annual language 
needs assessments, utilizing written and oral language services to ensure individuals have equal 
access to services regardless of language ability WrittenTranslation. The Ordinance requires City 

PAGE 42



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

departments that provide extensive public services (enumerated in the Ordinance as “Tier 1” 
departments), to translate vital governmental documents into the languages spoken by at least 
10,000 LEP residents or 5 percent of the clients served by the department.  
 
[Section 91.4.]  
At this time, the languages that fall under the broad, citywide 10,000 persons  
categories are Spanish and Chinese. The seven categories of “vital” documents designated for 
translation by Tier 1 departments include:  
  
(1) applications or forms to participate in a Department’s program or activity or to receive its 
benefits or services;  
(2) written notices of rights to, determination of eligibility of, award of, denial of, loss of, or 
decreases in benefits or services, including the right to appeal any Department’s decision;  
(3) written tests that do not assess English language competency, but test competency for a 
particular license or skill for which knowledge of written English is not required;  
(4) notices advising limited English-proficient persons of free language assistance;  
(5) materials explaining a Department’s services or programs;  
(6) complaint forms; and  
(7) any other written documents that have the potential for important consequences for an  
individual seeking services from or participating in a program of a city department. 
  
Oral Language Services 
  
The ordinance requires each City department with at least 30 full-time employees to provide 
information and services to the public not only in English, but also in the languages spoken by at 
least 10,000 LEP residents or 5 percent of the clients served by the department. 
 
[Section 91.3.]  
Again, the languages that fall under the citywide threshold are Spanish and Chinese (specifically 
Cantonese). Also, a local office of a City department that provides direct services to the public 
and serves as the workplace for 5 or more full-time City employees must additionally provide 
information and services to the public in the languages spoken by at least 5 percent of the 
population of the supervisorial district in which the facility is located or at least 5 percent of the 
clients served by the local office, when either of those constituencies is LEP and shares a 
primary language other than English.  
 
 [Section 91.3.] 
 In order to comply with the spoken language component of the Ordinance, departments must 
utilize sufficient numbers of bilingual staff in public contact positions (made vacant by 
retirement or attrition – no existing employee would be dismissed to implement this ordinance). 
A public contact position is defined in the ordinance as “a position in which a primary job 
responsibility consists of  

PAGE 43



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

meeting, contacting, and dealing with the public in the performance of the duties of that 
position.”  
  
[Section 91.2(i).]  
 The standard for determining whether departments comply with this  "Tier 1 Departments" 
include the following: 
 
Adult Probation Department, Department of Consumer Assurance,  
Department of Elections, Department of Human Services, Department of Parking and Traffic, 
Department of Public Health, Department of Public Transportation, District Attorney's Office, 
Emergency Communications Department,  
Fire Department, Juvenile Probation Department, Police Department, Public Defender's Office, 
Department of Aging and Adult Services, Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Board, and Sheriff's 
Office requirement of the Ordinance is whether they “provide the same level of service to 
Limited English Speaking Persons as they provide English speakers.”  
 
 [Section 91.3(a).]  
 The Ordinance may require the use of other means (such as language translation telephone lines) 
to communicate with the public in non-English languages in order to supplement bilingual 
staffing. 
  
Monitoring 
 
Individual departments and the city’s Immigrant Rights Commission are charged with 
monitoring compliance with the EAS. Departments must submit annual compliance plans by 
February 1. Amongst other items, the plans must include  
• The number and percentage of LEP individuals who actually use the Department’s services 
citywide, listed by language.  
• The number and percentage of LEP residents of each district in which a covered  
departmental facility is located and persons who use the services provided by such facility.  
• The number of public contact positions in the Department.  
• The number of bilingual employees in public contact positions, their titles, office locations, the 
languages other than English that the person speaks.  
• A description of any telephone based interpretation services offered, including the number of 
times such services were used and that languages for which they were used.  
• A narrative assessment of the procedures used to facilitate communications with LEP  
individuals.  
• A numerical assessment of the number of bilingual employees in public contact positions 
needed to meet the requirements of the EAS.  
• A list of the Department’s written materials required to be translated under the EAS.  
• A description of procedures for accepting and resolving complaints of an alleged violation of 
the EAS.  
 

PAGE 44



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
GOVERNMENT CODE  
SECTION 7290-7299.8  
 
7290. This chapter may be known and cited as the Dymally-Alatorre 
Bilingual Services Act. 
 
7291. The Legislature hereby finds and declares that the effective 
maintenance and development of a free and democratic society depends 
on the right and ability of its citizens and residents to communicate 
with their government and the right and ability of the government to 
communicate with them. 
  The Legislature further finds and declares that substantial 
numbers of persons who live, work and pay taxes in this state are 
unable, either because they do not speak or write English at all, or 
because their primary language is other than English, effectively to 
communicate with their government. The Legislature further finds and 
declares that state and local agency employees frequently are unable 
to communicate with persons requiring their services because of this 
language barrier. Therefore, substantial numbers of persons 
presently are being denied rights and benefits to which they would 
otherwise, be entitled. 
  It is the intention of the Legislature in enacting this chapter to 
provide for effective communication between all levels of government 
in this state and the people of this state who are precluded from 
utilizing public services because of language barriers. 
 
7292.  (a) Every state agency, as defined in Section 11000, except 
the State Compensation Insurance Fund, directly involved in the 
furnishing of information or the rendering of services to the public 
whereby contact is made with a substantial number of 
non-English-speaking people, shall employ a sufficient number of 
qualified bilingual persons in public contact positions to ensure 
provision of information and services to the public, in the language 
of the non-English-speaking person. 
  (b) For the purposes of this chapter, the furnishing of 
information or rendering of services includes, but is not limited to, 
providing public safety, protection, or prevention, administering 
state benefits, implementing public programs, managing public 
resources or facilities, holding public hearings, and engaging in any 
other state program or activity that involves public contact. 

PAGE 45



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
7293. Every local public agency, as defined in Section 54951, 
serving a substantial number of non-English-speaking people, shall 
employ a sufficient number of qualified bilingual persons in public 
contact positions or as interpreters to assist those in such 
positions, to ensure provision of information and services in the 
language of the non-English-speaking person. The determination of 
what constitutes a substantial number of non-English-speaking people 
and a sufficient number of qualified bilingual persons shall be made 
by the local agency. 
 
7294. An employee of a state or local agency, as defined by 
Sections 11000 and 54951, may not be dismissed to carry out the 
purposes of this chapter. A state or local public agency need only 
implement this chapter by filling employee public contact positions 
made vacant by retirement or normal attrition. 
 
7295. Any materials explaining services available to the public 
shall be translated into any non-English language spoken by a 
substantial number of the public served by the agency. Whenever 
notice of the availability of materials explaining services available 
is given, orally or in writing, it shall be given in English and in 
the non-English language into which any materials have been 
translated. The determination of when these materials are necessary 
when dealing with local agencies shall be left to the discretion of 
the local agency. 
 
7295.2. Every state agency that serves a substantial number of 
non-English-speaking people, and which provides materials in English 
explaining services, shall also provide the same type of materials in 
any non-English language spoken by a substantial number of the public 
served by the agency. Whenever notice of the availability of 
materials explaining services available is given, orally or in 
writing, it shall be given in English and in the non-English language 
into which any materials have been translated. This section shall 
not be interpreted to require verbatim translations of any materials 
provided in English by a state agency. 
 
7295.4. Whenever a state agency finds that the factors listed in 
both subdivisions (a) and (c) or (b) and (c) exist, it shall 
distribute the applicable written materials in the appropriate 
non-English language through its local offices or facilities to 
non-English-speaking persons, or, as an alternative, the state agency 

PAGE 46



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

may instead elect to furnish translation aids, translation guides, 
or provide assistance, through use of a qualified bilingual person, 
at its local offices or facilities in completing English forms or 
questionnaires and in understanding English forms, letters, or 
notices: 
  (a) The written materials, whether forms, applications, 
questionnaires, letters, or notices solicit or require the furnishing 
of information from an individual or provide that individual with 
information. 
  (b) The information solicited, required, or furnished affects or 
may affect the individual's rights, duties, or privileges with regard 
to that agency's services or benefits. 
  (c) The local office or facility of the agency with which the 
individual is dealing, serves a substantial number of 
non-English-speaking persons. 
 
7296. (a) As used in this chapter, a "qualified bilingual person," 
"qualified bilingual employee," or "qualified interpreter" is a 
person who is proficient in both the English language and the 
non-English language to be used. For any state agency, "qualified" 
means one of the following: 
  (1) A bilingual person or employee who the State Personnel Board 
has tested and certified as proficient in the ability to understand 
and convey in English and a non-English language commonly used terms 
and ideas, including terms and ideas regularly used in state 
government. 
  (2) A bilingual employee who was tested and certified by a state 
agency or other testing authority approved by the State Personnel 
Board as proficient in the ability to understand and convey in 
English and a non-English language commonly used terms and ideas, 
including terms and ideas regularly used in state government. 
  (3) An interpreter who has met the testing or certification 
standards established by the State Personnel Board for outside or 
contract interpreters, as proficient in the ability to communicate 
commonly used terms and ideas between the English language and the 
non-English language to be used and has knowledge of basic 
interpreter practices, including, but not limited to, 
confidentiality, neutrality, accuracy, completeness, and 
transparency. 
  (b) The determination of what constitutes "qualified" for local 
agencies, shall be left to the discretion of the local agency. 
 
7296.2. As used in Sections 7292 and 7295.2, a "substantial number 

PAGE 47



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

of non-English-speaking people" are members of a group who either do 
not speak English, or who are unable to effectively communicate in 
English because it is not their native language, and who comprise 5 
percent or more of the people served by any local office or facility 
of a state agency. 
 
7296.4. As used in Section 7292, "a sufficient number of qualified 
bilingual persons in public contact positions" is the number required 
to provide the same level of services to non-English-speaking 
persons as is available to English-speaking persons seeking these 
services. However, where the local office or facility of the state 
employs the equivalent of 25 or fewer regular, full-time employees, 
it shall constitute compliance with the requirements of this chapter 
if a sufficient number of qualified bilingual persons are employed in 
public contact positions, or as qualified interpreters to assist 
those in those positions, to provide the same level of services to 
non-English-speaking persons as is available to English-speaking 
persons seeking the services from the office or facility. 
 
7297. As used in this chapter, a "public contact position" is a 
position determined by the agency to be one which emphasizes the 
ability to meet, contact and deal with the public in the performance 
of the agency's functions. 
 
7298. The provisions of this chapter are not applicable to school 
districts, county boards of education, or the office of a county 
superintendent of schools. 
 
7299. The provisions of this act shall be implemented to the extent 
that local, state or federal funds are available, and to the extent 
permissible under federal law and the provisions of civil service law 
governing the state and local agencies. 
 
7299.1. State agencies may, utilizing existing funds, contract for 
telephone-based interpretation services in addition to employing 
qualified bilingual persons in public contact positions. 
 
7299.2. The State Personnel Board shall be responsible for 
informing state agencies of their responsibilities under this chapter 
and providing state agencies with technical assistance, upon request 
on a reimbursable basis. 
 
7299.4. (a) Notwithstanding any other provision in this chapter, 

PAGE 48



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

each state agency shall conduct an assessment, develop, and update 
an implementation plan that complies with the requirements of this 
chapter. 
  (b) Each agency shall conduct a survey of each of its local 
offices every two years to determine all of the following: 
  (1) The number of public contact positions in each local office. 
  (2) The number of qualified bilingual employees in public contact 
positions in each local office, and the languages they speak, other 
than English. 
  (3) The number and percentage of non-English-speaking people 
served by each local office, broken down by native language. 
  (4) The number of anticipated vacancies in public contact 
positions. 
  (5) Whether the use of other available options, including 
contracted telephone-based interpretation services, in addition to 
qualified bilingual persons in public contact positions, is serving 
the language needs of the people served by the agency. 
  (6) A list of all written materials that are required to be 
translated or otherwise made accessible to non- or 
limited-English-speaking individuals by Sections 7295.2 and 7295.4. 
  (7) A list of materials identified in paragraph (6) that have been 
translated and languages into which they have been translated. 
  (8) The number of additional qualified bilingual public contact 
staff, if any, needed at each local office to comply with this 
chapter. 
  (9) Any other relevant information requested by the State 
Personnel Board. 
  (c) Each agency shall calculate the percentage of 
non-English-speaking people served by each local office by rounding 
the percentage arrived at to the nearest whole percentage point. 
  The survey results shall be reported on forms provided by the 
State Personnel Board, and delivered to the board not later than 
October 1 of every even-numbered year beginning with 2008. 
  (d) Beginning in 2009 and in every odd-numbered year thereafter, 
each state agency shall develop an implementation plan that, at a 
minimum, addresses all of the following: 
  (1) The name, position, and contact information of the employee 
designated by the agency to be responsible for overseeing 
implementation of the plan. 
  (2) A description of the agency's procedures for identifying 
written materials that need to be translated. 
  (3) A description of the agency's procedures for identifying 
language needs at local offices and assigning qualified bilingual 

PAGE 49



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

staff. 
  (4) A description of how the agency recruits qualified bilingual 
staff. 
  (5) A description of any training the agency provides to its staff 
on the provision of services to non- or limited-English-speaking 
individuals. 
  (6) A detailed description of how the agency plans to address any 
deficiencies in meeting the requirements of this chapter, including, 
but not limited to, the failure to translate written materials or 
employ sufficient numbers of qualified bilingual employees in public 
contact positions at local offices, the proposed actions to be taken 
to address the deficiencies, and the proposed dates by when the 
deficiencies can be remedied. 
  (7) A description of the agency's procedures for accepting and 
resolving complaints of an alleged violation of this chapter. 
  (8) A description of how the agency complies with any federal or 
other state laws that require the provision of linguistically 
accessible services to the public. 
  (9) Any other relevant information requested by the State 
Personnel Board. 
  (e) In developing its implementation plan in 2003, each state 
agency may rely upon data gathered from its 2002 survey. 
  (f) Each state agency shall submit its implementation plan to the 
State Personnel Board no later than October 1 of each applicable 
year. The board shall review each plan, and, if it determines that 
the plan fails to address the identified deficiencies, the board 
shall order the agency to supplement or make changes to its plan. A 
state agency that has been determined to be deficient shall report to 
the State Personnel Board every six months on its progress in 
addressing the identified deficiencies. 
  (g) If the board determines that a state agency has not made 
reasonable progress toward complying with this chapter, the board may 
issue orders that it deems appropriate to effectuate the purposes of 
this chapter. 
 
7299.5. The State Personnel Board may exempt state agencies from 
the requirements of Section 7299.4, where the State Personnel Board 
determines that any of the following conditions apply: 
  (a) The agency's primary mission does not include responsibility 
for furnishing information or rendering services to the public. 
  (b) The agency has consistently received such limited public 
contact with the non-English-speaking public that it has not been 
required to employ bilingual staff under Section 7292 and the agency 

PAGE 50



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

employs fewer than the equivalent of 25 full-time employees in public 
contact positions. 
  In order to receive an exemption, each state agency shall annually 
petition the State Personnel Board for the exemption and receive 
approval in writing by the date established by the board. An agency 
may receive an exemption for up to five consecutive surveys or 
implementation plans, if it demonstrates that it meets the 
requirements of subdivision (a) or (b), and provides all required 
documentation to the State Personnel Board. 
 
7299.6. The State Personnel Board shall review the results of the 
surveys and implementation plans required to be made by Section 
7299.4, compile this data, and provide a report to the Legislature 
every two years. The report shall identify significant problems or 
deficiencies and propose solutions where warranted. 
 
7299.8. It is not the intent of the Legislature in enacting this 
chapter to prohibit the establishment of bilingual positions, or 
printing of materials, or use of qualified interpreters, where less 
than 5 percent of the people served do not speak English or are 
unable to communicate effectively, as determined appropriate by the 
state or local agency. It is not the intent of the Legislature in 
enacting this chapter to require that all public contact positions be 
filled with qualified bilingual persons. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE 51



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

Appendix C                      
 
 
                                                 Survey Results 
 
 
  
Does your law enforcement department 
have a significant number of interactions 
with non-English speakers? 
 
       Yes     No 
     Atherton                 Brisbane 
     Belmont   Burlingame 
     Colma   Hillsborough 
     Daly City  Pacifica 
     East Palo Alto 
     Foster City 
     Menlo Park 
     San Bruno 
     City of San Mateo 
     San Mateo Sheriff* 
     South San Francisco 
 
What language(s) in addition to English  
is spoken by a significant number of people  
with who your department has interaction? 
     Spanish – 19 
     None – 1(Hillsborough) 
 
What number and percentage of your law  
enforcement officers are fluent in each of  
the languages listed? 
     Atherton = 1 officer, 2 dispatchers 
     Belmont  = 0% 
     Brisbane  = 18% 
     Burlingame = 8% 
     Colma = 20% 
     Daly City = 10% 
     East Palo Alto = 12% 
     Foster City = 16% 
     Hillsborough = 0% 
     Menlo Park = 8% 
     Pacifica = 15% 
     Redwood City = 16% 
     San Bruno = 22% 
     City of San Mateo = 10% 
     San Mateo Sheriff  = 14% 
     South San Francisco = 10% 
 

PAGE 52



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
*Includes Half Moon Bay, Millbrae, Portola Valley, San Carlos, Woodside, and the unincorporated areas of the 
County. 
 
Do you consider that you have a sufficient  
number of multilingual officers? 
        Yes          No 
     Atherton      Belmont 
     Brisbane      Colma 
     Burlingame     Daly City 
     Foster City   East Palo Alto 
     Hillsborough   Menlo Park 
         Pacifica 
         Redwood City 
         City of San Mateo 
         San Bruno 
         San Mateo Sheriff* 
         South San Francisco 
 
What issues do non-English speakers  
present to your department? 
 
     Communication and accurate reporting = 16 
     None = 4 
 
Does your department have a stated  
policy and/or an active program  
addressing the recruiting, hiring and  
retention of multilingual officers and  
does your department have written  
policy/procedures when encountering a  
non-English speaker? 
        Yes       No 
     Belmont   Atherton 
     Brisbane   Colma 
     Burlingame  Daly City  
     Foster City  East Palo Alto 
     Menlo Park  Hillsborough 
     San Mateo  Pacifica  
     San Mateo Sheriff* San Bruno 
     South San Francisco Redwood City 
         
Are multilingual police officers paid a 
 premium?         Yes           No 
      

    Atherton = 5%   Brisbane 
    Belmont = 5%   Colma 
    Burlingame = 5% 
    Daly City = $30 per pay period 
    East Palo Alto = $100 per month 
    Foster City = $75 per month 

PAGE 53



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

    Hillsborough = 5% 
    Menlo Park = $75 per pay period 
    Pacifica = $373 per month 
    Redwood City = 2.5%-5% relative to proficiency 
    San Bruno = 2.5% relative to proficiency 
    City of San Mateo = $181.96 bi-weekly 
    San Mateo Sheriff* = $42.50 bi-weekly 
    South San Francisco = 5% relative to proficiency 
 

Does your jurisdiction have  
in-house translators for police  
business? 
        Yes     No 
      

     Atherton   Belmont 
     Burlingame  Brisbane 
     Daly City  Colma 
     East Palo Alto  Foster City 
     Hillsborough   Pacifica 
     Menlo Park 
     Redwood City 
     San Bruno 
     City of San Mateo 
     San Mateo Sheriff* 
     South San Francisco 
 

Does your city use outside vendors for 
translating? Who are those vendors? 

       Yes    No 
                 Language Line 
     Atherton  Brisbane 
     Belmont  Hillsborough 
     Burlingame 
     Colma 
     Daly City 
     East Palo Alto 
     Foster City 
     Menlo Park 
     Pacifica  
     Redwood City 
     San Bruno 
     City of San Mateo 
     San Mateo Sheriff*  
     South San Francisco 
 

 
                                       
   
 
 
 

PAGE 54



This is an advanced copy of a Grand Jury report that will be publicly released on  
March 20, 2013.  Penal Code section 933.05 (f) prohibits any officer, agency, department, 
or governing body of a public agency from disclosing any contents of the report prior to 
the public release of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 

Appendix D - Example 

 

PAGE 55



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 56



 

PUBLIC WORKS  DEPARTMENT 
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-062 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-4 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Receive the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers 

Authority Projects Update and Approve the 
Project Community Outreach Plan 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive the San Francisquito Creek Joint 
Powers Authority (SFCJPA) update on the various projects and approve the community 
outreach activities for the Program Environmental Impact Report for projects upstream 
of Highway 101 being planned and implemented by SFCJPA member agencies to 
provide flood projection, ecosystem restoration, and recreational opportunities along 
San Francisco Bay and San Francisquito Creek, including the Pope/Chaucer Bridge. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The SFCJPA’s objectives are to protect lives and properties, enhance ecosystems, and 
build recreational opportunities and connectivity for the cities of East Palo Alto, Menlo 
Park, Palo Alto, and portions of unincorporated San Mateo and Santa Clara Counties. 
The SFCJPA was established in May of 1999. 
 
The SFCJPA is currently leading the local effort on major flood protection projects in the 
area. The SFCJPA is planning and designing capital projects with the goal of removing 
more than 8,400 properties in Menlo Park, Palo Alto and East Palo Alto from the San 
Francisquito Creek and San Francisco Bay FEMA floodplains.  Attachment A provides a 
list of all the current projects, participating agencies, funding sources, project summary, 
and a short summary status update of all current projects. The summary of the status of 
the various projects being planned and implemented by the SFCJPA and its member 
agencies to provide flood protection, ecosystem restoration, and recreational 
opportunities along San Francisquito Creek and San Francisco Bay is also on the 
sfcjpa.org website.   
 
Historically, the San Francisquito Creek has caused serious flooding and widespread 
damage to surrounding neighborhoods. SFCJPA’s overall goal is to make 
improvements to the creek to provide capacity for a 100-year storm event and alleviate 
the continuing flooding and erosion of the creek. One specific project includes the 
Pope/Chaucer Street Bridge. The existing arch culvert structure at the Pope/Chaucer 

PAGE 57



Staff Report # 13-062  

street crossing is inadequate to pass the 100-year design flood.  The existing culvert 
shown in Figure 2 is a picture taken during the December 23, 2012 major storm event. 
 
The Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD), a member agency of the SFCJPA, is 
planning to replace the existing Pope/Chaucer Bridge crossing at San Francisquito 
Creek. The new bridge will be designed to accommodate a 100-year flood event under 
the bridge and prevent future flooding of the areas surrounding the creek. The project is 
part of the overall SFCJPA goal to provide 100-year flood capacity in the creek.  
 
The Pope/Chaucer Bridge Replacement Project is located at the Pope Street and 
Chaucer Street crossing of San Francisquito Creek. This crossing is the boundary 
between the City of Palo Alto and the City of Menlo Park as well as the boundary 
between the Counties of Santa Clara and San Mateo. Figure 1 shows the vicinity map 
and location of the project, and Figure 2 shows the existing culvert at Pope/Chaucer. 

 
Figure 1 – Vicinity Map 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE 58



Staff Report # 13-062  

 

Figure 2 – Existing Culvert at Pope/Chaucer 

 

The Environmental Analysis and Design for this project is currently under way. The 
participating agencies for this project include Menlo Park, Palo Alto, SFCJPA, and 
SCVWD. The project is currently being funded by SCVWD.  SCVWD has secured an 
engineering design firm to prepare an alternatives analysis and design of the 
replacement bridge. The environmental analysis for the Pope/Chaucer Bridge Project 
will be covered as part of the larger SFCJPA’s Program Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) for projects upstream of Highway 101, and the initial Scoping Community Meeting 
for the EIR will be scheduled in May of this year. The construction for the Pope/Chaucer 
Bridge Project is anticipated to be completed by Fall of 2015. In addition to the scoping 
meeting, there will be two project specific community meetings held, one in Menlo Park 
during the preliminary design stages, and another in Palo Alto during the final design 
stages of the Pope/Chaucer Bridge Project.  The community outreach plan will be 
presented by SFCJPA Executive Director at today’s council meeting. 
  

PAGE 59



Staff Report # 13-062  

ANALYSIS 
 

Once the CEQA analysis and design for the Pope/Chaucer Bridge are completed, this 
project will move into construction with an anticipated completion date set for 2016. 
Both the environmental phase and design phase for this project are moving 
concurrently. The existing Pope/Chaucer Bridge is anticipated to be raised about 5 feet 
to provide the adequate flood protection capacity needed for this location. This will 
cause some modifications along Pope Street and Woodland Street in Menlo Park and 
removal of some heritage trees. Similar impacts are anticipated in the Palo Alto side. 
The bridge structure will be approximately 45 feet wide and it will include two 11 foot 
lanes, two 5 foot shoulders, and 5 feet sidewalks on each side. Attachment B is a 
graphical representation of the concept section of the bridge. 
 
Currently, NV5, the project design firm and the member agencies have been working on 
establishing the technical design criteria and preliminary design concepts to select a 
project design concept that will be included in the project description for the 
environmental CEQA analysis. The selected project alternative will be evaluated in the 
SFCJPA’s EIR analysis report. Before the project alternative is selected, a design 
project alternative will be confirmed by both Cities and included in the CEQA analysis.  
 
The public outreach plan will begin with the Scoping Meeting in May. The draft public 
outreach plan is attached in Attachment C. This plan will be is approved by the SFCJPA 
after all comments are received from the SFCJPA member agencies. The plan will be 
used for project stewardship, community input, and to educate the stakeholders and 
interested parties about the project, the process, and project schedule. The public 
outreach plan will include review of the project alternatives by the Bicycle Commission, 
Transportation Commission, Environmental Quality Commission and finally by City 
Council confirming the selected design concept. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The environmental phase and design phase of this project are being funded by the 
SCVWD.  Costs for the construction and maintenance phase have not been determined 
at this time; however, support staff is not being funded by the SCVWD. In addition, the 
City does not have a funded CIP project for this Fiscal Year. Staff resources to support 
this project will be used from the Creek Management program budget at this time. A 
new project has been added to the 5 year Capital Improvement Plan for the staff costs 
respective to the design and construction phase in FY 2013-2014. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
This project will require a joint maintenance agreement between Santa Clara Valley 
Water District, Palo Alto, and Menlo Park. As the construction costs are better defined 
and maintenance costs are estimated, staff will evaluate funding strategies for the long-
term maintenance of the constructed facility. This project is consistent with policies 
established in Chapter 12.42 of the Municipal Code, Flood Damage Prevention.   
 

PAGE 60



Staff Report # 13-062  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
This Council action is not subject to the current California Environmental Quality Act. 
The SFCJPA will complete all required environmental review documents to construct 
the project. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. SFJPA Summary of Projects and Status Update 
B. Bridge General Plan 
C. Draft Public Outreach Plan 
  

Report prepared by: 
Fernando Bravo 
Engineering Services Manager 
 

PAGE 61



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 62



ATTACHMENT A 

 

The following is a summary of the status of the various projects being planned and 
implemented by the SFCJPA and its member agencies to provide flood protection, 
ecosystem restoration, and recreational opportunities along San Francisquito Creek and 
San Francisco Bay.   The SFCJPA will periodically update and redistribute this 
document as progress is made.   
 
SUMMARY OF PROJECTS AND STATUS UPDATE: 
 

1. San Francisco Bay to Highway 101 
Participating Agencies: SFCJPA, SCVWD, Palo Alto, East Palo Alto 

Funding Sources:  SFCJPA Proposition 1E Grant Award; SCVWD; East Palo Alto; 
Palo Alto Donation of Golf Course land to accommodate project. 
 
Project Summary:  When constructed, the project will reduce flood risks in East Palo 
Alto and Palo Alto along a flood-prone reach of the creek downstream (east) of U.S. 
Highway 101 to San Francisco Bay. Additionally, it will reduce flood risks from Bay 
tides and 50 years of future Sea Level Rise within the creek in concert with the 
SFCJPA’s planned coastal levee system for the region. 

This project will also provide the capacity needed for upstream flood protection 
projects being designed by the SFCJPA and member agencies, benefit the habitat of 
three endangered species in the area, and improve Bay trails and outdoor education 
opportunities. 

Status:  Environmental Impact Report certified in 2012.  Final Design anticipated 
May 2013.  Permits anticipated August 2013.  Construction start (utility relocation) 
will begin September 2013, with continued project construction anticipated during 
the construction seasons of 2014 and 2015. 

Anticipated Completion Date:  October 2015 
 

2. Highway 101, East Bayshore and West Bayshore Bridges 
Participating Agencies: Caltrans, SFCJPA, Palo Alto, East Palo Alto 

Funding Sources: Caltrans 
 
Project Summary:  Caltrans is in the design and environmental review phases of a 
project to replace the U.S. Highway 101 (and frontage roads) crossing over San 

PAGE 63



 

 

 

Francisquito Creek to improve traffic flow. Knowing this, in 2008, the JPA 
approached Caltrans to request that their bridge replacement project also increase 
the Creek’s capacity to accommodate a greater flow at that point. 

Currently, the channel flow capacity is less than half of what is needed to 
accommodate a 100-year event. In the spring of 2009, Caltrans agreed to improve 
the floodwater capacity of the bridge structure to match JPA improvements for the 
channel to provide flood protection should a 100-year creek flow event occur at the 
same time as a high tide event.  
 
Status:  Construction will begin in June 2014 
 
Anticipated Completion Date:  October 2015 
 

3. Environmental Impact Report for projects upstream of 101 
Participating Agencies: SFCJPA, SCVWD, East Palo Alto, Menlo Park, Palo Alto 

Funding Sources:  SFCJPA, SCVWD 
 
Project Summary:  The purpose of the Project is to produce an IS and EIR for the 
construction elements needed to 
protect homes, businesses, and other facilities in the cities of Palo Alto, Menlo Park 
and East Palo Alto that are currently at risk of flooding from Creek overbanking in 
the reach between the Highway 101 corridor and El Camino Real. The Project 
elements to be constructed (and described below) will contain within the channel, or 
a combination of the channel and water detention facility, the one-percent (1%) flood 
flow (9,300 cubic feet per second) through the Project reach, and provide defined 
ecosystem and recreational enhancements. The final work products of this Project 
will be a completed Initial Study and certified Environmental Impact Report. 
 
Status:  The SFCJPA has secured and Environmental Consulting firm to conduct the 
field investigations and prepare the EIR.  Work on the 18-month project began in 
December 2012. 
 
Anticipated Completion Date:  Summer 2014 
 

4. Newell Road Bridge 
Participating Agencies: Palo Alto, East Palo Alto, SCVWD, SFCJPA 

Funding Sources:  Caltrans Highway Bridge Program grant to Palo Alto, 
SCVWD 

PAGE 64



 

 

 

 
Project Summary:  The existing bridge, built in 1911, impedes the creek channel and 
requires replacement to accommodate a 1% (100-year) flood event.  Improvements 
to the Newell Road Bridge will protect adjacent homes from flooding if there is a 
large storm event.  
 
Status:  Palo Alto has hired an engineering design firm and have embarked on the 
preparation of an Environmental Impact Report specific to the Newell Road project 
to fully explore alternatives with broad public participation 

Anticipated Completion Date: Fall 2015 
 

5. Channel Widening upstream of 101 
Participating Agencies: SFCJPA, SCVWD, East Palo Alto, Palo Alto, Menlo Park 

Funding Sources: SCVWD 
 
Project Summary:  The Project will widen four to six areas would be widened to 
improve channel hydraulics and effectively reduce water surface elevations.  Some 
of these “bottlenecks” are the result of structures such as private pedestrian bridges, 

and others are simply areas where the channel is too narrow to convey the desired 
storm flows.   
 
Status:  Development of alternatives and design for widening the channel in key 
locations is at 60% completion.  Environmental documentation will be covered in the 
SFCJPA’s EIR for projects upstream of 101 (Item #3).   

Anticipated Completion Date:  Fall 2015 

 

6. Pope-Chaucer Bridge 
Participating Agencies:  SCVWD, Menlo Park, Palo Alto, SFCJPA 

Funding Sources:  SCVWD  
 
Project Summary:  The bridge where Pope and Chaucer Streets meet over the creek 
will be replaced with a new bridge capable of passing flows up to the 1% event. 
 
Status:  SCVWD has secured an engineering design firm to prepare an alternatives 
analysis and design of the replacement bridge.  The first public meeting to discuss 
project design is being planned for April 2013.  Environmental documentation will be 

PAGE 65



 

 

 

covered in the SFCJPA’s EIR for projects upstream of 101 (Item #3).   
 
Anticipated Completion Date:  Fall 2015 
 

7. Middlefield Road Bridge 
Participating Agencies: SCVWD, Menlo Park, Palo Alto, SFCJPA 

Funding Sources:  Requests have been made to Caltrans for grant funding from 
their Highway Bridge Replacement Program.  SCVWD Measure B 2012 includes 
funding for replacement or modification design. 
 
Project Summary:  Modifications will be made at the Middlefield Road Bridge so that 
1% flows can be accommodated. 

Status:  SCVWD has engaged an engineering design firm to conduct a preliminary 
alternatives analysis to evaluate potential modifications and new bridge concepts.  
Environmental documentation will be covered in the SFCJPA’s EIR for projects 

upstream of 101 (Item #3).   

Anticipated Completion Date:  2016 
 

8. 100-year protection alternatives for upstream of 101 
Participating Agencies: SFCJPA, SCVWD, East Palo Alto, Menlo Park, Palo Alto 
San Mateo County FCD. 

Funding Sources:  SCVWD, SFCJPA Operational Funds 
 
Project Summary:  Collectively, the projects to improve flow capacity downstream of 
101, the Caltrans 101 and frontage road replacements, Newell Road Bridge 
replacement, channel widening, and Pope-Chaucer Bridge replacement will provide 
flood protection from the 50-year flow event, which is greater than the flood of record 
in 1998.  Increasing protection to the 100-year level in order to remove parcels from 
the FEMA floodplain will require one or a combination of the following project 
elements:  New floodwalls on both sides of the channel between Highway 101 and 
Pope-Chaucer Bridge, underground bypass culvert along Woodland Ave, or 
upstream detention. 

Status:  Environmental documentation will be covered at a program level in the 
SFCJPA’s EIR for projects upstream of 101 (Item #3).  This will evaluate the impacts 

of each alternative to assist in the final decision on which to implement.  SCVWD 
has produced designs on the floodwall and bypass culvert alternatives to 30% 

PAGE 66



 

 

 

completion.  Funding for construction will be sought through a special finance district 
(Item #11). 
 
Anticipated Completion Date:  2017 
 

9. Coastal protection north of channel 
Participating Agencies:  SFCJPA, East Palo Alto, Menlo Park, San Mateo County 
FCD 

Funding Sources:  SFCJPA grant from DWR Local Levee Assistance Program 
City of East Palo Alto 
City of Menlo Park 
 
Status:  Funding has been secured to conduct geotechnical investigations, survey 
work, design and environmental documentation for the improvements.  A request for 
proposals from qualified firms will be released late Spring 2013.  Funding for 
construction will be sought through a special finance district (Item #11). 
 
Anticipated Completion Date: 

 Design and CEQA: late 2014 

 Construction: 2017 
 

Project Summary:  The project will modify existing coastal levees along San 
Francisco Bay between San Francisquito Creek to the South and the Menlo 
Park/Redwood City border to the North.  The levee improvements will provide 
protection against a 1% tide plus required FEMA freeboard, and considering 
projected sea level rise.  The objective is to remove the communities of East Palo 
Alto and Menlo Park from the FEMA coastal floodplain, which, when coupled with 
projects being implemented along the Creek, will obviate the need for property 
owners to participate in the National Flood Insurance Program. 

10. Coastal protection south of channel 
Participating Agencies: SCVWD, Palo Alto, SFCJPA 

Funding Sources: SCVWD grant from DWR Local Levee Assistance Program  

Project Summary:  The project will modify existing coastal levees along San 
Francisco Bay between San Francisquito Creek to the North and Guadalupe River in 
San Jose to the South.  The levee improvements will provide protection against a 

PAGE 67



 

 

 

1% tide plus required FEMA freeboard, and considering projected sea level rise.  
The objective is to remove the communities in Santa Clara County from the FEMA 
coastal floodplain. 
 
Status:  SFCJPA and SCVWD are contemplating combining efforts for coastal 
protection on both sides of San Francisquito Creek.  If this happens, construction in 
Palo Alto and Mountain View would be on the same schedule as coastal 
improvements for Menlo Park and East Palo Alto.  If this does not happen, SCVWD 
will decide how to proceed either partnering with the Corps of Engineers, or as a 
local effort. 

Anticipated Completion Date:  TBD 

11. Special Finance District for 1% protection 
Participating Agencies: SFCJPA, East Palo Alto, Menlo Park, Palo Alto, SCVWD, 
SMCFCD 

Funding Sources:  SFCJPA Operational Funds  

Project Summary:  The SFCJPA is in the process of preparing to place a special 
finance initiative on the ballot that would provide for local construction funding for the 
project elements needed to advance the 50-year protection baseline project to the 
100-year protection level, and potentially provide for construction funding for coastal 
levee improvements. 
 
Status:  The SFCJPA has secured a consultant to advise on the options of creating 
a special finance district, and will proceed with developing the appropriate 
documents at the direction of the SFCJPA. 

Anticipated Completion Date:   2015 

 

PAGE 68



SM

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 69



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 70



	  

Memorandum	  

Date:	   March	  25,	  2013	  

To:	   Kevin	  Murray,	  Project	  Manager,	  San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  JPA	  
Len	  Materman,	  Executive	  Director,	  San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  JPA	  

Cc:	   Matthew	  Jones,	  ICF	  International	  
Alexa	  LaPlante,	  ICF	  International	  

From:	   Karen	  Molinari,	  KM	  Consulting	  
Jennifer	  Rogers,	  ICF	  International	  

Subject:	   San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  Flood	  Protection,	  Ecosystem	  
Restoration,	  and	  Recreation	  Project,	  Upstream	  of	  Highway	  101	  

DRAFT	  	  Public	  Outreach	  Plan	  

	  

Introduction/Purpose	  	  
The	  primary	  goals	  of	  this	  project,	  led	  by	  the	  San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  Joint	  Powers	  Authority	  (SFCJPA),	  
are	  to	  protect	  life	  and	  property	  in	  the	  cities	  of	  Palo	  Alto,	  Menlo	  Park,	  and	  East	  Palo	  Alto	  at	  risk	  from	  San	  
Francisquito	  Creek	  floodwaters	  overbanking	  between	  Highway	  101	  and	  El	  Camino	  Real,	  and	  to	  provide	  
ecosystem	  and	  recreational	  benefits.	  The	  SFCJPA,	  along	  with	  ICF	  International	  (ICF),	  is	  preparing	  the	  
California	  Environmental	  Quality	  Act	  (CEQA)	  documents	  necessary	  to	  disclose	  the	  potential	  impacts	  on	  
the	  built	  and	  natural	  environments	  caused	  by	  construction	  of	  this	  project.	  These	  documents	  will	  also	  
include	  analysis	  of	  viable	  project	  alternatives	  and	  outline	  mitigation	  measures,	  which	  could	  reduce	  any	  
identified	  significant	  impacts	  related	  to	  implementing	  this	  project.	  	  

An	  integral	  component	  of	  this	  project,	  and	  one	  that	  will	  greatly	  influence	  its	  planning	  efficiency	  and	  
ultimate	  success,	  is	  a	  transparent	  and	  proactive	  outreach	  strategy	  that	  enables	  the	  SFCJPA	  to	  consider	  
and	  incorporate	  the	  interests	  of	  the	  project	  partners,	  property	  owners,	  residents	  and	  businesses	  within	  
the	  watershed,	  as	  well	  as	  conservation	  and	  recreational	  interests,	  community	  and	  nongovernmental	  
organizations,	  elected	  officials,	  and	  other	  interested	  members	  of	  the	  general	  public.	  This	  outreach	  plan	  
(Plan)	  outlines	  the	  strategies	  ICF’s	  outreach	  team	  will	  employ,	  in	  cooperation	  with	  SFCJPA,	  to	  ensure	  
the	  public	  is	  informed	  and	  engaged	  during	  each	  step	  of	  the	  project’s	  planning	  process.	  This	  plan	  is	  
divided	  into	  the	  following	  sections.	  

l Project	  Background	  

l Outreach	  Philosophy,	  Goals	  and	  Objectives	  

l Outreach	  Strategies	  and	  Practices	  

l Evaluation	  of	  Outreach	  Plan	  Implementation	  	  

ATTACHMENT C

PAGE 71



San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  Flood	  Protection,	  Ecosystem	  Restoration,	  and	  Recreation	  Project	  –	  Upstream	  of	  Hwy.	  101	  
DRAFT	  Public	  Outreach	  Plan	  
March	  25,	  2013	  
Page	  2	  of	  8	  

	  
Project	  Background	  

The	  San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  watershed	  encompasses	  a	  45	  square	  mile	  basin,	  extending	  from	  Skyline	  
Boulevard	  to	  the	  San	  Francisco	  Bay.	  The	  watershed	  includes	  public	  lands	  and	  numerous	  private	  
landowners	  in	  the	  cities	  of	  East	  Palo	  Alto,	  Menlo	  Park,	  Palo	  Alto,	  Portola	  Valley,	  and	  Woodside;	  	  
unincorporated	  areas	  of	  San	  Mateo	  and	  Santa	  Clara	  counties;	  and	  Stanford	  University.	  San	  Francisquito	  
Creek	  begins	  at	  the	  confluence	  of	  Corte	  Madera	  Creek	  and	  Bear	  Creek,	  just	  below	  Searsville	  Dam	  in	  
Stanford	  University’s	  Jasper	  Ridge	  Biological	  Preserve.	  The	  lower	  reach	  of	  the	  creek	  runs	  through	  
urbanized	  areas	  and	  bisects	  an	  approximately	  5-‐square-‐mile	  floodplain	  that	  extends	  from	  San	  
Francisco	  Bay	  to	  Middlefield	  Road.	  In	  1998	  the	  creek	  overbanked	  and	  caused	  significant	  damage	  to	  the	  
area	  and	  the	  following	  year,	  the	  cities	  of	  East	  Palo	  Alto,	  Menlo	  Park,	  and	  Palo	  Alto;	  and	  the	  Santa	  
Clara	  Valley	  Water	  District	  and	  San	  Mateo	  County	  Flood	  Control	  District	  formed	  the	  San	  
Francisquito	   Creek	  Joint	  Powers	  Authority	  as 	  an 	  agency . 	  

The	  SFCJPA	  is	  taking	  a	  phased	  approach	  to	  the	  planning,	  design,	  permitting	  and	  implementation	  of	  
flood	  protection	  improvements	  for	  segments	  of	  San	  Francisquito	  Creek.	  The	  SFCJPA	  certified	  the	  
environmental	  impact	  report	  (EIR)	  for	  its	  San	  Francisco	  Bay	  to	  Highway	  101	  Project,	  and	  intends	  to	  
begin	  construction	  of	  in	  2013.	  	  Construction	  of	  the	  Caltrans	  Highway	  101/Bayshore	  Frontage	  Roads	  
Project	  is	  scheduled	  to	  begin	  in	  2014,	  and	  design	  work	  to	  replace	  the	  Newell	  Road,	  Pope-‐Chaucer	  Street	  
and	  Middlefield	  Road	  bridges,	  and	  widen	  the	  channel	  at	  various	  constriction	  points	  between	  Highway	  
101	  and	  El	  Camino	  Real,	  are	  underway.	  Three	  alternatives	  that	  would	  complement	  these	  project	  
elements	  to	  protect	  against	  a	  100-‐year	  flood	  have	  been	  developed	  to	  the	  30%	  design	  level.	  	  The	  next	  
step,	  which	  SFCJPA	  is	  taking	  with	  this	  project,	  is	  to	  perform	  a	  joint	  project/program-‐level	  analysis	  of	  
the	  watershed	  upstream	  of	  West	  Bayshore	  Road.	  The	  project	  elements	  to	  be	  constructed	  would	  contain	  
within	  the	  channel,	  or	  a	  combination	  of	  the	  channel	  and	  underground	  culvert	  or	  water	  detention	  
facility,	  the	  100-‐year	  or	  1%	  flood	  flow	  through	  the	  project	  reach,	  and	  would	  provide	  defined	  ecosystem	  
and	  recreational	  enhancements.	  A	  separate	  SFCJPA	  project	  to	  eliminate	  the	  threat	  of	  S.F.	  Bay	  flooding	  
and	  Sea	  Level	  Rise,	  and	  allow	  historic	  Bay	  marshes	  to	  be	  restored	  and	  Bay	  trails	  to	  be	  constructed,	  will	  
begin	  with	  the	  design	  and	  environmental	  review	  of	  a	  Bay	  levee	  system	  in	  the	  spring	  of	  2013	  

SFCJPA	  has	  made	  it	  a	  priority	  to	  listen	  to,	  involve,	  and	  educate	  the	  public	  during	  each	  project	  phase.	  
SFCJPA	  remains	  committed	  to	  public	  outreach	  and	  engagement	  in	  this	  next	  phase,	  especially	  in	  light	  of	  
heightened	  public	  awareness	  with	  the	  storm	  damage	  and	  flooding	  in	  December	  2012.	  	  

Outreach	  Philosophy,	  Goals	  and	  Objectives	  
The	  SFCJPA,	  in	  coordination	  with	  ICF,	  will	  conduct	  an	  outreach	  program	  that	  sustains	  an	  open	  and	  
transparent	  process	  for	  the	  planning	  and	  construction	  phases	  of	  this	  project.	  Outreach	  will	  be	  proactive	  
and	  conducted	  early	  and	  consistently	  at	  key	  project	  milestones.	  This	  approach	  will	  engage	  
stakeholders,	  build	  trust,	  and	  help	  identify	  hot-‐topic	  issues	  earlier	  in	  the	  process.	  Early	  identification	  
and	  resolution	  of	  concerns	  will	  help	  avoid	  project	  delays	  due	  to	  community	  opposition.	  	  

	  

PAGE 72



San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  Flood	  Protection,	  Ecosystem	  Restoration,	  and	  Recreation	  Project	  –	  Upstream	  of	  Hwy.	  101	  
DRAFT	  Public	  Outreach	  Plan	  
March	  25,	  2013	  
Page	  3	  of	  8	  

	  
The	  goal	  of	  the	  Plan	  is	  to	  implement	  a	  public	  outreach	  process	  that	  provides	  information	  in	  an	  
accessible,	  timely	  manner	  and	  via	  a	  forum	  where	  agency,	  stakeholder,	  and	  general	  public	  comments	  are	  
solicited	  and	  incorporated	  as	  feasible.	  	  Specific	  objectives	  of	  the	  Plan	  are	  listed	  below.	  

l Communicate	  clearly	  the	  need	  for,	  and	  purpose	  and	  details	  of,	  the	  project	  

l Educate	  stakeholders	  and	  interested	  parties	  about	  the	  environmental	  process,	  multi-‐agency	  
complexity,	  and	  schedule	  

l Provide	  opportunities	  for	  meaningful	  public	  participation	  and	  ensure	  the	  public	  understands	  how	  
their	  comments	  will	  be	  responded	  to	  and	  incorporated	  as	  appropriate	  

l Generate	  confidence	  and	  credibility	  in	  the	  process	  and	  project	  

Outreach	  Strategies	  and	  Practices	  	  
Listed	  below	  are	  the	  strategies	  and	  practices	  that	  will	  be	  conducted	  to	  achieve	  these	  objectives.	  	  

Stakeholder	  Identification	  and	  Assessment	  
At	  the	  onset	  of	  the	  public	  outreach	  effort,	  key	  stakeholder	  groups	  will	  be	  identified	  within	  the	  project	  
area.	  This	  will	  allow	  the	  outreach	  team	  to	  determine	  and	  track	  the	  specific	  issues	  and	  concerns	  of	  these	  
groups	  and	  address	  them	  in	  the	  outreach	  effort.	  Understanding	  the	  relevant	  issues	  for	  each	  target	  
audience	  allows	  the	  project	  team	  to	  tailor	  an	  approach	  to	  each	  group	  based	  on	  their	  concern.	  Known	  
stakeholders	  are	  listed	  in	  Attachment	  A.	  	  

A	  stakeholder	  database	  will	  be	  developed	  including	  contact	  information	  as	  well	  as	  areas	  of	  
interest/concern	  for	  each	  group.	  This	  will	  provide	  SFCJPA	  with	  an	  information	  hub	  to	  track	  and	  
respond	  to	  stakeholder	  concerns.	  This	  database	  will	  be	  updated	  as	  needed	  at	  key	  project	  milestones.	  

Some	  stakeholders,	  such	  as	  large	  property	  owners,	  will	  require	  additional	  involvement	  due	  to	  the	  
possibility	  that	  alternatives	  under	  evaluation	  would	  impact	  their	  land.	  	  Because	  this	  project	  will	  
evaluate	  the	  potential	  use	  of	  lands	  owned	  by	  Stanford	  University,	  the	  SFCJPA	  will	  work	  closely	  with	  the	  
University	  throughout	  the	  planning	  process.	  	  

Key	  Message	  Development	  	  
To	  ensure	  consistent	  and	  clear	  communication,	  general	  language	  and	  topic-‐specific	  messages	  will	  be	  
developed	  and	  tailored	  for	  use	  in	  informational	  materials,	  as	  well	  as	  talking	  points	  for	  speaking	  
opportunities.	  Utilizing	  key	  messages	  will	  help	  maintain	  consistency	  in	  what	  information	  is	  relayed	  to	  
the	  public,	  and	  when.	  This	  consistency	  will	  help	  avoid	  public	  confusion	  or	  contradiction	  in	  information	  
shared	  by	  each	  of	  the	  project	  partners.	  	  

Messages	  will	  be	  designed	  to	  provide	  context	  as	  to	  how	  the	  multiple	  interests	  and	  objectives	  within	  the	  
overall	  watershed	  are	  being	  addressed.	  	  These	  messages	  will	  be	  relayed	  in	  public	  meetings,	  key	  
stakeholder	  meetings,	  all	  written	  materials,	  the	  media,	  and	  other	  agencies.	  

PAGE 73



San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  Flood	  Protection,	  Ecosystem	  Restoration,	  and	  Recreation	  Project	  –	  Upstream	  of	  Hwy.	  101	  
DRAFT	  Public	  Outreach	  Plan	  
March	  25,	  2013	  
Page	  4	  of	  8	  

	  

Key	  messages	  will	  address	  the	  relationship	  between	  the	  three	  core	  elements	  of	  the	  project:	  
flood	  protection,	  ecosystem	  restoration,	  and	  recreational	  amenities	  that	  connect	  communities.	  	  
The	  SFCJPA	  considers	  all	  of	  these	  elements	  vital	  to	  the	  overall	  success	  of	  the	  project.	  	  

Public	  Meetings	  
Public	  scoping	  meeting(s)	  and	  Draft	  Environmental	  Impact	  Report	  (DEIR)	  public	  meeting(s)	  will	  be	  
held	  during	  the	  environmental	  review	  process	  to	  share	  information	  and	  receive	  input.	  	  

Scoping	  meeting(s)	  will	  be	  held	  prior	  to	  the	  start	  of	  the	  environmental	  analysis	  and	  alternatives	  
development.	  These	  meetings	  will	  inform	  the	  public	  of	  the	  proposed	  action,	  the	  environmental	  process,	  
and	  ask	  for	  input	  on	  the	  scope	  of	  resources	  analyzed	  in	  the	  DEIR.	  Informational	  materials,	  described	  
below,	  will	  be	  utilized	  at	  these	  meetings.	  Scoping	  is	  a	  required	  element	  of	  the	  CEQA	  process.	  	  

Once	  the	  DEIR	  is	  released,	  public	  meeting(s)	  will	  be	  held	  to	  solicit	  input	  on	  the	  draft	  document.	  
Stakeholders	  will	  be	  able	  to	  provide	  meaningful	  input	  orally	  or	  in	  written	  format.	  Specific	  time	  and	  
locations	  of	  these	  meetings	  is	  yet	  to	  be	  determined	  and	  will	  align	  with	  key	  project	  milestones.	  
Informational	  materials,	  mentioned	  below,	  will	  be	  utilized	  at	  these	  meetings	  as	  well.	  	  A	  meeting	  to	  allow	  
comments	  on	  the	  DEIR	  is	  required	  by	  CEQA	  after	  the	  release	  of	  the	  draft	  document.	  	  

Comments	  received	  throughout	  the	  life	  of	  the	  project	  (during	  specified	  times)	  will	  inform	  the	  decisions	  
of	  SFCJPA	  and	  help	  shape	  the	  project.	  	  

Informational	  Materials	  	  
To	  effectively	  inform	  target	  audiences	  about	  the	  project	  and	  planning	  process,	  collateral	  materials	  will	  
be	  developed	  and	  distributed	  to	  support	  public	  meetings	  and	  other	  outreach	  efforts.	  All	  materials	  will	  
be	  understandable	  to	  the	  public	  and	  designed	  for	  the	  project	  website.	  Materials	  will	  give	  context	  of	  
other	  efforts	  in	  the	  watershed,	  address	  the	  purpose	  and	  need	  for	  the	  project,	  the	  project	  timeline,	  and	  
ways	  to	  provide	  input.	  Below	  are	  examples	  of	  how	  information	  may	  be	  disseminated.	  

Project	  Newsletter	  /	  E-‐Newsletter	  
At	  the	  onset	  of	  the	  project,	  all	  contacts	  from	  the	  SFCJPA	  will	  be	  compiled	  in	  Constant	  Contact	  to	  be	  
managed	  for	  the	  duration	  of	  the	  project.	  This	  one-‐page	  e-‐newsletter	  will	  provide	  updates	  on	  all	  project	  
elements	  and	  will	  include	  hyperlinks	  to	  where	  stakeholders	  can	  learn	  more	  about	  each	  project	  element	  
online.	  	  At	  key	  times	  in	  the	  project	  process	  beginning	  in	  2013,	  in	  coordination	  with	  staff	  from	  the	  
SFCJPA	  and	  its	  Member	  Agencies,	  ICF	  will	  provide	  content	  for	  six	  newsletters	  describing	  SFCJPA-‐related	  
projects,	  the	  EIR	  process,	  background	  information,	  public	  participation	  opportunities,	  and	  schedule.	  	  
The	  newsletters	  will	  be	  sent	  via	  email	  or	  mail	  to	  stakeholders	  (including	  agencies	  and	  elected	  officials),	  
posted	  to	  the	  agency	  website	  and	  produced	  as	  hardcopies	  as	  needed.	  

As	  we	  anticipate	  approximately	  eight	  months	  between	  the	  scoping	  public	  comment	  period	  and	  the	  
public	  DEIR	  comment	  period,	  SFCJPA	  may	  choose	  to	  provide	  a	  newsletter	  in	  autumn	  2013	  to	  keep	  
stakeholders	  abreast	  of	  project	  status,	  the	  environmental	  process,	  and	  opportunities	  for	  input.	  This	  can	  
serve	  to	  keep	  the	  public	  up-‐to-‐date,	  despite	  several	  months	  separating	  formal	  comment	  opportunities.	  	  

PAGE 74



San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  Flood	  Protection,	  Ecosystem	  Restoration,	  and	  Recreation	  Project	  –	  Upstream	  of	  Hwy.	  101	  
DRAFT	  Public	  Outreach	  Plan	  
March	  25,	  2013	  
Page	  5	  of	  8	  

	  

Fact	  Sheet	  and	  Frequently	  Asked	  Questions	  Page	  

ICF	  will	  provide	  content	  for	  two	  (2)	  fact	  sheets	  outlining	  the	  issues,	  approach,	  methodology,	  goals	  and	  
objectives,	  and	  status	  of	  the	  project.	  These	  will	  be	  available	  in	  hard	  copy	  at	  public	  meetings,	  posted	  to	  
the	  website	  and	  available	  via	  project	  partners	  (e.g.,	  city	  hall	  and	  district	  lobby	  displays,	  libraries,	  
community	  centers).	  	  	  Additionally,	  a	  frequently	  asked	  questions	  (FAQ)	  list	  compiling	  typical	  and	  
anticipated	  questions	  and	  answers	  will	  provide	  information	  in	  a	  proactive	  manner.	  ICF	  will	  assist	  with	  
the	  development	  of	  an	  FAQ	  which	  will	  be	  available	  online,	  at	  meetings,	  and	  via	  project	  partners.	  

Key	  Stakeholder	  Meeting	  

Prior	  to	  scoping,	  SFCJPA	  will	  engage	  key	  stakeholders	  (non-‐government	  organizations,	  environmental	  
groups,	  interested	  resident	  and	  business	  groups)	  who	  may	  be	  directly	  affected	  by	  the	  project,	  in	  a	  small	  
meeting	  format.	  	  	  The	  goal	  of	  this	  meeting	  in	  the	  second	  half	  of	  April	  2013	  will	  be	  to	  introduce	  the	  project,	  
the	  suite	  of	  potential	  alternatives,	  and	  the	  Comprehensive	  Plan.	  This	  will	  also	  be	  an	  opportunity	  to	  highlight	  
milestones	  within	  the	  project	  where	  input	  will	  be	  solicited,	  beginning	  with	  scoping	  in	  late-‐May	  2013.	  	  

This	  meeting	  is	  intended	  to	  reach	  10–15	  people	  providing	  more	  direct	  engagement	  in	  which	  ideas	  and	  
concerns	  can	  be	  clearly	  heard	  and	  shared	  face-‐to-‐face.	  	  This	  meeting	  will	  ensure	  that	  the	  SFCJPA	  
receives	  input	  and	  identifies	  concerns	  early	  on	  in	  the	  process	  so	  that	  they	  may	  inform	  the	  project	  from	  
the	  start.	  Maps	  and	  general	  project	  information	  will	  be	  presented	  to	  these	  groups.	  	  	  This	  meeting	  will	  
likely	  occur	  in	  the	  second	  half	  of	  April.	  

Website	  Enhancements	  

The	  SFCJPA.org	  website	  will	  serve	  as	  the	  primary	  interface	  for	  this	  project	  and	  the	  agency	  as	  a	  whole.	  
This	  will	  provide	  opportunities	  for	  people	  to	  subscribe	  to	  newsletter	  updates,	  learn	  more	  about	  the	  
project,	  and	  be	  notified	  about	  project	  meetings.	  	  

Webpage	  text	  will	  be	  developed	  to	  add	  to	  the	  existing	  text	  the	  SFCJPA	  has	  online	  about	  this	  project.	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
The	  new	  text	  will	  address	  the	  purpose	  and	  need	  of	  this	  project,	  the	  environmental	  process,	  input	  
opportunities	  (meeting	  dates	  and	  times),	  and	  environmental	  and	  construction	  timeline.	  Meeting	  
materials	  will	  also	  be	  posted	  on	  this	  site	  as	  a	  record	  of	  what	  was	  presented	  at	  each	  meeting	  and	  for	  
those	  who	  were	  unable	  to	  attend.	  This	  provides	  the	  public	  with	  a	  one-‐stop	  shop	  for	  all	  information	  
related	  to	  the	  project	  at	  any	  time.	  Text	  will	  be	  consistent	  with	  key	  messages.	  	  Information	  will	  be	  
made	  available	  for	  posting	  to	  project	  partner	  and	  key	  stakeholder	  websites	  with	  links	  to	  the	  SFCJPA	  
for	  additional	  resources.	  

To	  enhance	  the	  SFCJPA	  website,	  ICF	  would	  take	  professional,	  high-‐definition	  photographs	  to	  represent	  
reaches	  of	  the	  project	  area	  for	  website	  posting.	  	  Additionally,	  a	  graphic	  location	  map	  will	  be	  developed	  
with	  GPS	  points	  of	  each	  notable	  treatment,	  area	  of	  interest,	  and	  stretch	  of	  the	  project,	  to	  be	  posted	  on	  
the	  web	  pages.	  The	  photos	  will	  then	  be	  correlated	  to	  each	  GPS	  point	  on	  the	  map.	  When	  the	  user	  clicks	  
on	  each	  point,	  a	  photo	  and	  caption	  will	  pop	  up	  to	  give	  relevant	  information	  about	  that	  particular	  point	  
in	  the	  project	  area.	  	  	  

PAGE 75



San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  Flood	  Protection,	  Ecosystem	  Restoration,	  and	  Recreation	  Project	  –	  Upstream	  of	  Hwy.	  101	  
DRAFT	  Public	  Outreach	  Plan	  
March	  25,	  2013	  
Page	  6	  of	  8	  

	  

The	  website	  will	  include	  a	  “Get	  Involved”	  page	  that	  allows	  interested	  parties	  to	  enter	  their	  full	  contact	  
information,	  and	  solicit	  specific	  areas	  of	  interest	  related	  to	  flood	  risk-‐reduction	  efforts	  in	  the	  
watershed.	  	  A	  simple,	  optional,	  quantitative	  survey	  will	  be	  developed	  to	  solicit	  these	  areas	  of	  interest	  
from	  online	  visitors.	  	  All	  contact	  information	  received	  on	  the	  Web	  site	  will	  be	  fed	  into	  a	  stakeholder	  
database	  to	  be	  utilized	  by	  the	  SFCJPA.	  	  Additionally,	  a	  “Resources”	  page	  may	  hyperlink	  to	  the	  Websites	  
of	  partnering	  agencies,	  watershed	  stewardship	  groups,	  and	  other	  related	  Websites.	  This	  will	  allow	  the	  
public	  to	  gain	  a	  holistic	  view	  of	  cooperating	  partners.	  

	  

Meeting	  Presentations	  

An	  easily	  adaptable	  standard	  presentation	  will	  be	  developed	  to	  stage	  the	  environmental	  review	  
process.	  This	  presentation	  can	  be	  used	  at	  key	  stakeholder,	  scoping,	  and	  public	  meetings.	  	  ICF	  will	  assist	  
the	  SFCJPA	  in	  developing	  a	  PowerPoint	  presentation	  template,	  which	  the	  project	  team	  can	  tailor	  
according	  to	  meeting	  needs	  and	  audience.	  	  

Described	  below	  are	  additional	  informational	  materials	  that	  can	  be	  developed	  to	  specifically	  support	  
the	  public	  scoping	  and	  DEIR	  meetings.	  	  

l Public	  Meeting	  Announcement—The	  announcement,	  in	  the	  form	  of	  a	  one-‐page	  letter	  with	  
graphics,	  will	  provide	  brief	  information	  about	  the	  purpose	  of	  the	  meeting,	  along	  with	  details	  about	  
meeting	  location	  and	  time.	  This	  can	  be	  mailed	  to	  stakeholders	  or	  posted	  in	  common	  spaces.	  

l Advertisements—Paid	  display	  advertisements	  in	  major	  local	  papers	  will	  be	  secured	  to	  generate	  
publicity	  for	  the	  meetings	  and	  ensure	  a	  wide	  audience,	  outside	  the	  immediate	  area	  of	  impact,	  is	  
notified.	  These	  could	  also	  be	  enlarged	  and	  displayed	  at	  key	  public	  venues,	  such	  as	  city	  hall,	  libraries,	  
grocery	  stores	  and	  community	  centers.	  

l Displays	  Boards—Display	  boards	  will	  be	  prepared	  to	  provide	  visual	  information	  on	  a	  large	  scale.	  
These	  may	  include	  maps,	  process	  descriptions,	  project	  purpose	  and	  need,	  environmental	  review	  
process	  and	  public	  input	  opportunities.	  

	  

Media	  Relations	  

ICF	  may	  assist	  the	  SFCJPA	  with	  a	  media	  outreach	  approach	  outlining	  how	  information	  will	  be	  
disseminated	  to	  regional	  news	  outlets	  (e.g.,	  news	  releases,	  advisories	  at	  project	  milestones,	  and	  opinion	  
editorials),	  and	  develop	  press	  packets.	  SFCJPA	  Board	  and	  staff	  will	  take	  the	  lead	  on	  media	  relations,	  
consistent	  with	  the	  key	  messages	  that	  have	  been	  developed	  for	  the	  project.	  	  	  

The	  SFCJPA	  will	  pursue	  long-‐lead	  stories	  and/or	  a	  comprehensive	  system-‐wide	  expose	  with	  key	  
reporters	  covering	  the	  agency	  and	  flood	  events.	  	  This	  will	  provide	  the	  SFCJPA	  an	  opportunity	  to	  further	  
educate	  the	  media	  on	  the	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  and	  fully	  explain	  the	  individual/phased	  projects.	  

	  

PAGE 76



San	  Francisquito	  Creek	  Flood	  Protection,	  Ecosystem	  Restoration,	  and	  Recreation	  Project	  –	  Upstream	  of	  Hwy.	  101	  
DRAFT	  Public	  Outreach	  Plan	  
March	  25,	  2013	  
Page	  7	  of	  8	  

	  

Summary	  of	  Public	  Involvement	  Opportunities	  and	  Schedule	  
l One	  small	  stakeholder	  meeting	  (April	  2013)	  

l Scoping	  Meeting(s)	  	  (Second	  half	  of	  May/early	  June	  2013).	  	  	  

l Potential	  booths	  at	  well-‐attended	  local	  events	  (ongoing)	  

l Public	  DEIR	  Meeting	  and	  Comment	  Period	  (Early	  2014)	  

	  
2013	  TASKS	   Feb	   Mar	   April	   May	   June	   July	   Aug	   Sept	   Oct	   Nov	   Dec	  

Planning	   —	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  
Stakeholder	  
identification	  

—	   —	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  

Draft	  Materials	   	   —	   —	   —	   	   	   	   —	   	   	   —	  
Meetings	  w/	  
stakeholders	  &	  
impacted	  areas	  

	   	   —	   —	   —	   	   	   —	   	   —	   	  

Scoping	   	   	   	   —	   —	   	   	   	   	   	   	  
Media	  Advisories	   	   	   	   —	   	   	   	   —	   	   	   —	  
Roadshow/Events	   	   	   —	   —	   —	   	   	   —	   —	   	   	  

Evaluation	  of	  Outreach	  Plan	  Implementation	  
The	  evaluation	  of	  Plan	  implementation	  will	  occur	  periodically	  throughout	  the	  project	  and	  adjustments	  
will	  be	  made	  accordingly.	  As	  such,	  this	  Plan	  and	  associated	  outreach	  practices	  will	  be	  revised	  as	  
appropriate	  to	  align	  with	  new	  or	  changed	  conditions	  and	  goals.	  We	  can,	  however,	  gauge	  our	  efforts	  and	  
effectiveness	  on	  multiple	  levels,	  including	  those	  described	  below.	  

l Assess	  the	  level	  of	  stakeholder	  understanding	  of	  the	  current	  environmental	  process,	  project	  status	  
and	  goals.	  	  

l Assess	  the	  level	  of	  stakeholder	  satisfaction	  that	  the	  process	  is	  transparent	  and	  project	  goals	  are	  
understandable.	  

l Determine	  the	  public	  sentiment	  of	  whether	  public	  comments	  are	  being	  heard	  and	  understood.	  	  

l Determine	  the	  ability	  to	  maintain	  open	  and	  consistent	  lines	  of	  communication	  with	  cooperating	  and	  
participating	  agencies.	  

l Quantify	  the	  number	  of	  individuals	  participating	  in	  public	  meetings,	  small	  group	  discussions,	  etc.,	  
as	  well	  as	  the	  number	  of	  independent	  comments	  received.	  

###	  

PAGE 77



	  

Attachment	  A	  	  	  –	  	  	  Draft	  Stakeholder	  List	  

ID	  20	  Stakeholders	  for	  mid-‐April	  meeting	  

Federal,	  State,	  and	  Regional	  Gov’t	  
Agencies	  
USACE	  	  
NOAA	  /	  NMFS	  
USFWS	  
CDFW	  
CDWR	  
Caltrans	  
RWQCB	  
MPROSD	  
ABAG	  /	  Bay	  Trail	  

Local	  Government	  Entities	  &	  Programs	  
Bay	  Area	  IRWMP	  
City	  of	  East	  Palo	  Alto	  	  
City	  of	  Menlo	  Park	  
City	  of	  Palo	  Alto	  
City	  Park	  Departments	  

Community	  Services	  Dept	  (MP)	  
Open	  Space,	  Parks	  &	  Golf	  Admin	  (PA)	  
Youth	  &	  Family	  Services	  (EPA)	  

San	  Mateo	  County	  
Santa	  Clara	  County	  
SCVURPPP	  (Santa	  Clara	  Storm	  water)	  
SCVWD	  
SFPUC	  	  
San	  Mateo	  C/CAG	  Water	  Pollution	  Prevention	  	  

Neighborhood	  Associations	  

Palo	  Alto	  
Palo	  Alto	  Area	  Neighborhoods	  (PAN)	  
Crescent	  Park	  Neighborhood	  Association	  
Duveneck/St.	  Francis	  Neighborhood	  Assn.	  
Downtown	  North	  Neighborhood	  Assoc.	  
Community	  Center	  Neighbors	  Association	  
Leland	  Manor	  
Middlefield	  Road	  Residents’	  Association	  
Evergreen	  Park	  
Southgate	  Neighborhood	  Watch	  

Menlo	  Park	  
Creekshire	  Group	  
Linfield	  Oaks	  
Willows	  Neighborhood	  Association	  

East	  Palo	  Alto	  
Cummings	  Park	  	  
Gardens	  Neighborhood	  Association	  
Gateway	  101	  
University	  Circle	  
University	  Palms	  Senior	  Center	  

Private	  Institutions	  
German	  American	  School	  
Stanford	  University	  

NGOs	  
ACTERRA	  
American	  Rivers	  
Beyond	  Searsville	  Dam	  
CLEAN	  South	  Bay	   	  
Collective	  Roots	  
Committee	  for	  Green	  Foothills	  
Linked	  In	  (EPA	  community	  non-‐profit)	  
Portola	  Valley	  Open	  Space	  Acquisition	  Adv.	  Comm.	  
San	  Francisco	  Bay	  Joint	  Venture	  
San	  Francisco	  Estuary	  Institute	  
Santa	  Clara	  County	  Creeks	  Coalition	  
Santa	  Clara	  Valley	  Audubon	  Society	  
Sequoia	  Audubon	  Society	  
South	  Valley	  Streams	  for	  Tomorrow	  
Save	  the	  Bay	  
Urban	  Creeks	  Council	  

Local	  Businesses	  	  
Chambers	  of	  Commerce	  
East	  Palo	  Alto	  Community	  Farmers	  Market	  
Edgewood	  Plaza	  merchants	  
Mi	  Pueblo	  Grocery	  
Willows	  neighborhood	  merchants	  	  
Property	  Owners	  and	  Tenants	  
University	  Square/Gateway	  101	  

Utilities	  
PG&E	  
City	  of	  Palo	  Alto	  Utilities	  
Local	  sanitation	  districts	  

School	  Districts	  
Menlo	  Park	  City	  School	  District	  
Palo	  Alto	  Unified	  School	  District	  
Ravenswood	  City	  School	  District	  
Sequoia	  Union	  High	  School	  District	  

Individual	  Stakeholders	  
Local	  Churches	  
Trail	  Groups	  	  
PAMP	  (Parent’s	  Club)	  

Local	  Media	  
Palo	  Alto	  Weekly	  /	  The	  Almanac	  
East	  Palo	  Alto	  Today	  
EPA.net	  
Palo	  Alto	  Daily	  Post	  
East	  Palo	  Alto	  Today	  
San	  Jose	  Mercury	  News	  
Palo	  Alto	  Daily	  News	  

PAGE 78



 

  CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
  

 
 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-064 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-5 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Authorize the City Manager to Enter Into an 

Agreement with Municipal Revenue Advisors, Inc., 
to Perform Sales and Use Tax Services in 
Connection with the Development Agreement for 
the Facebook West Campus Project and Approval 
of a Resolution Authorizing the Examination of 
Sales and Use Tax Records by Municipal Revenue 
Advisors, Inc. 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Municipal Revenue Advisors, Inc., to perform sales and use tax 
services in connection with the Development Agreement for the Facebook West 
Campus project and adopt a resolution authorizing the examination of sales and use tax 
records by Municipal Revenue Advisors, Inc. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Development Agreement for the Facebook West Campus provides that Facebook 
will cooperate with the City and its consultant to maximize sales and use tax revenues 
to the City of Menlo Park from construction activities and initial purchases of personal 
property and equipment for the Facebook West Campus as set forth in the 
Development Agreement.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
City staff does not have the capacity or the expertise to work with Facebook, the State 
Board of Equalization and Facebook’s general contractor and sub-contractors to 
establish a program to maximize sales and use tax revenue to the City from these 
activities. Municipal Revenue Advisors, Inc., (MRA) specializes in this type of work and 
will work with Facebook and its general contractor and its sub-contractors to establish a 
program to maximize sales and use tax to the City. The City’s former Finance Director, 
the City Manager and the City Attorney interviewed the principals of MRA and are 
satisfied that MRA and its principals have the qualifications and capacity to perform 
these services to maximize sales and use taxes to the City from the Facebook West 
Campus.  

PAGE 79



IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
As compensation for the services performed, MRA will be paid 25% of the realized 
benefits of MRA’s work based on the net increase in sales and use tax revenue 
attributable to the Facebook West Campus evidenced by the City’s State Board of 
Equalization Quarterly Detail Reports for a total of eleven calendar quarters. MRA will 
only be compensated from the net increase in sales and use taxes received by the City 
from the Facebook West Campus (i.e. the gross amount of sales and use taxes 
allocated as coming from the Facebook West Campus from construction contracts 
and/or purchases of personal property and equipment, minus the share the City would 
have received from countywide use tax pools). To the extent there are no sales or use 
tax revenues received attributable solely to the Facebook West Campus, there will be 
no cost to the City. The compensation to MRA is generally consistent with other 
consulting contracts for similar services. It is difficult to estimate the net amount of 
increased revenue the City might receive as result of these efforts, but it is possible that 
the net amount could exceed several hundred thousand dollars and possibly 
considerably more. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
There are no policy implications as this is a program approved as part of the 
Development Agreement for the Facebook West Campus. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
This is not a project under the California Environmental Quality Act; therefore, no 
environmental assessment is required. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Proposed Resolution 
 

Report prepared by: 
William L. McClure 
City Attorney 
 
 
 

PAGE 80



RESOLUTION NO.       
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK AUTHORIZING THE EXAMINATION OF SALES AND USE TAX 
RECORDS BY MUNICIPAL REVENUE ADVISORS, INCORPORATED 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park entered into a contract with the State Board of 
Equalization (SBOE) to perform all functions incident to the administration and collection 
of local sales and use tax; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park deems it desirable and necessary 
for authorized representatives of the City to examine confidential sales and use tax 
records of the SBOE pertaining to sales and use tax collected by the SBOE for the City 
pursuant to that contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code sets forth 
certain requirements and conditions for the disclosure of SBOE records, and 
establishes criminal penalties for the unlawful disclosure of information contained in, or 
derived from, sales and use tax records of the SBOE. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
that: 
 
1. The City Manager, Assistant City Manager, Finance Director, and other officers 

or employees of the City, designated in writing by the City Manager to the SBOE, 
are hereby appointed to represent the City with authority to examine sales and 
use tax records of the SBOE pertaining to sales and use taxes collected for the 
City by the SBOE pursuant to the contract between the City and SBOE. The 
information obtained by the examination of SBOE records shall be used only for 
purposes related to the collection of City sales and use tax by the SBOE 
pursuant to that contract.  

 
2. That Municipal Revenue Advisors, Inc., designated in writing by the City Manager 

to the SBOE, is hereby appointed to represent the City with authority to examine 
those sales and use tax records of the SBOE, for the purposes related to the 
following governmental functions of the City: 

 
2.1. Sales and economic analysis; 
2.2. Allocation audit and recovery; and 
2.3. Ongoing consultation. 
 

The entity, designated in writing by the City Manager to the SBOE, meets all the 
following conditions: 

 
(a) has an existing contract with the City to examine those sales and use tax 

records; 
(b) is required by that contract to disclose information contained in, or derived 

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 81



from, those sales and use tax records only to the officer or employee 
authorized under Paragraph 1 of this resolution to examine the 
information; 

(c) is prohibited by that contract from performing consulting services for a 
retailer during the term of that contract; and 

(d) is prohibited by that contract from retaining the information contained in, or 
derived from those sales and use tax records, after that contract has 
expired. 

 
3. The information obtained by examination of SBOE records shall be used only for 

the purposes related to the collection of City sales and use tax by the SBOE 
pursuant to the contract between the City and the SBOE. 

 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the sixteenth day of April, 2013, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this sixteenth day of April, 2013. 
 
 
  
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 
 

PAGE 82



 CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, March 26, 2013 at 6:00 p.m. 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
City Council Chambers 

 
Mayor Ohtaki called the Study Session to order at 6:03 p.m. with all members present. 
 
SS1. Provide general direction on the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan; including capital and 

other projects to be included in the City Manager’s proposed 2013-14 budget  
(Staff report #2013-042) 

Staff presentation by Charles Taylor, Director of Public Works (PowerPoint) 
 
Public Comment 
• Henry Riggs addressed streamlining processes, El Camino Real, residential zoning, and a 

potential parking structure. 
• Fran Dehn, Chamber of Commerce, discussed that there are goals that are not reflected in 

the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  She asked that Santa Cruz be looked at like a 
project. 

• Elizabeth Houck asked if the irregation wells are included in the CIP and at what 
location(s). 

 
Council Members provided feedback to staff regarding the CIP. 
 
Mayor Ohtaki called the Regular Session to order at 7:13 p.m. with all members present. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
There were no announcements made. 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
A1. Proclamation declaring March Red Cross Month (Attachment) 
Mayor Ohtaki presented the proclamation to Matt Martel representing the Red Cross. 
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1 
NOTE:  Vice Mayor Mueller is recused from discussion on the Stanford Property and left the 
Council meeting during public comments on that topic. 
• Elizabeth Houck spoke regarding the underground AT&T Data Center across from her 

home which emits over 65 decibels 365 days a year and requested the council consider 
moving the high power lines that feed the data center to an alternative location.  She 
would like to see traffic calming on Middle Avenue. 

• Gita Dev, Sierra Club, requested that the Downtown Specific Plan be added to a future 
agenda for the one year review. 

• Susan Connelly requested the Downtown Specific Plan concerning the Stanford owned 
property be added to a future meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM D-6

PAGE 83

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/03/21/file_attachments/197995/SS1%2B-%2B5%2BYear%2BCIP__197995.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/09/file_attachments/202789/2012-13%2BCIP%2BPresentation%2B__202789.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/21/file_attachments/197998/A1%2B-%2BRed%2BCross%2BMonth%2B2013%2BProclamation__197998.pdf�


March 26, 2013 Minutes – Page 2 

  

• Matt Henry asked the Council to include his proposal for a feasibility study regarding a 
Library in Belle Haven in the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

• Cherie Zaslowsky requested that the City Council modify the General Plan and the 
Specific Plan. 

 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/Keith) to approve consent calendar items D1, D3, and D7 
passes unanimously. 
 
D1. Adopt Resolution No. 6127 approving the final map for the artisan subdivision located at 

389 El Camino Real; accepting dedication of a storm drain easement, a pedestrian access 
easement and an emergency vehicle access easement; approving the abandonment of 
Alto Lane and the existing storm drain easements; authorizing the City Clerk to sign the 
final map; and authorizing the City Manager to sign the subdivision improvement 
agreement (Staff report #13-045) 

 
D3. Authorize an increase to the construction agreement with G. Bortolotto & Co. Inc. for 

additional work associated with the 2012 Street Resurfacing of Federal Aid Routes Project 
[Federal Aid Project No. 04-5273 (021)],  in the amount of $45,000 and authorize a total 
budget of $617,169.39 for construction, contingencies, material testing, inspection and 
construction administration (Staff report #13-044) 

 
D7. Agenda item request for the City of Menlo Park to join the South Bay Waste Management 

Authority (SBWMA) Blue Ribbon Task Force (Attachment) 
 
D2. Adopt a resolution to approve an amendment to the water supply agreement with the City 

and County of San Francisco (Staff report #13-040) 
Item pulled by Council Member Keith for comments 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Carlton) to approve Resolution No. 6128 to approve an 
amendment to the water supply agreement with the City and County of San Francisco. 
 
D4. Approve two League of California Cities bylaws amendments (Staff report #13-039) 
Item pulled by Council Member Catherine Carlton 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/Cline) to approve bylaw amendment one and not to 
approve bylaw amendment two.  The motion was withdrawn by Council Member Carlton. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Mueller) to approve both bylaw amendments passes 
unanimously. 
 
D5. Accept minutes for the Council meetings of March 5 and March 12, 2013 (Attachment) 
Item pulled by Council Member Keith for an amendment 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/Keith) to approve the minutes with the amendment to 
March 5 passes unanimously. 
 
D6. Adopt the 2013 City Council goals (Staff report #13-047) 
Item pulled by Council Member Keith for questions 
 

PAGE 84

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/03/21/file_attachments/198008/D1%2B-%2B389%2BECR__198008.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/03/21/file_attachments/197997/D3%2B-%2BStreet%2BResurfacing__197997.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/21/file_attachments/198002/D7%2B-%2BKK%2BRequest%2Bre%2BSBWMA__198002.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/03/21/file_attachments/197996/D2%2B-%2BWater%2BSupply__197996.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/21/file_attachments/198000/D4%2B-%2BLCC%2BBylaws__198000.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/21/file_attachments/198009/D5%2B-%2BMinutes__198009.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/21/file_attachments/198001/D6%2B-%2BGoals__198001.pdf�


March 26, 2013 Minutes – Page 3 

  

ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Keith) to approve the City Council goals passes 
unanimously. 
 
D8. Approve a resolution disbanding certain Commissions and approve modifications to City 

Council Policy CC-01-0004: Commissions/Committees Policy and Procedures and Roles 
and Responsibilities and receive an update in recruitment (Staff report #13-038) 

Item pulled by Mayor Ohtaki for discussion and public input. 
 
Public Comment 
• Bianca Walser requested that staff recommendations regarding a commission be taken to 

the commission for input prior to being taken to Council.  
• Penelope Huang read her comments which supported leaving the Transportation 

Commission in the Chambers for their meetings. (Comments) 
• Elizabeth Houck stated that she would like a mediation body be established and would like 

to see all Commission meetings be held in the Council Chambers.  
• Charlie Bourne read a document to the Council supporting the work of the Transportation 

Commisson. (Handout) 
 
The Council requested that this item come back as a regular business item at a future date. 
 
NOTE: Item F2 was taken out of order at this time 
F2. Consider a request for architectural control, license agreement and encroachment permit, 

and heritage tree removal permits for a proposed limited-service, business-oriented hotel 
at 555 Glenwood Avenue (Staff report #13-043) 

Staff presentation by Thomas Rogers, Assistant Planner (PowerPoint) 
 
Reed Moulds, Sand Hill Property Company (applicant) made a presentation explaining the 
project. (Handout) 
 
NOTE: Council Member Carlton left the meeting at 9:05 p.m. 
 
Public Comments 
• Nicki Manske, San Mateo County Ombudsmen, has been working with the residents 

currently at 555 Glenwood and provided an update regarding the residents.   
• Patti Fry stated this is a good project and questioned the use of off-street parking on public 

right-of-way. 
• Elizabeth Houck spoke regarding the parking issues and the financial analysis for the 

project. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Mueller) taking the following actions passes 4-0-1 (Absent: 
Carlton): 
 

1. Made findings with regard to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) that the 
proposal is within the scope of the project covered by the El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan Program EIR, which was certified on June 5, 2012 as outlined in the staff 
report. 
 

2. Adopted the findings in the staff report, as per Section 16.68.020 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, pertaining to architectural control approval. 
 

PAGE 85

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/21/file_attachments/198003/D8%2B-%2BCommissions__198003.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/09/file_attachments/202778/D8%2B-%2BHuang%2B-%2BCommission%2Brelocation__202778.pdf�
http://www.menlopark.org/council/staffreport/F2-555_Glenwood_Ave.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/09/file_attachments/202791/glenwood-ave_0555_cc_20130326_presentation__202791.pdf�


March 26, 2013 Minutes – Page 4 

  

3. Approved the architectural control request subject to the standard conditions of approval 
as outlined in the staff report. 
 

4. Approved the architectural control request subject to the project-specific, construction-
related conditions of approval as outlined in the staff report. 
 

5. Approved the architectural control request subject to the project-specific, ongoing 
conditions of approval in the staff report with a modification to condition 5b.  Modified 
condition 5b shall read: 
 

Condition 5b: The applicant shall make a good-faith effort to explore the 
potential of a joint parking arrangement, on commercially reasonable terms, with 
the owners of the adjacent development site known as 1300 El Camino Real, or 
any other appropriate sites. 

 
6. Approved the license agreement and encroachment permit. 

 
7. Adopted Resolution No. 6129 a resolution approving heritage tree removal permits for 

the permits for the property located at 555 Glen. 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
E1. Consider a request for rezoning, conditional development permit, lot line adjustment, 

heritage tree removal permits, below market rate housing agreement, development 
agreement and environmental review for the Facebook West Campus located at the 
intersection of Bayfront Expressway and Willow Road (Staff report #13-041) 

NOTE: Assistant City Manager Starla Jerome Robinson announced that she has a conflict due 
to her husband’s employment and is therefore recused from the item and left the meeting at 
9:51 p.m. and returned at 10:39 p.m. 
 
Staff presentation by Rachel Grossman, Associate Planner (PowerPoint) 
 
Tucker Bounds, Greg Webb and Chris Guilard, representing the applicant, gave a presentation 
(PowerPoint) 
  
Mayor Ohtaki opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There were no public comments on this item. 
 
Motion and second (Cline/Keith) to close the Public Hearing passes 4-0-1 (Absent: Carlton) 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Keith) taking the following actions passes 4-0-1 (Absent: 
Carlton): 
 

• Approved Resolution No. 6130 adopting findings required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act, Statement of Overriding Considerations, and adopting a 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the property located at 312 and 313 
Constitution Drive;  

 
• Approved Resolution No. 6131 approving a Conditional Development Permit for the 

property located at 312 and 313 Constitution Drive;  

PAGE 86

http://www.menlopark.org/council/staffreport/E1-Facebook.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/09/file_attachments/202779/Facebook_West%2BCampus_PC_3_26_13__202779.pdf�


March 26, 2013 Minutes – Page 5 

  

 
• Approved Resolution No. 6132 approving the Below Market Rate Housing Agreement 

between the City of Menlo Park and Giant Properties, LLC;  
 

• Approved Resolution No. 6133 approving the lot line adjustment for Giant Properties; 
 

• Approved Resolution No. 6134 approving heritage tree removal permits for the property 
located at 312 and 313 Constitution Drive; 
 

• Introduced an Ordinance rezoning properties located at 312 and 313 Constitution Drive; 
and  

 
• Introduced an Ordinance approving the Development Agreement with Giant Properties, 

LLC for the properties located at 312 and 313 Constitution Drive.  
 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Accept the 2012-13 mid-year financial summary and adopt a resolution approving the 

recommended amendments to the 2012-13 operating and capital budgets  
 (Staff report #13-046) 
Staff presentation by Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City Manager 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Mueller/Cline) to approve Resolution No. 6135 adopting the 
2012-13 budget revisions to effect mid-year budget adjustments passes 4-0-1 (Absent: Carlton) 
 
F3. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 

such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item  
There were no legislative items discussed. 
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
There was no City Manager report given. 
 
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION  
There were no written communications. 
 
I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
There were no informational items. 
 
J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 
Council Members reported in compliance with AB1234 requirements. 
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2  
There were no public comments made. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:05 p.m. 
 

 

Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 

PAGE 87

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_104/2013/03/21/file_attachments/198005/F1%2B-%2BMid-Year%2BBudget__198005.pdf�


March 26, 2013 Minutes – Page 6 

  

City Clerk 
 
Minutes accepted at the Council meeting of  
 
 

PAGE 88



 CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, April 2, 2013 at 5:30 p.m. 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
City Council Chambers 

 
Mayor Ohtaki called the Study Session to order at 5:35 p.m. with Council Member Carlton 
absent. 
 
SS1. Council review and possible direction regarding the proposed SRI, International Campus 

Modernization Project and the associated draft public outreach and development 
agreement negotiation process (Staff report #13-050) 

Staff presentation by Rachel Grossman, Associate Planner (PowerPoint) (Handout) 
Presentation by Tom Furst, Senior VP & CFO of SRI, International (PowerPoint) 
 
Public Comment 
• Janet Elliot asked that the cumulative noise of the campus be taken into consideration. 
• Phillip Bahr appreciates many aspects of the project and encourages continued public 

transportation, avoid making an access point across from Pine Street and consider hiring 
locally for design and construction. 

• Britt Von Thaden is in general agreement with the project and his main concern is dealing 
with traffic in and out of the site.   

 
NOTE: Agenda Item A2 taken out of order at this time 
 
A2.  Proclamation: Honoring Marcel Vinokur (Attachment) 
Mayor Ohtaki presented the proclamation to Marcel Vinokur. 
 
SS2. Provide direction on the Climate Action Plan Update and Status Report, new measuring 

methodology for transportation greenhouse gas emissions, and a community greenhouse 
reduction target, and provide direction on funding in order to achieve target  

   (Staff report #13-051) 
Staff presentation by Rebecca Fotu, Environmental Programs Manager (PowerPoint) 
Environmental Quality Commission presentation by Chair Mitch Slomiak (PowerPoint) 
 
Public Comment 
• Gail Slocum urged the Council to move forward with aggressive targets.  
• Carol McClelland, GRCC, fully supportive of the EQC recommendations. 
• Bob Cohen asked the Council to examine the hard data.  He believes there are errors in 

the information.  (Handout) 
• Patti Fry is fully supportive of the EQCs aggressive recommendations.   
• Scott Marshall urged the Council to also address the building codes to align with reducing 

greenhouse gas emissions. 
• Adina Levin spoke about what other cities are doing regarding lowering green house gas 

emmissions. 
• Kristin Kuntz-Durisetti spoke to the benefits in reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
• Cherie Zaslowsky urged the Council to do their due diligence before taking action.  

PAGE 89

http://www.menlopark.org/council/staffreport/SS1-SRI.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/11/file_attachments/203421/SS1%2B-%2BSRI%2BCampus%2BModernization%2BProject_Staff%2BPresentation__203421.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/02/file_attachments/200872/SS1%2B-%2BSRI%2BAdditional%2BCorrespondence__200872.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/02/file_attachments/200887/SS1%2B-%2BSRI%2BApplicant%2BPP__200887.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199826/A2%2B-%2BMarcel%2BVinokur__199826.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199837/SS2%2B-%2BClimate%2BAction%2BPlan__199837.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/11/file_attachments/203423/SS2%2B-%2BClimate%2BAction%2BPlan__203423.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/11/file_attachments/203424/SS2%2B-%2BEQC_CAPTargetReportSummary_FINAL_010913%2Brev%2B022713%2B%25282%2529__203424.pdf�


April 2, 2013 Minutes – Page 2 

  

• Alex Cannara stated the recommendations are insufficient to address the problems that 
exist. 

 
ACTION: The Council provided their feedback and took no formal action on the item. 

 
Mayor Ohtaki called the Regular Session to order at 8:38 p.m. with Council Member Carlton 
absent. 
 
Mayor Ohtaki led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
There were no announcements made. 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
A1. Proclamation: National Library Week, April 14-20, 2013 (Attachment) 
Mayor Ohtaki presented the proclamation to Michelle Figueras from the Library Commission, 
Anna Chow, President of the Library Foundation and Monica Carman.  
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS 
There were no appointments or reports. 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1  
• Mickie Winnler, being a proxy for from Henry Riggs, read a letter speaking on behalf of 

Lee Duboc regarding having study sessions regarding unions and moving towards 
becoming a Charter City. 

• Jym clendenin, Sister City Project Group, gave a report regarding forming a Sister City 
relationship with the Village of Menlough, Ireland.  (Handout) 
 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
D1. Waive the reading and adopt ordinances approving the Rezoning and the Development 

Agreement for the Facebook West Campus located at the intersection of Bayfront 
Expressway and Willow Road (Staff report #13-054) 

Ordinance No. 990: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
rezoning properties located at 312 and 313 Constitution Drive 
 
Ordinance No. 991: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
approving the Development Agreement with Giant Properties, LLC for the property 
located at 312 and 313 Constitution Drive  

ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Cline) to approve Ordinances 990 and 991 passes 4-0-1 
(Absent: Carlton). 
 
D2. Authorize the City Manager to execute master agreements for professional services with 

multiple consulting firms for engineering, surveying, inspection, testing and other 
administration services (Staff report #13-052) 

This item pulled by Council Member Mueller for questions. 
 

PAGE 90

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199835/A1%2B-%2BNLW%2B2013__199835.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/03/file_attachments/201119/040213%2B-%2BPublic%2BComment%2B-%2BJym%2BClendenin__201119.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199849/D1%2B-%2BFB__199849.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199850/D2%2B-%2BMaster%2BAgreements__199850.pdf�


April 2, 2013 Minutes – Page 3 

  

ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Mueller) to authorize the City Manager to execute master 
agreements for professional services with multiple consulting firms for engineering, surveying, 
inspection, testing and other administration services passes 4-0-1 (Absent: Carlton). 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
E1. Adopt a resolution amending the City’s Master Fee Schedule to incorporate proposed 

changes in fees to become effective immediately or July 1, 2013 or as required by statute 
for the following departments: Community Services, Library, Police and Public Works 
(Staff report #13-048) 

Staff presentation by John McGirr, Revenue and Claims Manager 
 
The Public Hearing was opened at 9:01 p.m. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Keith) to close the Public Hearing passes 4-0-1 (Absent: 
Carlton) at 9:01 p.m. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Keith) to approve Resolution No. 6136 amending the 
City’s Master Fee Schedule to incorporate proposed changes in fees to become effective 
immediately or July 1, 2013 or as required by statute for the following departments: Community 
Services, Library, Police and Public Works passes 4-0-1 (Absent: Carlton). 
 
ACTION: The City Council directed staff to incorporate mediation in the process for appeals and 
bring back the appeal fees with the cost built in.  
 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Memorandum from Council Members Keith and Cline requesting Council place review of 

500 El Camino Real/Stanford Project on the April 16, 2013 City Council meeting agenda 
 (Attachment) 
NOTE: Vice Mayor Mueller announced he is recused on the item due to the proximity of 
previously owned property and left the Council Chambers at 9:08 p.m. 
 
Presentation by Council Members Keith and Cline 
 
Public Comment 
• Vince Bressler stated that there was a mistake made with this parcel and requested the 

staff report to be clear and to state a provision that can be voted on to remove the South 
East portion of El Camino Real out of the Specific Plan and revert it to the previous zoning. 

• Steve Elliott, representing Stanford, stated that due to comments they have heard, they 
are making changes to the plan and are willing to discuss them at the April 16 Council 
meeting. 

• Adina Levin supported removing this parcel out of the El Camino/Downtown Specific Plan 
but not opening the entire Plan.  

• Perla Ni urged the Council to put the Stndford Plan on the agenda for April 16 for the 
Council to consider removing the parcel out of the Plan and a moratorium on medical 
offices. 

• Stefan Petry supports having the parcel taken out of the Plan and returned to the prior 
zoning.  

PAGE 91

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_104/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199852/E1%2B-%2BMaster%2BFee%2BSchedule__199852.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199847/F1%2B-%2BStanford%2BProperty__199847.pdf�


April 2, 2013 Minutes – Page 4 

  

• Cherie Zaslowsky presented a PowerPoint showing the reasons this item should be 
placed on the April 16 agenda.  (PowerPoint) 
 

ACTION:  Motion and second (Cline/Keith) to place a review of 500 El Camino Real/Stanford 
Project on the April 16, 2013 City Council meeting agenda for discussion passes 3-0-2 (Mueller 
recused; Carlton absent. 
 
NOTE: Vice Mayor Mueller returned to the meeting at 9:41 p.m. 
F2. Discuss and provide direction on City operating and budget principles for the 2013-14 

budget process (Staff report #13-053) 
Staff presentation by Alex McIntyre, City Manager 
 
ACTION:  Motion and second (Cline/Mueller) to approve the City Operating Principles adding a 
twelfth principle “Eye towards long-term stability of the fiscal plan”, the Budget Development 
Principles, use of one time revenues and temporarily setting aside $300,000 for the police 
substation passes 4-0-1 (Absent: Carlton). 
 
F3. Present information regarding employee compensation and receipt of public comment 

relating to upcoming contract negotiations with all units (Staff report #13-049) 
There were no public comments on the item. 
 
F4. Adopt a resolution appropriating $500,000 from the Bedwell-Bayfront Park Landfill Fund, 

waiving the public bidding requirement, and authorizing the City Manager to award and 
execute contracts for the Gas Flare at Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill and authorizing a 
total budget of $500,000 (Staff report #13-055) 

Staff presentation by Fernando Bravo, Engineering Services Manager (PowerPoint) 
 
Public Comment 
• Allan Bedwell, Friends of Bedwell Bayfront Park, support the staff recommendation and 

stated that the Friends appreciate staff reaching out to them on this item.  He encouraged 
that the City look towards finding a way to generate revenue from the site. 

 
ACTION:  Motion and second (Keith/Cline) to approve Resolution No. 6137 appropriating 
$500,000 from the Bedwell-Bayfront Park Landfill Fund, waiving the public bidding requirement, 
and authorizing the City Manager to award and execute contracts for the Gas Flare at Bedwell 
Bayfront Park Landfill and authorizing a total budget of $500,000 passes 4-0-1 (Absent: 
Carlton). 
 
F5. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 

such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item  
There were no legislative items discussed. 
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
There was no City Manager report given. 
 
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION  
There were no written communications. 
 
I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
There were no informational items. 
 

PAGE 92

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/11/file_attachments/203425/F1%2B-%2BZaslowsky%2BPP__203425.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199836/F2%2B-%2BBudget%2BPrinciples__199836.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199848/F3%2B-%2BLabor%2BNegotiations__199848.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/03/28/file_attachments/199851/F4%2B-%2BBedwell%2BBayfront__199851.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/04/11/file_attachments/203446/F4%2BGas%2BFlare%2Bpresentation__203446.pdf�


April 2, 2013 Minutes – Page 5 

  

J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 
Mayor Ohtaki stated he is interested in getting more information on a Sister City relationship and 
will be obtaining more information.   
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2  
There were no public comments made. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:42 p.m. 
 

 

Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Minutes accepted at the Council meeting of  
 
 
 

PAGE 93



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 94



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-059 
 

 Agenda Item #: E-1 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider a 

Resolution Approving a Conditional Development 
Permit Amendment for the Property Located at 
401 Pierce Road 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing and concur with the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission to approve the following actions 
associated with proposed modifications to the existing non-profit recreational and 
educational facility at 401 Pierce Road in the R-3-X (Apartment, Conditional 
Development) zoning district: 
 

1. Make California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Findings that the project 
is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the 
current CEQA Guidelines. 
 

2. Adopt a Resolution Approving the Conditional Development Permit 
Amendment for the addition of 747 square feet of gross floor area to an existing 
private recreation facility and to increase the maximum FAR to 45 percent, 
subject to the requirements of the Conditional Development Permit. 

 
The full recommended findings, actions, and conditions for approval are included as 
Attachment A. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The Boys and Girls Club of the Peninsula (“the Club”) is a non-profit organization that 
seeks to motivate all students to succeed academically. The organization focuses on 
education and career development, character and leadership development, health and 
life skills, the arts, and sports and recreation.  
 
The subject site contains three individual parcels. Two parcels are owned by the City 
and one parcel is owned by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), 
which is part of the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way. The City has a lease agreement with the 
Club. The Club originally received use permit and architectural control approval to 
occupy the site at 401 Pierce Road in April 1960, and received a variety of modification 

PAGE 95



Staff Report #: 13-059  

approvals by the Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Adjustment in 1979 and 
1980. In June 1999, the Boys and Girls Club received City Council approval to 
comprehensively remodel and expand the existing facility, including the rezoning of the 
entire property from P-F (Public Facilities) and R-3 (Apartment) to R-3-X (Apartment, 
Conditional Development), a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to allow privately-operated 
recreational facilities in residential districts, and a Conditional Development Permit 
(CDP) for the development of the privately-operated recreational facility. In addition, a 
Negative Declaration was prepared for the project.  
 
The Menlo Park facility currently operates Monday through Friday from the end of the 
school day until 8:00 P.M. The organization has seen significant growth over the last six 
years, and the Menlo Park facility serves approximately 250 community members, with 
110 to 125 on site at any given time. The Menlo Park facility also functions as the 
administrative headquarters for the larger organization. 
 
On March 18, 2013, the Planning Commission reviewed a request to amend the existing 
conditional development permit (CDP) to increase the maximum permitted floor area 
ratio (FAR) at the site to 45 percent, consistent with the maximum FAR of the R-3 
(Residential Apartment) zoning district. The project includes construction of an 
approximately 747 square foot addition on the second floor for additional office and 
tutoring space, for a current total proposed FAR of 36.2 percent. Any future additions 
would be subject to architectural control review by the Planning Commission. The use of 
the site would remain an academic and private recreation facility. The proposed 
expansion is intended to allow for more productive use of space, and is not intended to 
increase the number of staff on-site. 
 
At this meeting, the Commission voted 7-0 to recommend City Council approval of the 
following actions associated with the proposal:  
 

1. Adopt a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 
15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the current CEQA Guidelines. 
 

2. Adopt a Resolution approving the Conditional Development Permit amendment 
for the addition of 747 square feet of gross floor area to an existing private 
recreation facility and to increase the maximum FAR to 45 percent, subject to the 
requirements of the Conditional Development Permit. 

 
ANALYSIS 
 

A complete discussion of the project proposal, requested land use entitlements and 
other actions is included in the Planning Commission staff report dated March 18, 2013, 
which is included as Attachment G. The associated excerpt minutes are included as 
Attachment H. 
 

  

PAGE 96



Staff Report #: 13-059  

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The City Manager waived the fees associated with review of CDP amendments, in 
recognition of the benefits the project would provide to the community.  
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
CDPs allow adjustment of the requirements of the underlying zoning district in order to 
secure special benefits possible through comprehensive planning of large 
developments and to provide relief from the monotony of standard development, to 
permit the application of new and desirable development techniques, and to encourage 
more usable open space than would otherwise be provided with standard development.  
The proposed project would be consistent with the purposes of a CDP.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) 
of the current California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Draft Findings, Actions, and Conditions for Approval 
B. Draft Resolution for CDP   
C. Draft Conditional Development Permit    
D. Location Map 
E. Project Plans 
F. Project Description Letter   
G. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated March 18, 2013, without 

attachments 
H. Planning Commission Meeting Excerpt Minutes, dated March 18, 2013  
 

Report prepared by: 
 
Kyle Perata Arlinda Heineck 
Assistant Planner Community Development Director 
 
 
V:\STAFFRPT\CC\2013\041613 - 401 Pierce Road (Boys and Girls Club)\041613 - 401 Pierce Road.doc 
 

PAGE 97



ATTACHMENT A 

 
401 Pierce Road 

Draft Findings, Actions, and Conditions for Approval 
April 16, 2013 

 
 
 
1. Adopt a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 

15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the current CEQA Guidelines. 
 

2. Adopt a Resolution approving the Conditional Development Permit amendment for 
the addition of 747 square feet of gross floor area to an existing private recreation 
facility and to increase the maximum FAR to 45 percent, subject to the requirements 
of the Conditional Development Permit. (Attachment B) 

 
 

PAGE 98



ATTACHMENT B 

 
RESOLUTION NO.       

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK, CALIFORNIA APPROVING A CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
PERMIT AMENDMENT FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 401 
PIERCE ROAD 

 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Ordinance establishes that a Conditional Development Permit 
(“CDP”) may be issued to allow adjustment of requirements in order to secure special 
benefits possible through comprehensive planning of large development, and that such 
adjustment is intended to allow relief from the monotony of standard development; to 
permit the application of new and desirable development techniques; and to encourage 
more usable open space than would otherwise be provided with standard development; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received an application from Boys and Girls Club of the 
Peninsula (“Applicant”), to amend an existing CDP for an existing private recreation 
facility and educational facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed development will not be detrimental to the health, safety, 
morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of such proposed development, and will not be detrimental to property 
and improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and 
 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park on March 18, 2013 
whereat all persons interested therein might appear and be heard; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park having fully reviewed, 
considered and evaluated all the testimony and evidence submitted in this matter voted 
affirmatively to recommend to the City Council of the City of Menlo Park to amend the 
CDP; and 
 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the City Council of the City of Menlo Park on April 16, 2013 whereat all 
persons interested therein might appear and be heard. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
hereby approves the amendments to the Conditional Development Permit for the 
Property attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.   
 

PAGE 99



Resolution No.  

I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the sixteenth day of April, 2013 by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
 
  
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 
 

PAGE 100



 
ATTACHMENT C 

DRAFT – April 16, 2013 

 
CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 

 
401 Pierce Road (“Boys and Girls Club”) 

 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 

1.1 Applicant: James Harris for the Boys and Girls Club of the Peninsula 
 
1.2 Property Owner: City of Menlo Park and San Francisco Public Utilities 

Commission (SFPUC) 
 
1.3 Nature of Project: Conditional Development Permit amendment to increase the 

maximum permitted floor area ratio (FAR) at the site from 34.6 percent, per the 
previous approved development plans, to 45 percent, consistent with the 
maximum FAR of the R-3 (Residential Apartment) zoning district. The use of 
the site would remain a private recreation facility and education center. As part 
of the approval of the CDP amendment, the applicant is proposing to construct 
an approximately 747 square foot addition on the second floor, for a current 
total proposed FAR of 36.2 percent. Any future additions would be subject to 
architectural control review by the Planning Commission. 

 
1.4 Property Location (Project site): 401 Pierce Road 
 
1.5 Assessor's Parcel Numbers: The Project site currently contains two legal 

parcels owned by the City of Menlo Park (062-015-050 and 062-015-040) and 
the Hetch Hetchy Right-Of-Way (093-560-010).  

 
1.6 Area of Property: 48,391 square feet, inclusive of the Hetch Hetchy Right-Of-

Way 
 
1.7 Zoning: R-3 (X) (Apartment, Conditional Development) 
 
1.8 Previous entitlements: The amended Conditional Development Permit for 401 

Pierce Road supersedes the previously granted Conditional Development 
Permit for the site.   

 
2. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: 
 

2.1 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) shall not exceed 45 percent of the project site. The 
current development contains an FAR of 36.2 percent, which can be increased 
up to 45 percent through Architectural Control review by the conditions 
contained herein and in accordance with Section 6.1.3 (Major Modifications) of 
this document. 

 
2.2 Building coverage shall not exceed 30 percent of the project site. 

PAGE 101



 

 
2.3 Building setbacks shall be in accordance with the approved plans, which may 

be modified through Architectural Control review by the conditions contained 
herein and in accordance with Section 6.1.3 (Major Modifications) of this 
document. 

 
2.4 Building height shall not exceed 35 feet. 
 
2.5 The on-site circulation shall consist of a pick-up and drop-off zone on-site, and 

a minimum of two sparking spaces: one accessible space and one standard 
space. 

 
2.6 All rooftop equipment shall be fully screened and integrated into the design of 

the building.  Rooftop equipment shall comply with noise requirements of the 
Municipal Code. 

 
3. USES: 
 

3.1 The following uses are permitted at the site: 
 

3.1.1 Not-for-profit, privately operated, recreational facilities; 
 

3.1.2 Not-for-profit educational facilities; and 
 
3.1.3 Ancillary office uses, associated with the above mentioned uses. 

 
4 SIGNS: 
 

4.1 Signage shall comply with the Zoning Ordinance and the Planning Division’s 
Design Guidelines for Signs. 

 
5 RECORDATION: 

 
5.1 Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the 

applicant shall record the amended Conditional Development Permit with 
the County of San Mateo County. 
 

5.2 The Conditional Development Permit shall be in force on the effective date 
of the resolution approving the amendment. 

 
6 MODIFICATIONS: 

 
6.1 Modifications to the approved Project may be considered according to the 

following four tier review process: 
 
6.1.1 Substantially Consistent Modifications are made at the staff level. 

Substantially Consistent Modifications are changes to or 
modifications of the Project that are in substantial compliance with 

PAGE 102



 

and/or substantially consistent with the Project Plans and the Project 
approvals. Substantially Consistent Modifications are generally not 
visible to the public and do not affect permitted uses, density or 
intensity of use, restrictions and requirements relating to subsequent 
discretionary actions, monetary obligations, conditions or covenants 
limiting or restricting the use of the Property or similar material 
elements based on the determination that the proposed 
modification(s) is consistent with other building and design elements 
of the approved Conditional Development Permit, and will not have 
an adverse impact on the character and aesthetics of the Property. 
The determination as to whether a requested change is a 
Substantially Consistent modification will be made by the Community 
Development Director (in his/her reasonable discretion).   

 
6.1.2 Minor Modifications are made at the staff level, but the Planning 

Commission is provided information regarding these modifications. 
The determination as to whether a requested change is a Minor 
Modification is determined by the Community Development Director 
(in his/her reasonable discretion).  A Minor Modification is similar in 
nature to a Substantially Consistent Modification, except that Minor 
Modifications generally are visible to the public and result in minor 
exterior changes to the Project aesthetics. Any member of the 
Commission may request within seven (7) days of receipt of the 
informational notice that the item(s) be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission.  

 
6.1.3 Major Modifications are reviewed by the Planning Commission 

through Architectural Control. Major Modifications include, but are not 
limited to, significant changes to the exterior appearance of the 
buildings or appearance of the Property, and changes to the 
approved plans, including the addition of gross floor area and 
modifications to the building setbacks, provided that the proposed 
modification meets all other development regulations set forth in the 
Section 2 of this document. The determination as to whether a 
requested change is a Major Modification is determined by the 
Community Development Director (in his/her reasonable discretion). 
In reviewing Major Modifications, the Planning Commission shall 
evaluate the project using the Zoning Ordinance findings for 
architectural control applications. 

 
6.1.4 Conditional Development Permit Amendments are reviewed by the 

Planning Commission and the City Council.  Conditional 
Development Permit Amendments are required where the Applicant 
seeks revisions to the Project which involve (a) the relaxation of the 
development standards identified in Section 2 (with the exception of 
setbacks and floor area ratio, (b) material changes to the uses 
identified in Section 3, (c) exceedance of the maximum permissible 
signage area identified in Section 4, or (d) material modifications to 

PAGE 103



 

the conditions of approval identified in Sections 7, and 8. If the 
Applicant wishes to make a change that requires an amendment to 
this Conditional Development Permit, it shall apply, in writing, to the 
Planning Division for review and recommendation to the Planning 
Commission.  The Planning Commission shall then forward its 
recommendation to the City Council for amendment(s) to the 
Conditional Development Permit. 

 
7. PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS - GENERAL: 
 

7.1 Indemnity by Owner: The Owner shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
City, and its elective and appointive boards, commissions, officers, agents, 
contractors and employees (collectively, “City Indemnified Parties”) from any 
and all claims, causes of action, damages, costs or expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of or in connection with, or caused on 
account of, the development and occupancy of the Project, any Approval with 
respect thereto, or claims for injury or death to persons, or damage to 
property, as a result of the operations of Owner or its employees, agents, 
contractors, representatives or tenants with respect to the Project 
(collectively, “Claims”); provided, however, that Owner shall have no liability 
under this Section 7.1 for Claims arising from the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of any City Indemnified Party, or for Claims arising from, or 
alleged to arise from, the repair or maintenance by the City of any 
improvements that have been offered for dedication by Owner and accepted 
by the City. 
 

7.2 Indemnity By The Boys And Girls Club of the Peninsula: Boys and Girls Club, 
of the Peninsula shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City 
Indemnified Parties from any and all claims, causes of action, damages, costs 
or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of or in 
connection with, or caused on account of, the development and occupancy of 
the Project, any Approval with respect thereto, or claims for injury or death to 
persons, or damage to property, as a result of the operations of Boys And 
Girls Club or its employees, agents, contractors, representatives or landlords 
with respect to the Project (collectively, “Claims”); provided, however, that 
Boys and Girls Club shall have no liability under this Section 7.2 for Claims 
arising from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any City Indemnified 
Party, or for Claims arising from, or alleged to arise from, the repair or 
maintenance by the City of any improvements that have been offered for 
dedication by Owner and accepted by the City. As to Boys and Girls Club, the 
provisions of this Section 7.2 shall only apply to Claims arising from events 
which occurred in whole or in part before the later of Boys and Girls Club’s 
vacating of the Property and the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease.  
Should Boys and Girls Club no longer be the tenant, the terms of this Section 
7.2 shall apply to any new tenant for all Claims arising during the new tenant’s 
tenancy.  
 

PAGE 104



 

7.3 Project Plans: Development of the Project shall be substantially in 
conformance with the following plans submitted by Peterson Architects dated 
received by the Planning Division on March 11, 2013, consisting of nine plan 
sheets, recommended for approval to the City Council by the Planning 
Commission on March 18, 2013, and approved by the City Council on 
_________, 2013, except as modified by the conditions contained herein and 
in accordance with Section 6 (modifications) of this document. 

 
7.4 Requirements of External Agencies: Prior to building permit issuance, the 

applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo Park Fire Protection 
District, Recology, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly 
applicable to the project. 

 
7.5 Requirements of Internal Departments: Prior to building permit issuance, the 

applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Building Division, 
Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly applicable 
to the project. 

 
7.6 Demolition and Recycling: If warranted for a specific project proposal, prior to 

demolition permit and building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply 
with the requirements of Chapter 12.48 (Salvaging and Recycling of 
Construction and Demolition Debris) of the City of Menlo Park Municipal 
Code, and is subject to review and approval by the Engineering and Building 
Divisions. 

 
7.7 Construction Safety and Erosion Control Plan: If warranted for a specific 

project proposal, prior to demolition permit issuance, the applicant shall 
submit a plan for 1) construction safety fences around the periphery of the 
construction area, 2) dust control, 3) erosion and sedimentation control, 4) 
tree protection fencing, and 5) construction vehicle parking. The plans shall 
be subject to review and approval by the Building and Engineering Divisions 
prior to issuance of a demolition permit. The fences and erosion and 
sedimentation control measures shall be installed according to the approved 
plan prior to commencing demolition.  

 
7.8 Heritage Trees: If warranted for a specific project proposal, prior to demolition 

permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a heritage tree preservation plan, 
detailing the location of and methods for all tree protection measures, as 
described in the arborist report. The project arborist shall submit a letter 
confirming adequate installation of the tree protection measures. The project 
sponsor shall retain an arborist throughout the term of the project, and the 
project arborist shall submit periodic inspection reports to the Building 
Division. The heritage tree preservation plan shall be subject to review and 
approval by the Planning Division. 

 
7.9 Truck Route Plan: If warranted for a specific project proposal, prior to 

demolition permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a truck route plan and 
permit to be reviewed and approved by the Transportation Senior Engineer. 

PAGE 105



 

 
7.10 Utilities: If warranted for a specific project proposal, concurrent with the 

submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall submit 
a plan for any new utility installations or upgrades for review and approval by 
the Planning, Engineering, and Building Divisions. All utility equipment that is 
installed outside of a building and that cannot be placed underground shall be 
properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact locations, 
dimensions, and colors of all meters, transformers, junction boxes, relay 
boxes, and other equipment boxes. The utility plans shall also show backflow 
and Double Check Detector Assembly (DCDA) devices.  

 
7.11 Grading and Drainage Plan: If warranted for a specific project proposal, 

concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the 
applicant shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval 
by the Engineering Division. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be 
prepared based on the City’s Grading and Drainage Plan Guidelines and 
Checklist and the Project Applicant Checklist for the National Pollution 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Requirements. The erosion 
and sediment control plans shall be attached to the Grading and Drainage 
plans and may be similar to the erosion control plan provided for the 
demolition permit. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to 
or concurrent with the issuance of a building permit. 

 
7.12 Geotechnical Report: if warranted for a specific project proposal, concurrent 

with the submittal of a complete building permit application, a design-level 
geotechnical investigation report shall be submitted the Building Division for 
review and confirmation that the proposed development fully complies with 
the California Building Code. The report shall determine the project site’s 
surface geotechnical conditions and address potential seismic hazards. The 
report shall identify building techniques appropriate to minimize seismic 
damage. 

 
7.13 Stormwater: If warranted for a specific project proposal, prior to building 

permit issuance, the applicant shall enter into and record a “Stormwater 
Treatment Measures Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Agreement” with 
the City subject to review and approval by the Engineering Division. With the 
executed agreement, the property owner is responsible for the operation and 
maintenance of stormwater treatment measures for the project. The 
agreement shall run with the land and shall be recorded by the applicant with 
the San Mateo County Recorder’s Office. 

 
8.  PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS  

 
8.1 Hetch Hetchy Right-Of-Way: The CDP is valid so long as the lease between 

The Boys and Girls Club and the City and County of San Francisco Public 
Utilities Commission for use of the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way remains in 
effect. 
 

PAGE 106



 

8.2 FAR and the Hetch Hetchy Right-Of-Way: Prior to issuing a building permit, a 
deed restriction shall be recorded against the property, whereby should the 
lease between Boys and Girls Club of the Peninsula and the City and County 
of San Francisco Public Utilities Commission for use of the Hetch Hetchy 
right-of-way be terminated, the portion of the building that exceeds the 
maximum FAR for the site, without utilizing the area of the Hetch Hetchy right-
of-way, shall be demolished, subject to review and approval of the Planning 
Division and City Attorney. The demolition plan for the building would be 
subject to review and approval of the Planning Division. 

 
 

PAGE 107



15

PIE
RC

E

HIL
L

VA
N 

BU
RE

N
US

 H
IG

HW
AY

 10
1

MA
RK

ET

ALMANOR

SONOMA
IRIS

MODO
C

OAKLAND

HAMILTON

TEHAMA

RINGWOOD

DEL NORTE

TERMINAL

NEWBRIDGE

PL
UM

AS

MENLO OAKS

OA
KW

OO
D

CH
ILC

O

BIEBER

ALPINE
PR

IVA
TE

 S
T

DEL NORTE

US
 H

IG
HW

AY
 10

1

IVY

MENLO OAKS

26
0

30
0

180

5

410

7

401

2

110

31
0

53
1

231215223

207

243

209

239

247

235

219

205

307

36

251

203

12

11

323

303

311

1062
411

205

1064

24

16
20

28
32 255

319

308

331

11
45

1026

10
55

1001

1068

1020
1026

1053

370

171

233

220 381

181

230

371

360

241

1101

240

361

200

1074

1131

327

1025

11
35

150
1028

10
73

251

111

15
0

210
220

130

10721062
1068

115
5

11
10

115

209

511

1056

1005

10
65

1060

10
71

10
49

1066

1059

316

220

324

304

131

107

143

180

205

208

155151

123

212

340

170
328

135 312308

216

147
320

228

127

103

139

358

224

160

211

365

1108

509
172162

182

325
335

1421

1073 315

192

368

230

550

12
0

13
0

1100

130

259
1121

1040

1060

313

1044

116
5

1030

1003

1140

513

501

505

1053
11

20

402

1051

220
210

304
300
230

1085

1420

217

1055

519

11
25

311

400

141
1

1038

13
1

1049

1046

1032

1130
1120

1220

200

271

323

309

209

309
226224

180

234

170

190

236

281
261

305

305

321

160

1057

157

133
2

140
7

140
6

133
5

141
0

1067

1058

10
56

220

401

113
0

215

1225

10
50

1411

1150

1104

1037
10471033

1041
1043

105110391035

1049104510371031

1035

11
03

1025

1036

1101

1029

107
7

1111

1047

14
1

1135

1048 1115

1039

1029

1063

1023
1032

1034

1033

1027

1048

1119
1115

1110

1026

1055

1053
1051

1036

1051

1051

1036 1045

10561048
1052

1033

1046
1050

1043

1046

1036 1053

1037

1056

1058

1042

1060

1040

1052

1039

1047
1050

1046
1041

1047

1063

1059

1043

1037

1055

1056

1043

1034

1042

1054

1035

1040

10501044
10491041

1047

1048 10551049

1038

1044

1064

1059

1063

1045

10541040
1035

1039

1038
1029

1030

1062

1034 1041

1025

1120
1125

1126

1136
1130

14
11

1050

1077

1031

1149

11
15

1032
485

1063
1072

1131
1127
11231107

1043

1210

1112
1116

1045

1431

114
0

1031

1027

10
60

1052

1034

1007

1047

1032

1120

1045

1441

1101

1036

1046

1054
1056105010441040

10481038

10521042

1145

1431

1057

1028

1068

1009

1031

1451

1030
1033

1175

14411431

1451

1421

1035

1035

1037

1054

1043
1047

108
1

1471

1051
1055

1441

1059

1106

1107

1031

1058

1101

1145

1101

1421 1430

1037

1043

1461

1460

1304

1481

1307

1304

1307

1316

1311

1320

1312

1324

1308

1328

1105

1333

145
1

1041

1141

1312

1316
1320

1308

1470

1440

14601450

1046

1331

1315

1327

1319

1323
475

1021
263

1327

1343

1331

13391335

14
09

1311

1450

1430
1410

1412

1440

1430

1315

1420
1319

1137

10441016

11331010 1115

1023

515

421

1042

1440

1127

511

1040 541
11231036

1008

507

267

301

418

503

1027

1002

271

CITY OF MENLO PARK
LOCATION MAP

401 PIERCE ROAD

´

PROJECT
LOCATION

DRAWN: KTP CHECKED: KTP DATE: 4/16/13 SCALE: 1" = 300' SHEET: 1

ATTACHMENT D

PAGE 108

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



INDEX - CDP SET

Second Story Addition to:

Boys and Girls Club of the Peninsu.
401 Pierce Road, Menlo Park CA 94025 MAR 1 1 2013

S
ARCHITECTURAL

t4l 60WflOO M..SF

CONTRACTOR

CITY OF MENLO PARK
BUILDING

6EN~.’J~ GG~4TRA4~TGlR

1450 V.t*rO. SlId.
MSdiood G1t14. GS)fOndS 54065

PH~ (650) 414.1450
PAil (650) 414-1451

5TRL)C,TUR6.)~ E?4&~4~

2140544500404 AVS4JO. 11.XTO 130
P44.0 41~TQ. C44 54506
PlO 650.611.5450

~G~

45 AA41540~ SY THE STATE OP G44.WCSNIA
~10 GALIP0IMNLI GWI SU(004& 5Th006505
5010 GB.O~. C.).0.0.. GP~. 4 OLO

SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS

(Q 0F4~ 100*

*60 WA-60 WA.

— Slit-Fm WA.

0*11041St-fl 65CM

®
10* 15*1 *104

~ PASS

*505(0) ~Fm —

c1~
(ED- 0160611011*1St-Ill 65041

oo_c Slit-fl WA.

601 65(130. 6*1005 *041 ~mx

t FW0*1160

It. P00*01W LIt 10* 0* *0*111

041014*0*

.~ 00.1 ~an FI SF *10111

0114*0* 10*001 0*5154. 44004.

—4—— 001 15 1 0*6544*64. 5444. 05 *4*11104

P5CC 65000 00*04054
~l0C 654150* 4.11*10*

1~ ~0.454

10* 0*04444. C044 *00454*54

05 0~ 0404 401*0*0

10* 0’ P*O5CT

00*1 PUT 0* *011

OP 0 0540

CT 010

0/ 41*0

04 SlIt 5001100 COOL)

010 51*0*00015*)

4/ 0*0
5/0 500.1

4j~

PRO ECT SUMMARY ~‘

ITO 165(10)0*00.00*4.0650*054101040054146 410 *1001 044.11-404

0100411. Lorn 44*31*7 0 lIo
0011114 €1001 IUILTT-0.015t *111*04. 21.0SF ~ (T~

0440*04 ~Oflt P500104*0*100*415 — 43
*50_c 1100000541SF *115 015

~ I ~-
1105100. 60655 tOO *000141111. Z44l*P ‘C

*5004*10014004410.0011.001114—. 141Sf

10114444000 11.00 104* M.L.0 20.131St?

0000~~

5051006 04I.405410.*a* 04*1457
fl000*1R00Lo 101*14214 0421(4*?

0)045- 5-5-4

01110*001 d.a,c *1.005 - A-S
90.00*4.00 - S

S~P5 11*5 V44. 1010*1*0. POPO

VICINITYMAP
I —

~0

~11;ç~’00~”~ ~

,t ~ ~~J/j~ i’~i~~

ATTACHMENT E

PAGE 109

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



PAGE 110



80’

ioc~

TOTAL SITh AREA = 48,391 S.F.

0 40’

20’ 60’

SITE AREA PL4N

PAGE 111



ct~

Ct

_J -~

~CC— 0-.
00
cal

21
(DI

C)

:~
-t 0—
~0 0

12 1501

GPC ea

n
0

~~1

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN ‘I

hi
0 20’

10’

40’

10’
SECOND FLOOR PLANS

A2.01

PAGE 112



8~

0 ~r1

N
Is

—
Se

co
nd

S
to

ry
A

dd
iti

on
to

:

~
)

9
~

Bo
ys

an
d

G
irl

s
C

lu
E

)h
e

Pe
ni

sn
ul

a
6~

32
1.

1:
6:

—
40

1
Pi

er
ce

Ro
ad

,
M

en
lo

Pa
rk

C
A

94
02

5

PAGE 113



490 S~F.

/N
325 SF

1,557 SF.

EUSIThO FLOOR AREA I ~

NEW SECOND FLOORAREA

NUSTNG COVERED FORCHES&EAVES

- IOIS.F

Dc5Th~S RW#46 CO~A6t

AREA PLAN

PAGE 114



SECOND FLOOR

EXISITNG FLOOR PLANS
zr-I.

PAGE 115



[ I I I I

NORTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION

PAGE 116



F~z

MARKET PL

REFERENCE SHEET

PAGE 117



  

Administrative Office Expansion Project 

Our Vision & Community Need:  Boys & Girls Clubs of the Peninsula’s (BGCP) vision is for all youth of the Bay Area 
Peninsula to graduate from high school ready for college and/or career. Over the past seven years, in neighborhoods 
where fewer than half the youth graduate from high school, 82% of BGCP’s school site members have graduated from 
high school with a plan. BGCP is doubling high school graduation rates by implementing proven practices in strategic 
partnerships with schools, families, government, corporations, nonprofits and volunteers. While most youth 
development organizations focus on motivated youth and are selective about whom they serve, BGCP serves all youth. 
Principals specifically refer their most at-risk students to its programs. BGCP seeks to motivate all students to succeed 
academically.  
 
BGCP Core Programs:  BGCP offers a broad range of after-school and summer programs designed to drive positive 
outcomes for youth and reinforce necessary attitudes and life skills in five core program areas:  Education & Career 
Development; Character & Leadership Development; Health & Life Skills; The Arts; and Sports, Fitness & Recreation.  Our 
Menlo Park facility serves youth Monday through Friday from the time school ends until 8 pm; administrative staff begin 
arriving at 8 am.  The staff typically park on Pierce Road and Alpine Street. Youth arrive at the facility either by walking or 
on a school district-provided bus. 
 
BGCP’s core program areas are: 

 School support & college readiness:  homework support, tutoring, academic enrichment, & college knowledge  

 Job readiness and career exploration 

 Leadership & community service:  Torch Club & Keystone, teen staff , community service, & volunteering 

 Health & life skills:  sports & physical fitness, Smart Moves, healthy eating, & public speaking 

 Visual and media arts: computer clubhouse & tech lab 

 Parent education & engagement 
 
BGCP Growth:  BGCP has experienced tremendous growth over the last six years. We now run programs at 11 sites in 
East Palo Alto, eastern Menlo Park, and the North Fair Oaks section of Redwood City: three clubhouses, six elementary 
and middle school sites, and two high schools. At our Menlo Park location will generally have 110- 125 youth in the 
building at any given time.  Over the last few years, BGCP has also deepened our focus on high quality programming - 
resulting in over 1,700 active members visiting the Club last year. Active members are those we define as attending 50 
or more times a year.  

 Org-wide  
2006 

Org-wide 
2012 

Menlo Park 
2006 

Menlo Park  
2012 

Sites 4 11   

Active Members 587 1,700 157 244 

Average Daily Attendance 563 1,120 118 120 

High School Graduates 9 60 1 10 

Employees 
65 180 28 

38 
(18 FT, 20 PT) 

Volunteers (all PT)  557  94 

Budget $4.3 million $6.8 million   

 
Expansion Need: Our considerable growth over the last six years has brought an all new challenge to the forefront: to 
better serve our youth, and to meet the demands of an ever growing staff, we must expand our operational 
administrative space. We currently have 180 staff organizationally, 46 of whom are full-time. Since the build out of the 
McNeil family Clubhouse, BGCP has added a two person Volunteer Services team, a Director of School Partnerships, an 

ATTACHMENT F

PAGE 118

VMalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



Assistant Director of School Partnerships, a Human Resources Director, a Director of Program Strategy, a Director of 
Curriculum, a Data Analyst, an additional Development Director, and we are currently engaged in a search for a VP of 
Clubhouse and High School Programs.  
 
Solution:  BGCP has dedicated every possible dollar to programs, staff, and youth and we now find ourselves extremely 
tight on space, forcing us to face productivity issues. BGCP needs to invest in increased office space to allow for excellent 
programming by building out the roof top space attached to the 2nd floor office space constructed 13 years ago. This 
would provide four additional offices, which, along with our current office space, will be used for quiet tutoring space for 
our members after work hours.  We do not expect an increase in the number of staff as a result of this build out. 

PAGE 119



                     

 

 FOR THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2013 

AGENDA ITEM D3 
 

LOCATION: 
 
 
 
 
EXISTING USE: 

401 Pierce Road 
 
 
 
 
Non-Profit Recreational 
Facility and Education 
Center 

APPLICANT:  
 
 
 
 
OWNER: 
 

James Harris for 
the Boys and Girls 
Club of the 
Peninsula 
 
City of Menlo Park 
and San Francisco 
Public Utilities 
Commission 
(SFPUC) 

    
PROPOSED USE: 
 
 
 

Non-Profit Recreation 
Facility and Educational 
Center 
 

APPLICATION: Conditional 
Development 
Permit Amendment 
 

ZONING R-3-X (Residential Apartment, Conditional Development) 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to an existing conditional development 
permit (CDP) to increase the maximum permitted floor area ratio (FAR) at the site from 
35 percent, to 45 percent, consistent with the maximum FAR of the R-3 (Residential 
Apartment) zoning district. The use of the site would remain an academic and private 
recreation facility. At this time, the applicant is proposing to construct an approximately 
747 square foot addition on the second floor, for a current total proposed FAR of 36.2 
percent. Any potential future additions would be subject to architectural control review 
by the Planning Commission, and would be limited to 45 percent FAR, established 
through the CDP amendment. 
 
The property is currently regulated through a CDP, which places the property in the X 
(Conditional Development) district, which is a combining district that combines special 
regulations or conditions with one of the Zoning Ordinance’s established zoning 
districts. According to the Zoning Ordinance, a CDP “may be issued to allow adjustment 
of the requirements of the district in order to secure special benefits possible through 
comprehensive planning of such large development. Further, such adjustment is 
intended to allow relief from the monotony of standard development; to permit the 
application of new and desirable development techniques; and to encourage more 

   
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 STAFF REPORT 
 

ATTACHMENT G

PAGE 120



                     

usable open space than would otherwise be provided with standard development.” In 
order to apply for a CDP, the project site must be one acre in size.  
 
The draft resolution approving the CDP amendment and the draft CDP itself are 
included in Attachments D and E, respectively. For proposals requesting a CDP 
amendment, the Planning Commission acts in a recommending capacity to the City 
Council, which is the final decision making body. Therefore, the City Council will review 
the CDP amendment, and the proposed second floor addition. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Boys and Girls Club of the Peninsula (“the Club”) is a non-profit organization that 
seeks to motivate all students to succeed academically. The organization focuses on 
education and career development, character and leadership development, health and 
life skills, the arts, and sports and recreation. The Menlo Park facility operates Monday 
through Friday from the end of the school day until 8:00 P.M. The organization has 
seen significant growth over the last six years, and the Menlo Park facility serves 
approximately 250 community members, with 110 to 125 on site at any given time. The 
proposed expansion is intended to allow for more productive use of space, and is not 
intended to increase the number of staff on-site. The applicant’s project description 
letter (Attachment C) provides more background about the organization and the 
proposed expansion.   
 
The Club originally received use permit and architectural control approval to occupy the 
site in April 1960.  The Club returned to the Planning Commission in November 1979 to 
request a use permit and architectural control revision in order to expand the facility.  At 
that time, the entire property was zoned R-3, and the Planning Commission expressed 
concerns that the proposed improvements did not conform to the setback requirements 
of the R-3 zoning district.  The Club requested and received a variance through the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment to encroach into the front and rear setbacks required in the 
R-3 zoning district. Subsequently, in order to bring the property into conformance with 
the Zoning Ordinance, a portion of the property occupied by the building was rezoned in 
January 1980 from R-3 (Apartment) to P-F (Public Facilities), bringing that portion of the 
site into compliance with the Zoning Ordinance development standards, as the P-F 
district does not contain any setback requirements.  The remainder of the property 
maintained the R-3 zoning designation.   
 
In June 1999, the Boys and Girls Club received City Council approval to 
comprehensively remodel and expand the existing facility, including the rezoning of the 
entire property from P-F (Public Facilities) and R-3 (Apartment) to R-3-X (Apartment, 
Conditional Development), a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to allow privately-operated 
recreational facilities in residential districts, and a CDP for the development of the 
privately-operated recreational facility. In addition, a Negative Declaration was prepared 
for the project. At this time, the applicant is requesting an amendment to the existing 
CDP to modify the maximum FAR for the site, and to construct a second story addition, 

PAGE 121



                     

to add additional office and tutoring space. The number of employees is not anticipated 
to increase at this time.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Site Location 
 
The site contains two parcels owned by the City of Menlo Park and one parcel owned 
by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC). The combined site area is 
48,391 square feet. The property fronts onto four streets, taking up an entire block 
except for a small portion in the southwest corner of the block that is occupied by a 
small, two-story apartment complex.  The site is bounded by Market Place, Ringwood 
Avenue, Pierce Road, and Alpine Avenue. The shortest lot frontage onto these four 
streets is along Ringwood Avenue, making this property line the legal front of the 
property. 
 
The project site is zoned R-3-X (Apartment, Conditional Development) and is currently 
occupied by a private recreation facility. Using Highway 101 in a north to south 
orientation, parcels to the east of the project site, across Market Place, are located 
within the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) zoning district and contain single 
family residences. Parcels to the north of the project site are zoned R-3 (Apartment), R-
2 (Low Density Apartment) and R-3-X (Apartment, Conditional Development), and are 
occupied by multi-family developments, single family residences, and vacant land. U.S. 
Highway 101 is located directly to the west of the subject site. Parcels across the 
freeway, located in the Flood Triangle neighborhood, are zoned R-1-U (Single Family 
Urban Residential) and are occupied by single-family residences. Parcels to the south 
of the subject site along Pierce Road are located in the R-3 zoning district and are 
occupied by multi-family developments. Parcels located away from Pierce Road, to the 
south of the site, are generally zoned R-1-U, and are occupied by single-family 
residences. 
 
Proposed Project 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a CDP amendment to allow for the construction of 
approximately 747 square feet of office and private tutoring space on the second floor 
of the existing building, adjacent to the existing second floor office space. The existing 
building has 16,740 square feet of gross floor area, which represents 34.6 percent FAR. 
The current CDP limits the FAR of the site to 35 percent. The proposed project would 
result in an increase of 747 square feet of gross floor area to the site, and therefore, 
would result in an FAR of 36.2 percent. The proposed project necessitates an 
amendment to the existing CDP to exceed 35 percent FAR. As part of the amendment, 
the applicant is requesting that the CDP be amended to allow the FAR of the site to be 
limited to 45 percent, which is consistent with the maximum FAR allowed in the R-3 
zoning district. At this time the applicant is only proposing to construct 747 square feet 
of new gross floor area; however, the modified CDP would allow for the potential 
development of 4,288.95 additional square feet of gross floor area, for a total gross 

PAGE 122



                     

floor area of 21,775.95 square feet of gross floor area (or 45 percent FAR). Any future 
potential additions would require public review through the Architectural Control 
process. However, this would allow for a more streamlined process, as Architectural 
control can be acted on by just the Planning Commission, while CDP amendments 
require both Planning Commission and City Council Review. 
 
Except for the maximum allowed FAR, no development standards set forth in the CDP 
would be modified. The amended CDP is located in Attachment E. The proposed 
addition is located adjacent to the existing second floor and would be in line with the 
wall of the first floor along Alpine Avenue. The existing building contains stucco facades 
and aluminum windows. The proposed second floor expansion would contain stucco, 
painted to match the existing stucco, and would also contain aluminum storefront 
windows, which would match the existing windows at the site. The stucco would have 
subtle score lines to match the existing stucco treatment. Staff believes the design of 
the proposed addition would be complimentary to the existing building and the 
surrounding area.  
 
Site Layout 
 
As mentioned previously, the existing site is bound by Alpine Avenue, Market Place, 
Ringwood Avenue, and Pierce Road, with the exception of the parcel at the corner of 
Ringwood Avenue and Pierce Road, the existing site takes up the entire block. The 
existing building at the site is located at the corner of Alpine Avenue and Market Place, 
and is two stories. The Hetch Hetchy right-of-way runs through the site, and contains 
concrete and grass play areas. A pick-up and drop-off zone is located along Pierce 
Road. The proposed expansion would be located along the Alpine Avenue façade of 
the building, to the northeast of the existing second floor. The proposed expansion 
would align with the façade along Alpine Avenue.  
 
Parking and Circulation 
 
The applicant states that youth arrive at the facility either by walking or on a school 
district-provided bus. The existing facility has historically relied upon the on-street 
parking to satisfy its other parking needs. According to the applicant, staff has typically 
parked along Pierce Road or Alpine Avenue. The applicant does not anticipate an 
increase in staff as part of the proposed expansion, which is intended to allow for better 
space planning, not additional staff members. There is one accessible parking space, 
and one general parking space on-site, as well as a drop-off and pick-up zone along 
Pierce Road. While the Boys and Girls Club has seen an increase in staff 
organizationally, the number of employees at the Menlo Park facility has remained 
constant. The facility currently has 28 employees, 18 full time employees and 20 part 
time employees. Since this number is not intended to increase and the users of the 
facility do not typically drive to the site, staff does not anticipate any parking issues 
resulting from the proposed expansion.  
 
 

PAGE 123



                     

Correspondence 
 
Staff has not received any correspondence on this item.   
 
Conclusion   
 
The proposed project would allow for the expansion of the existing Boys and Girls Club 
facility, which would help enable the organization to better serve the community. The 
proposed expansion would be complementary to the existing building. The CDP 
amendment would allow for potential future expansions to be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission, which would allow the facility to make modifications in the future through a 
more streamlined process. The proposed development at this time is not intended to 
increase the number of employees at the site and therefore, should not result in any 
parking impacts to the neighborhood. The proposed expansion would allow the 
organization to continue to provide academic and recreational services to the 
immediate community.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) 
of the current California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend to the City Council: 
 
1. Adopt a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 

15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the current CEQA Guidelines. 
 
2. Adopt a Resolution approving the Conditional Development Permit amendment for 

the addition of 747 square feet of gross floor area to an existing private recreation 
facility and to increase the maximum FAR to 45 percent, subject to the requirements 
of the Conditional Development Permit. (Attachment D) 

 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kyle Perata 
Assistant Planner 
Report Author 

 
 
________________________________ 
Thomas Rogers 
Senior Planner 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION  
 
Public notification consisted of publishing a legal notice in the local newspaper and 
notification by mail of owners and occupants within 300 feet of the property. The 

PAGE 124



                     

Planning Commission action will be in the form of a recommendation to the City 
Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Location Map 
B. Project Plans 
C. Applicant Project Description 
D. Draft Resolution for CDP 
E. Draft Conditional Development Permit 
 
Note: Attached are reduced versions of maps and diagrams submitted by the applicant. 
The accuracy of the information in these drawings is the responsibility of the applicant, 
and verification of the accuracy by City Staff is not always possible. The original full-
scale maps, drawings and exhibits are available for public viewing at the Community 
Development Department. 
 
EXHIBITS TO BE PROVIDED AT MEETING 
 
None 
 
 
V:\STAFFRPT\PC\2013\031813 - 401 Pierce Road (CDP Amendment).doc 
 

PAGE 125



   

 
 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVED EXCERPT 

MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting 
March 18, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers 
701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA  94025 

 
CALL TO ORDER – 7:04 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL – Bressler, Eiref, Ferrick (Chair), Kadvany (Vice Chair), O’Malley, Onken, 
Riggs  
 
INTRODUCTION OF STAFF – Momoko Ishijima, Planner; Kyle Perata, Assistant 
Planner; Thomas Rogers, Senior Planner  
 
D1. Conditional Development Permit Amendment/James K. Harris for the Boys  

and Girls Club of the Peninsula/401 Pierce Road and 400 Market Place: 
Request for an amendment to an existing conditional development permit (CDP) to 
increase the maximum permitted floor area ratio (FAR) at the site from 35 percent 
to 45 percent, consistent with the maximum FAR of the R-3 (Residential Apartment) 
zoning district. The use of the site would remain a private recreation facility. At this 
time, the applicant is proposing to construct an approximately 747 square foot 
addition on the second floor, for a current total proposed FAR of 36.2 percent. Any 
potential future additions would be subject to architectural control review by the 
Planning Commission. The property is zoned R-3-X (Residential Apartment, 
Conditional Development).  

 
Staff Comment:  Planner Perata said staff had no additional comments. 
 
Public Comment:  Mr. James Harris, Director of Operations, Boys and Girls Club of the 
Peninsula, said they were seeking to construct a second floor addition to accommodate 
administrative office space.  He said they were not adding staff but relocating staff out of 
program space.   
 
Commissioner Riggs asked for clarification on whether staff was increased noting report 
statements that there were no increases and another that eight positions were added, 
and whether those additional employees were for the Menlo Park site.  Mr. Harris said 
they had increased the administrative team by nine prior to this application; he said the 
administrative staff serves all of the organizational facilities in the area.  Commissioner 
Riggs confirmed with Mr. Harris that the administrative staff at the Menlo Park site 
provides support to all of the other seven sites on the peninsula.   
 
Chair Ferrick closed the public hearing. 
 

ATTACHMENT H

PAGE 126



Menlo Park Planning Commission 
Approved Excerpt Minutes 
401 Pierce Road / 400 Market Place 
2 
 

Commission Comment:  Commissioner Onken noted that the project was supportable 
as it was simple in scale and would not negatively impact the neighborhood.   
 
Commissioner O’Malley moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
Conditional Development Permit Amendment as recommended in the staff report.  He 
said he was proud there was a Boys and Girls Club in the community, and praised their 
work.  Chair Ferrick seconded the motion noting the organization’s positive impact in the 
community.  
 
Commissioner Riggs said there seemed to be 38 staff members and one to two parking 
spaces.  He asked staff if this was working and whether there was enough daytime 
parking without causing conflicts.  Planner Perata said that staff has not been made 
aware of any parking conflicts.  He said the two onsite spaces were installed during the 
1999 demolition and rebuild, and staff was not aware of any issues with parking. 
 
Commissioner Bressler asked why the Conditional Development Permit had included a 
restriction on Floor Area Ratio (FAR) and if that percentage was above and beyond the 
zoning at the time it was approved.  Planner Perata said the FAR was based on the 
development plans that were submitted in 1999 for the rebuild of the facility which was 
about 35% FAR.  He said the applicant and staff were working together to allow for 
flexibility for future additions so they would not need to go back to the City Council.  He 
said 45% FAR has been the R-3 standard for a number of years and was so in 1999.  
He said CDPs tend to reference development plans and the site plans were not to the 
maximum 45% FAR but to 35% FAR. 
 
Commission Action: M/S O’Malley/Ferrick to recommend to the City Council: 
 

1. Adopt a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 
15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the current CEQA Guidelines.  

 
2. Adopt a Resolution approving the Conditional Development Permit 

amendment for the addition of 747 square feet of gross floor area to an 
existing private recreation facility and to increase the maximum FAR to 45 
percent, subject to the requirements of the Conditional Development Permit. 
(Attachment D)  

 
Motion carried 7-0:  
 
Staff Liaison:  Planner Rogers, Senior Planner 
 
Recording Secretary:  Brenda Bennett 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m. 
 
Approved by Planning Commission on April 8, 2013 

PAGE 127



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 128



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
  

 
Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-066 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-1 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Consideration of a Mixed-Use Development 

Proposal at 500 El Camino Real, Including 
Options for the Project Review Process 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council consider a proposal from Stanford University to 
redevelop the six properties currently addressed 300-550 El Camino Real, which is an 
8.43-acre site that is part of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan area. The 
existing buildings (current and former auto dealerships) and site features would be 
replaced with a new mixed-use development consisting of offices, housing, and retail. In 
particular, the Council should consider options for the project review process. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Between 2007 to 2012, the City conducted an extensive long-range planning project for 
the El Camino Real corridor and the Downtown area. The project commenced with a 
visioning process (Phase I: 2007-2008), which was structured to identify the core values 
and goals of the community and to define the structure of the second phase of planning. 
The culmination of the first phase of work was the City Council’s unanimous acceptance 
of the Vision Plan in July 2008. The Vision Plan established 12 overarching goals for the 
project area and served as the foundation for the subsequent Specific Plan. The 
Specific Plan process (Phase II: 2009-2012) was informed by review of an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and Fiscal Impact Analysis (FIA) and had as a key 
objective the establishment of a comprehensive, action-oriented set of rules, which 
would establish much greater clarity and specificity with regard to development. 
 
Both the Vision Plan and Specific Plan processes benefited from extensive community 
involvement, with excellent attendance at workshops and related events, as well as 
regular public review by a diverse Oversight and Outreach Committee. Each phase of 
the project was guided by a consulting firm with technical expertise in the required 
tasks. Both consultants were chosen through public selection processes, which included 
opportunities for the public to review the proposals and attend the consultant interviews. 
The consultant selection process also included clear disclosures of the firms’ relevant 
clients and projects.  
 

PAGE 129



Staff Report #: 13-066  

Both the Planning Commission and City Council elected to greatly expand their 
respective reviews of the Draft Specific Plan in Summer-Fall 2011, in order to provide 
clear direction on improvements and refinements to the Plan. Among other topics, Floor 
Area Ratio (FAR) thresholds, land use regulations, and building height and massing 
requirements were publicly discussed in detail during this and other phases. The impact 
of such standards and guidelines on the subject parcel were a particular area of focus 
throughout the Specific Plan process, and were subject to advanced visualization 
techniques (photomontages, massing models, and artistic renderings) in order to clearly 
relay what buildings could look like. At the Draft Specific Plan stage, the City Council 
(acting on the Planning Commission’s recommendation) specifically lowered the façade 
height limit by one full story and directed changes to the upper floor controls for the 
subject parcels’ zoning district, in order to proactively address potential concerns with 
bulk and visual character. After those and other changes were made, the Specific Plan 
process culminated with the City Council’s unanimous approval of the Plan and related 
actions in June 2012, following a unanimous recommendation for approval from the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Full information on the Vision and Specific Plan projects (including staff reports, meeting 
video, environmental and fiscal review documents, analysis memos, and workshop 
presentations and summaries) is available on the City’s web site at: 
http://www.menlopark.org/specificplan. The Specific Plan established requirements for 
ongoing review of the Plan itself by the Planning Commission and City Council. 
Specifically, an initial review is required one year after the Specific Plan’s adoption, and 
ongoing review is required at subsequent two-year intervals.  
 
The subject parcels (300-550 El Camino Real) were considered priority opportunity sites 
during both phases of the project. The subject applicant, Stanford University, 
participated throughout the entire planning process, in particular by serving as a City 
Council-designated representative on the Oversight and Outreach Committee. In public 
correspondence and through remarks at meetings, the applicant repeatedly supported 
the community planning process and stated an intent to pursue a comprehensive 
mixed-use redevelopment proposal in compliance with the adopted Plan. At various 
points, the applicant provided detail-type critiques of some draft regulations and Draft 
EIR elements, but did not submit correspondence or make in-meeting remarks that 
committed to a particular type of future development proposal. Neither the Planning 
Commission nor the City Council made findings that their Plan-related actions were 
based on any particular assumption of what the applicant ultimately might propose on 
this site. 
 
The applicant submitted an initial project application in November 2012, and the City 
concurrently launched a project page to provide information to the public about the 
proposal. The applicant subsequently submitted a revised application package in 
January 2013, and the Planning Commission conducted a study session on January 28, 
2013. No action took place at this meeting, but the study session provided an 
opportunity for the Planning Commission and the public to become more familiar with 
the proposal and to identify potential questions and concerns. Since this meeting, the 

PAGE 130

http://www.menlopark.org/specificplan�


Staff Report #: 13-066  

applicant has been reviewing this feedback and considering revisions to the proposal. 
City staff has also since elected to commence the City’s initial independent traffic study, 
which is a key component of the project’s environmental review (discussed in more 
detail in a following section). On April 2, 2013, the City Council requested that 
consideration of the project and its review process be added to the April 16 Council 
agenda. On April 10, 2013, the applicant submitted correspondence describing in-
progress revisions to the plan (Attachment A). 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
This section provides an overview of the proposal and analysis regarding options for the 
project review process. The project details are provided for context, in order to set the 
stage for the Council’s discussion of the project review process, which is the primary 
focus of this meeting. 
 
Proposal 
 
This description of the proposal utilizes the applicant’s January 2013 comprehensive 
plan set (an excerpt of which is included for reference as Attachment B) and discussion 
from the Planning Commission study session staff report, with notations where 
elements are in the process of being changed. Project data (square footages, etc.) are 
listed as reported by the applicant, and are subject to change as staff conducts a 
detailed review and verification. 
 
Site Location 
 
The subject property is located along El Camino Real in the southeastern portion of the 
corridor. The project parcels are part of the Specific Plan's "ECR SE" zoning district and 
"El Camino Real Mixed Use" land use designation. The site currently consists of the 
following six parcels, which total 8.43 acres in size: 
 

• 300 El Camino Real (APN: 071-440-060) 
• 350 El Camino Real (APN: 071-440-050) 
• 444 El Camino Real (APN: 071-440-030) 
• 550 El Camino Real (APN: 071-440-040) 
• Unaddressed (APN: 071-440-120) 
• Unaddressed (APN: 071-440-130) 

 
The overall project site adjoins El Camino Real at the front and the Caltrain rail corridor 
at the rear. The adjacent right-side parcel, 100 El Camino Real, is also owned by the 
applicant and in active use as a hotel (Stanford Park Hotel). The hotel property currently 
has an ingress-only access over the unaddressed (APN: 071-440-120) parcel at 
Cambridge Avenue, which is proposed to continue and be supplemented with new 
egress to this intersection, via the rear of the parcels. The adjacent left side property, 
700-800 El Camino Real, is under separate ownership and occupied by a one-story 
retail building and a four-story office building. A portion of this separate parcel, 

PAGE 131



Staff Report #: 13-066  

consisting of parking, extends behind part of the proposed 500 El Camino Real 
development. 
 
Aside from 300 El Camino Real, which is currently occupied by an auto dealership, 
none of the project sites are in active use.  
 
Project Description 
 
The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing structures and site improvements, 
and construct a new mixed-use development consisting of office (including a portion 
that could be used for either medical/dental or business/professional office), multi-family 
residential, and retail. The “El Camino Real Mixed Use” land use designation 
establishes these uses as permitted uses (note: offices are subject to total square 
footage limitations, as is discussed in more detail below). 
 
The proposal would adhere to the Specific Plan's "Base" level standards, which were 
established to achieve inherent public benefits, such as the redevelopment of 
underutilized properties, the creation of more vitality and activity, and the promotion of 
healthy living and sustainability. The precise FAR breakdown follows: 
 

Intensity - FAR (Floor Area Ratio) 

      Proposed 
Maximum 
Permitted 

Total 413,200-459,013 sf 1.125-1.25 1.25 
Office 199,500 sf 0.543 0.625 

Non-Medical 174,500 sf 0.475 - 
Medical/Non-Medical Flex 25,000 sf 0.068 0.417 

Retail 10,000 sf 0.027 - 
Housing (170 units) 203,700-249,513 sf 0.555-0.679 - 
Note: revised residential designs are still in progress, so the Housing and Total FARs are 
expressed as a range. 

 
As relayed above, the Specific Plan establishes a maximum FAR, with most uses (e.g., 
retail or residential) able to utilize all of a parcel’s respective total floor area. However, 
business and professional office can be no more than one-half of the applicable FAR, 
and medical and dental office is additionally limited to no more than one-third of the 
applicable FAR (note: medical and dental office counts toward the business and 
professional office limit; these uses are not additive). These are the only uses limited by 
overall parcel square footage in the Specific Plan, which notes that these restrictions 
were built into the Plan in order to be similar to preexisting office FAR limits and to 
proactively address potential community concerns with these uses (while 
acknowledging that these uses have their places as part of a complete city). 
 
Since the January 28 Planning Commission study session, the applicant has elected to 
lower the medical/non-medical office flex square footage from 96,150 square feet to 
25,000 square feet, and also to reduce the total office square footage from 229,500 
square feet to 199,500 square feet. These would be within the respective limits 

PAGE 132



Staff Report #: 13-066  

established by the Specific Plan. In particular, the portion that could be used as medical 
office would have a 0.068 FAR, which represents only 16 percent of the 0.417 FAR that 
may be permitted.  
 
At the north end, the development would consist of two five-story residential buildings 
straddling a Burgess Park Linkage/Open Space Plaza (discussed in more detail later). 
Both buildings would contain retail spaces, totaling 10,000 square feet, as required by 
the Specific Plan for this individual property (note: this requirement for a retail node was 
a change initiated by the City Council between the Draft and Final Specific Plan). Most 
of the required parking would be located underground, although a portion (serving the 
retail uses) would be at grade. The office uses would occupy the middle and south 
portions of the site. Similar to the residential buildings, most of the office parking would 
be located underground, although a portion would be provided at grade level, toward 
the rear and sides of the buildings. 
 
The Specific Plan does not mandate certain architectural styles, although the 
Architectural Control findings do permit consideration of compatibility with a proposal’s 
neighborhood character. At the January 28 study session, some members of the public 
and the Planning Commission expressed concern regarding the proposed architectural 
style, in particular of the office buildings. Since this meeting, the applicant has been 
comprehensively reviewing the design of these structures, and expects to propose 
significant revisions to address the comments and to better relate to other structures in 
the surrounding area. 
 
Height 
 
All buildings would comply with the maximum height limits as established in the Specific 
Plan, specifically the 38-foot façade height and 60-foot overall height limits. Roof-
mounted equipment and other projections may exceed the overall height limit, subject to 
screening and design integration requirements. As noted previously, building height was 
a key discussion topic during the Draft Specific Plan, and the City Council reduced the 
initial recommendation for the façade height, in order to limit the perception of building 
size. The subject proposal is consistent with these limits. 
 
Setbacks and Projections 
 
The Specific Plan establishes minimum and maximum setbacks, in order to help 
establish the character of a street and neighborhood. For the 500 El Camino Real 
proposal, the front setback is set at a minimum of 10 feet and a maximum of 20 feet, 
with the exact requirement linked to what is necessary in a particular location to provide 
an expanded sidewalk (discussed in more detail in a following section). The interior side 
setback is set at a minimum of 10 feet and a maximum of 25 feet, and is intended in 
part to help avoid large expanses of parking/driveways along the street façade. The 
Specific Plan provides allowances for intrusions of architectural elements (such as 
balconies, bay windows, and dormer windows) into the setback, in order to increase 
overall variety and articulation. 

PAGE 133



Staff Report #: 13-066  

Massing and Modulation 
 
The Specific Plan establishes detailed standards and guidelines with regard to building 
massing and modulation, in order to reduce the monolithic character of a building, 
ensure that all new buildings complement the existing scale and character of the area, 
ensure appropriate transitions to adjacent neighborhoods, and provide variety and 
visual interest. In particular, for the subject parcel: 
 

• Floors above the façade height limit are required to step back at a 45-degree 
building profile and to have a maximum length of 175 feet along a public right-of-
way or public open space; 

• Minor façade modulation is required at a minimum of every 50 feet; 
• Major façade modulation is required at a minimum of every 100 feet; 
• Building breaks are required at intervals aligning with the streets on the opposite 

side of El Camino Real, including a 120-foot publicly accessible break at Middle 
Avenue; and 

• The total of all building breaks shall not exceed 25 percent of the primary façade 
plane in a development. 

 
The Specific Plan provides full details on these and related requirements. For example, 
certain architectural features, such as balconies or bay windows, may extend into the 
45-degree building profile, provided they are integrated into the design of the building. 
As noted previously, the size of upper floors was discussed in some detail during the 
Draft Specific Plan review process, and the City Council required revisions to the 
standards that had been initially proposed, in order to limit the potential for overly large 
or imposing structures.  
 
Staff has worked with the applicant to preliminarily verify compliance with relevant 
massing and modulation standards, although additional details and review will be 
needed as the project review progresses. In terms of overall building mass, the subject 
proposal generally appears consistent with the detailed graphics that are part of the 
Specific Plan and which were derived from similar advanced visualization tools 
presented as part of the Draft Specific Plan (released in April 2010) and Community 
Workshops (which took place between April-September 2009). 
 
Open Space and Landscaping 
 
The proposal is required to provide open space of at least 30 percent of the building 
site. Residential uses also have unique requirements on a per-unit basis for private 
and/or common open spaces (including balconies and podium areas), which can count 
toward the overall 30 percent requirement. The applicant reported in January 2013 that 
the development would provide 33 percent open space, although this is subject to 
detailed verification. 
 
The proposal is also required to implement the Specific Plan’s requirements for 
significantly expanded sidewalks along El Camino Real. The Specific Plan requires a 

PAGE 134



Staff Report #: 13-066  

minimum 15-foot wide sidewalk, made up of a minimum 10-foot wide clear walking zone 
and a minimum five-foot wide furnishings/planting zone. Given the limited right-of-way 
on El Camino Real, a portion of the sidewalk will be provided on the subject property 
itself, which will require a Public Access Easement (PAE) or equivalent instrument. 
 
This project is also required to provide a 120-foot-wide, publicly accessible frontage 
break at Middle Avenue. This "Burgess Park Linkage/Open Space Plaza" would lead to 
a future grade-separated pedestrian/bicycle crossing of the Caltrain tracks. As is 
specified in the Specific Plan, the grade crossing itself (which would need to cross the 
separately-owned 700-800 El Camino Real property) is not the responsibility of this 
applicant, but the provision of a 120-foot-wide, publicly-accessible amenity that will 
ultimately lead to the crossing is a unique requirement of this applicant (while other 
properties in the Plan area will be required to expand sidewalks, no other parcel is 
obligated to provide a publicly-accessible area of this scale). As specified by the 
Specific Plan, the Burgess Park Linkage/Open Space Plaza is intended to create a 
welcoming, publicly-accessible open space that provides seating and shade and allows 
for small, informal gatherings, while also providing vehicular access to the 500 El 
Camino Real proposal. The 120-foot width was established in order to allow the break 
to serve this wide variety of purposes, including vehicle access. The design of the 
Burgess Park Linkage/Open Space Plaza has been a particular focus of the applicant 
since the January 28, 2013 study session, in order address comments from the public 
and Planning Commissioners regarding the desire for this to be a substantial public 
amenity.  
 
The project will also include Heritage Tree removal permits, although these have not yet 
been submitted. The preliminary tree inventory submitted by the applicant states that 21 
heritage trees with poor structure and/or health are proposed for removal. Conceptual 
landscape plans show proposed new plantings. In addition, 11 non-heritage trees are 
proposed for removal, five of which are street trees that would conflict with 
new/expanded driveways. The majority of the existing street trees are proposed to 
remain and be supplemented with new plantings.  
 
Sustainability 
 
The proposal is subject to the Specific Plan’s sustainability standards and guidelines, in 
particular a requirement to achieve LEED certification at a Silver level or higher (to be 
verified either directly through the U.S. Green Building Council, or through an 
independent auditor program if established by the City).  
 
  

PAGE 135



Staff Report #: 13-066  

Parking and Circulation 
 
The Specific Plan establishes minimum parking space requirements by use. The 
following table summarizes the rates that are applicable to the proposal: 
 

Multi-Family Dwelling (per unit) 
- Station Area Sphere of Influence (applicable to the 
portion of the property north of Middle Avenue) 
- Other (applicable to all other portions of the property) 

 
1.0 
 
1.85 

General Office (per 1,000 sf gfa) 3.8 
Medical Office (per 1,000 sf gfa) 4.5 
Retail (per 1,000 sf gfa) 4.0 
“gfa” = gross floor area 

 
The Specific Plan also provides an allowance for applicants to incorporate a shared 
parking study, which can result in reduced rates for certain developments. However, the 
applicant is not currently proposing any shared parking study. In addition, none of the 
parking is currently proposed to be provided in landscape reserve. The proposal is also 
required to implement new short- and long-term bicycle parking requirements, as 
described in Specific Plan Section F.5. 
 
The proposal would feature auto access at the existing signalized intersection of El 
Camino Real and Cambridge Avenue. At the signalized intersection of El Camino Real 
and Middle Avenue, the applicant is exploring the addition of a southbound left-turn lane 
(from El Camino Real, into the project site). Such a change would require Caltrans 
review and approval. The proposal would include right-in/right-out auto access 
approximately opposite Partridge Avenue and College Avenue, as well as a right-out 
driveway in the area between College and Middle Avenues. The applicant is also 
exploring whether a new unsignalized left-turn pocket from southbound El Camino Real 
into the project site at Partridge Avenue is feasible, although this analysis is at a 
preliminary stage (note: such a turn pocket would not allow left turns from northbound El 
Camino Real onto Partridge Avenue). 
 
Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing Agreement 
 
The City has Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing regulations that apply to commercial 
and ownership residential (e.g., condominium or single-family subdivision) projects. The 
BMR Ordinance and Guidelines establish three options for compliance, in the following 
priority: 
 

1) Provide on-site BMR units 
2) Provide off-site BMR units 
3) In-lieu fees 

 

PAGE 136



Staff Report #: 13-066  

The Housing Commission reviews and provides a recommendation on all BMR 
Agreements, with the final action subject to the Planning Commission or the City 
Council, in conjunction with the overall project actions.  
 
Like many municipalities in California, the City initially adopted BMR regulations that 
also applied to rental residential (e.g., apartment) projects. However, such inclusionary 
requirements for rental residential projects were rendered unenforceable in the state as 
a result of litigation (Palmer/Sixth Street Properties, L.P. v. City of Los Angeles (2009)).  
 
The 500 El Camino Real proposal contains commercial uses (office and retail) and 
market-rate rental residential units. As such, the BMR requirements apply to the net 
new commercial square footage. The preliminary staff calculation of the commercial 
uses’ BMR obligations results in an estimated requirement for 9.3 BMR units. When 
BMR requirements result in a fractional requirement, the BMR Guidelines establish a 
preference for providing a whole unit, so this preliminary estimate may be considered as 
representing a requirement for 10 units (note: the preliminary BMR calculation is subject 
to review and verification). 
 
The applicant has not submitted a draft BMR Agreement, although they have relayed an 
intent to comply with the BMR requirements for the commercial uses by providing on-
site BMR rental units as part of the overall residential use. As listed above, provision of 
on-site units is the preferred option for compliance. In addition, staff has relayed to the 
applicant that there may be an interest in a BMR Agreement that restricts the on-site 
units to lower income categories than the minimum requirements of the BMR 
Guidelines, in order to provide new units at needed levels. 
 
Relationship with Housing Element  
 
The City is currently in the process of updating the Housing Element of the General 
Plan. The Housing Element provides goals, polices, and implementation programs for 
the planning and development of housing throughout the City. The City has released a 
Final Draft Housing Element, the most recent version of which is dated April 4, 2012. 
Although the Final Draft Housing Element is subject to change, it states the following: 
 

Implement the Recently Adopted El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan. 
The recently adopted El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan contains 
opportunities for 680 units to be built. Based on current zoning, densities of over 
30 units per acre are permitted on the majority of the sites. While the sites could 
theoretically accommodate a maximum of 699 units at those densities, the EIR 
prepared for the plan examined 680 units as the maximum number. Appendix A, 
Table 2 lists the Assessor Parcel Numbers of opportunity sites. There is also the 
opportunity for a significant number of affordable units to be built. The Affordable 
Housing Overlay Zone (Housing Element Program H4.C) would be applicable to 
the entire Specific Plan area and would be a tool to achieve the public benefit 
densities for affordable housing. 

 

PAGE 137



Staff Report #: 13-066  

Although not included as part of this report, the referenced Appendix A, Table 2 
reviewed the portion of the project site currently addressed 550 El Camino Real, and 
projected that 65 units would be allowed on this portion (1.63 acres) of the overall site.  
 
The current proposal for the overall 500 El Camino Real site (8.43 acres) is for 170 
dwelling units. As noted in the previous section, the precise mix of affordable and 
market-rate units has not been fully determined, nor has the exact income category for 
the affordable units been selected. Depending on when the 500 El Camino Real 
proposal is deemed a complete application and/or receives its final actions, the specifics 
of the proposal will be incorporated into the current or future Housing Element cycles. At 
this point, Planning staff working on the Housing Element Update have reviewed the 
500 El Camino Real proposal and deemed it consistent with the assumptions made in 
the Draft Housing Element with regard to residential development in the overall Specific 
Plan area. At this point, staff does not believe approval of the proposal would result in 
any unanticipated negative Housing Element consequences (e.g., a need to rezone any 
additional sites beyond those already identified in the Final Draft Housing Element for 
proposed rezonings). 
 
Specific Plan Maximum Allowable Development 
 
Per Section G.3, the Specific Plan establishes the maximum allowable net new 
development as follows: 
 

• Residential uses: 680 units; and 
• Non-residential uses, including retail, office and hotel: 474,000 square feet. 

 
These totals are intended to reflect likely development over the Specific Plan’s intended 
20- to 30-year timeframe. As noted in the plan, development in excess of these 
thresholds will require amending the Specific Plan and conducting additional 
environmental review. 
 
The 500 El Camino Real proposal is currently projected to create 170 new dwelling 
units, on a site that currently has no residential uses. Although the square footage of the 
one currently occupied commercial use at 300 El Camino Real has not been fully 
verified, the 500 El Camino Real proposal is currently estimated to result in 
approximately 181,568 square feet of net new non-residential uses. As such, the 500 El 
Camino Real proposal would represent 25 percent of the residential uses and 38  
percent of the non-residential uses for the overall Specific Plan (note: per Section G.3, 
the non-residential development is not segmented by use). The current estimates 
represent changes from the January 2013 estimates that the proposal would represent 
between 20 and 23 percent of the residential uses and 45 percent of the non-residential 
uses. If the project is approved, these amounts would be deducted from the Maximum 
Allowable Development in the Plan area.  
 
The potential for large projects to account for a significant percentage of the Maximum 
Allowable Development thresholds was discussed by the City Council prior to adoption 

PAGE 138



Staff Report #: 13-066  

of the Specific Plan. As noted at the time by staff, because the thresholds are based on 
net new development, it should not be surprising if a project on a large and primarily 
vacant site would represent a large proportion of the Maximum Allowable Development. 
Conversely, more modest projects that propose redevelopment of sites with currently-
active uses will typically result in smaller net new development totals. As different types 
and scales of projects are reviewed, the expectation is that the overall Plan area 
redevelopment will average out in accordance with the projections. In addition, while 
there is always some uncertainty with projections, the assumptions made when the 
Specific Plan environmental review was commenced were based upon the best 
information available at the time about sites that were likely to be redeveloped under the 
Specific Plan. 
 
Project Review Process 
 
Current Process 
 
As established by the Specific Plan, the subject proposal requires Architectural Control 
review and action by the Planning Commission. Because Architectural Control is a 
discretionary action, the proposal must also be evaluated under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Some or all of the project may have been 
adequately considered by the program-level Environmental Impact Report (EIR) that 
was completed as part of the Specific Plan, although this is subject to detailed review 
(as described in more detail in the Environmental Review section of this report). The 
proposal also requires approval of Heritage Tree Removal Permits and a Below Market 
Rate (BMR) Housing Agreement. The Specific Plan and Zoning Ordinance establish the 
Planning Commission as the acting body for Architectural Control actions, with appeal 
rights to the City Council. Architectural Control requires the following five findings: 
 

(1) That the general appearance of the structures is in keeping with character of 
the neighborhood; 

(2) That the development will not be detrimental to the harmonious and orderly 
growth of the city;  

(3) That the development will not impair the desirability of investment or occupation 
in the neighborhood;  

(4) That the development provides adequate parking as required in all applicable 
city ordinances and has made adequate provisions for access to such parking.  

(5) That the development is consistent with any applicable Specific Plan. 
 
The first four findings have been part of the Zoning Ordinance for several decades, and 
the Planning Commission has numerous precedents for the scope of such actions. The 
fifth finding was added in conjunction with the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 
process, and provides the opportunity for full consideration of the extensive standards, 
guidelines, and other regulations contained within the Specific Plan. 
 
As noted previously, the Planning Commission held an initial study session on the 
proposal on January 28, 2013. Since this meeting, the applicant has been working on 

PAGE 139



Staff Report #: 13-066  

revisions to the proposal, in particular regarding the proportion of medical office, the 
architectural style of the overall office buildings, and the design of the Burgess Park 
Linkage/Open Space Plaza. Concurrently, staff has instigated the City’s independent 
traffic study, to inform the project’s environmental review. Prior to the City Council’s 
request for the April 16 meeting, the intent was to return to the Planning Commission for 
another study session to review the comprehensive project revisions and the initial 
results of the independent traffic study. Depending on the results of that session, the 
Planning Commission could request another study session on specific aspects of the 
proposal, or the project could potentially return for a meeting at which formal actions 
may be considered. As discussed above, Planning Commission actions on the proposal 
may be appealed to the City Council.  
 
Concurrent with the review of the 500 El Camino Real development proposal, the City 
Council has provided direction regarding the 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
Specifically, the Council has directed that the following projects commence in the 
upcoming 2013-2014 fiscal year: 
 

• El Camino Real/Ravenswood NB Right Turn Lane  
• El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration Alternatives Study 

 
Full details on these projects are included as part of the March 26, 2013 City Council 
staff report on the CIP. Among other objectives, initiation of these projects at the current 
time is intended to proactively address cumulative growth that the City expects to occur 
in the coming decades. The City may have additional opportunities to comprehensively 
address growth challenges and opportunities, independent of individual development 
project review.  
 
Staff believes the current process is functioning as intended by the Specific Plan, with 
the revisions being pursued by the applicant as evidence that key issues are being 
identified from public input and Planning Commission direction, and are being 
subsequently addressed. Although details on the environmental review (in particular, 
regarding traffic) have not been provided to date, they are being worked on and are 
required to be addressed in full prior to any potential project actions. As noted 
throughout this report, the proposal is required to meet an extensive set of regulations 
and guidelines contained in the Specific Plan, which were established through a 
transparent and community-oriented process that looked at opportunities and 
challenges on a comprehensive basis for El Camino Real and Downtown. The review 
process for this individual development proposal is generally proceeding carefully and 
deliberately, and is being informed by applicable analysis. 
 
Current Process with Enhancements 
 
The City Council could direct that the current project review process be retained, but 
with enhancements to address specific areas of interest. For example, the City Council 
could formally establish a Council subcommittee for the project, similar to what has 
been done for the Specific Plan itself and other initiatives like the High-Speed Rail 

PAGE 140



Staff Report #: 13-066  

project. If a subcommittee were formed, the Council should be clear about its objectives 
and relationship to the Planning Commission. Other potential supplements to the 
current process can be discussed at the April 16 meeting. 
 
Modest Modifications to the Specific Plan  
 
The Specific Plan was adopted by resolution of the City Council, following 
review/recommendation by the Planning Commission. Specific Plan amendments can 
be conducted following the same general procedure. General Plan and/or Zoning 
Ordinance amendments could be required at the same time, although the Specific Plan 
was generally designed to be a comprehensive set of regulations and guidelines. Any 
changes to the Specific Plan are required to be evaluated with regard to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). City Council Resolutions require a majority action of 
the Council Members present and eligible to vote. 
 
It is difficult for staff to provide specificity on review process requirements and timelines 
without a fuller understanding of what Specific Plan changes might be desired. 
However, staff generally believes that modest modifications to the Specific Plan could 
be conducted relatively efficiently. Specifically, modest changes would be those that are 
primarily text-based and which do not revise fundamental principles of the Plan. For 
example, a use that is currently designated as permitted could be changed to 
conditionally permitted, which would require Use Permit review and approval for any 
such uses. These types of changes would require some level of CEQA consideration, 
but if findings can be made that the actions are within the scope of the project covered 
by the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Program EIR, there should not be 
extensive CEQA noticing or circulation requirements.  
 
Staff believes that modest modifications could occur within an approximately three- to 
four-month timeframe. This process would include: 
 

• Refinement of the Council’s direction (wording, etc.) 
• Draft revisions of the Specific Plan document 
• Planning Commission meeting (with public notice) 
• City Council meeting (with public notice) 
• Final revisions of the Specific Plan document, including web posting and printing 

 
During this time, the subject proposal would remain under consideration, with the 
existing Specific Plan in effect. The City Council could implement a moratorium 
(discussed more below) to preclude any action on the proposal while the Plan changes 
were under review, although staff does not generally believe this would be necessary. 
The size and complexity of the proposal still require detailed analysis for technical 
requirements, which, in combination with the Planning Division’s current workload, 
would effectively limit the ability of the City to act on the proposal before modest Plan 
revisions could be acted upon. 
 
  

PAGE 141



Staff Report #: 13-066  

Major Modifications to the Specific Plan (Including Moratorium) 
 
Potential Specific Plan changes that would affect graphics and/or revisit core principles 
of the Plan would require a more extensive process. Examples of such major changes 
could include modifying height, FAR, or massing/modulation regulations, or removing 
the subject parcels from the Specific Plan entirely and applying some sort of 
replacement Zoning District. 
 
Again, it is difficult for staff to project how long such a process would take in the 
absence of guidance about what changes might ultimately be directed. However, most 
major Plan revision scenarios would likely require specialized services for graphics and 
potentially additional environmental review. Such a process could also include an 
iterative, public process that allows for more careful and comprehensive consideration 
of options, which would appear appropriate given that the Specific Plan itself was 
developed through a community-oriented, transparent process. In general, staff believes 
that major modifications to the Specific Plan could take between six and 12 months to 
complete, at a minimum.  
 
As noted previously, until any potential Specific Plan changes are completed, the 
current Specific Plan would remain in effect, and review of the 500 El Camino Real 
proposal would proceed. The estimated timeframe for major Plan modifications could 
allow the subject proposal to be reviewed and acted upon prior to the Plan changes 
being made. As a result, the Council could consider enacting a moratorium to preclude 
any action on the subject application. An interim moratorium ordinance must be passed 
by a four-fifths vote by the City Council in order to be adopted. If the City Council adopts 
a temporary moratorium, it would remain in effect for 45 days. The City Council must 
issue a report “describing the measures taken to alleviate the condition which led to the 
adoption” of the temporary moratorium 10 days prior to its expiration, pursuant to 
Government Code §65858(d). If the City Council needs more than 45 days to consider 
imposing limitations on the subject parcels, it may (by a four-fifths vote) extend the 
temporary moratorium up to an additional 22 months and 15 days, following notice and 
a public hearing. 
 
With regard to the possibility of removing the subject parcels from the Specific Plan, 
staff believes this scenario would likely be more complex than other major Plan 
modification options. The subject parcels have been a key focus of the entire Vision 
Plan and Specific Plan processes, and the concept of their redevelopment is embedded 
within all sections of the Specific Plan and the Program EIR. A complete removal of 
these parcels from the Plan would require significant technical revisions, and could even 
result in new environmental impacts depending on the attributes of the replacement 
zoning. For example, the C-4 (ECR) zoning that was preempted by the Specific Plan did 
not require any front setback, in contrast to the ECR SE zoning that requires a 10- to 
20-foot setback in order to provide a significantly expanded sidewalk. Similarly, without 
the Specific Plan, the requirements for the Burgess Park Linkage/Open Space Plaza 
and LEED Silver certification would no longer apply, which could result in new and 
unanticipated impacts.  

PAGE 142



Staff Report #: 13-066  

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Project Review 
 
The applicant is required to pay planning permit fees, based on the City’s Master Fee 
Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project. The 
applicant is also required to bear the cost of any associated environmental review, such 
as a detailed traffic analysis. For the environmental review, the applicant deposits 
money with the City, and the City pays the consultants and independently manages the 
consultant’s work. 
 
Impact Fees 
 
If approved, the project would be required to pay applicable standard fees, some of 
which are briefly summarized below. In general, such fees are based on net new 
development (e.g., the square footage and/or dwelling unit count of active existing uses 
may be deducted), although this may vary by fee. Such fees are also generally 
considered to account for the impacts of development (as opposed to representing extra 
benefits). 
 

• Transportation Impact Fee (TIF) 
The TIF is intended to defray the cost of certain transportation improvements 
required to serve development within the city of Menlo Park. Many (although not 
all) of the EIR transportation mitigations were already part of the TIF program, 
which means that payment of the TIF is considered as representing an individual 
development’s proportional responsibility for mitigating those particular impacts. 
Developers may receive a TIF credit in consideration for certain facilities or 
improvements constructed or paid for by the developer.  
 

• El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Preparation Fee 
The Specific Plan Preparation Fee was adopted in conjunction with the approval 
of the Plan and, as allowed by State law, the cost of preparation, adoption, and 
administration of the Specific Plan (including the preparation of the EIR). 
 

• Building Construction Street Impact Fee 
The Building Construction Street Impact Fee is intended to recover the cost of 
repairing damage to streets caused by construction-related vehicle traffic. 

 
In addition to City fees, school impact fees will need to be paid to the Menlo Park City 
School District and the Sequoia Union High School District. Greater specificity on 
projected fees will be provided as the project review proceeds. 
 
  

PAGE 143



Staff Report #: 13-066  

Property Tax Exemptions for Colleges and Welfare 
 
The California Revenue and Taxation Code provides for the following property tax 
exemptions (among others): 
 

• Section 203 (“College” exemption): Property, whether owned or leased, and used 
exclusively for educational purposes by a nonprofit educational institution of 
collegiate grade; 

• Section 214 (“Welfare” exemption): Property used exclusively for religious, 
charitable, scientific, or hospital purposes and owned and operated by religious, 
hospital, scientific, or charitable funds, foundations, limited liability companies, or 
corporations or educational institutions of collegiate grade. 

  
The exemptions are not automatic; a claim for the exemption must be filed with the 
Assessor's Office. These exemptions only apply to property taxes, not special 
assessments for local improvements. 
 
The applicant has indicated that the 500 El Camino Real proposal is intended at this 
time to be a revenue-producing property, not an educational or hospital/non-profit facility 
for the benefit of Stanford University. Staff believes that the proposal’s location (non-
contiguous to the main Stanford campus and on a high-visibility corridor) and design 
(with regard to amenities and aesthetics) are consistent with the Stanford-owned 2825-
2895 Sand Hill Road office-hotel complex, which is an investment project for the 
University that generates full property tax revenues for the City. 
 
The use of the subject property could possibly change in the future, although the City 
does not possess a mechanism (either under the Specific Plan or the earlier Zoning 
Ordinance regulations) to preempt the College and Welfare property tax exemptions 
that have been established by the State in recognition of these land uses’ attributes, nor 
is it immediately clear whether such a mechanism would be permitted under State law. 
In addition, the Council should note that the College exemption is not contingent on the 
educational institution owning the property in question, so any action on this particular 
development site would not preclude Stanford (or another institution, such as Menlo 
College) from leasing other office space in the City, using it for educational purposes, 
and subsequently applying for the College exemption. 
 
Modifications to the Specific Plan 
 
Staff believes the work required for minor modifications to the Specific Plan could likely 
be absorbed within the Community Development Department budget, although it would 
affect somewhat the Planning Division’s ability to address other projects and plans while 
the Plan revisions are proceeding. The work required for major modifications to the 
Specific Plan could require consideration of a budget adjustment for technical 
consultant services, as well as more formal direction from the Council on how the 
revisions relate to other obligations of the Planning Division. 
 

PAGE 144



Staff Report #: 13-066  

POLICY ISSUES 
 
The El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan provides the regulations and guidelines 
for the development of the 500 El Camino Real property. If the current review process 
remains in place, the Planning Commission (and City Council, if the Commission action 
is appealed) would review the applicable standards and guidelines established by the 
Specific Plan, and determine whether the required Architectural Control findings can be 
made for the subject proposal. 
 
If the City Council directs that an alternate review process should be pursued, a variety 
of policy implications would be required to be addressed, depending on the extent of the 
changes desired.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The Specific Plan process included detailed review of projected environmental impacts 
through a program Environmental Impact Report (EIR), as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). In compliance with CEQA requirements, the Draft 
EIR was released in April 2011, with a public comment period that closed in June 2011. 
The Final EIR, incorporating responses to Draft EIR comments, as well as text changes 
to parts of the Draft EIR itself, was released in April 2012, and certified along with the 
final Plan approvals in June 2012. 
 
The Specific Plan EIR identifies no impacts or less-than-significant impacts in the 
following categories: Aesthetic Resources; Geology and Soils; Hydrology and Water 
Quality; Land Use Planning and Policies; Population and Housing; and Public Services 
and Utilities. The EIR identifies potentially significant environmental effects that, with 
mitigation, would be less than significant in the following categories: Biological 
Resources; Cultural Resources; Hazards and Hazardous Materials. The EIR identifies 
potentially significant environmental effects that will remain significant and unavoidable 
in the following categories: Air Quality; Greenhouse Gases and Climate Change; Noise; 
and Transportation, Circulation and Parking. The Final EIR actions included adoption of 
a Statement of Overriding Considerations, which is a specific finding that the project 
includes substantial benefits that outweighs its significant, adverse environmental 
impact. 
 
As specified in the Specific Plan EIR and the CEQA Guidelines, program EIRs provide 
the initial framework for review of discrete projects. In particular, projects of the scale of 
the 500 El Camino Real proposal are required to be analyzed with regard to whether 
they would have impacts not examined in the program EIR. At this point, staff 
anticipates this will take the form of an expanded checklist that analyzes the project in 
relation to each environmental category in appropriate detail. In particular, traffic and 
transportation impacts are known to be a key area of interest, and will likely require 
detailed analysis and discussion. Depending on the results of such analysis, the City 
could determine that the program EIR adequately considered the project, or the City 
could determine that additional environmental review is required. This type of detailed 

PAGE 145



Staff Report #: 13-066  

project-specific CEQA review will be available in advance of consideration of final 
project actions. 
 
In addition, all projects must incorporate feasible mitigation measures included in the 
Specific Plan EIR’s Mitigation Monitoring Program. Examples of such mitigations 
include: 
 

• Payment of fees for transportation improvements (some of which are included in 
the City’s TIF program and some of which would require additional fees for the 
Specific Plan area); 

• Incorporation of Transportation Demand Management (TDM) programs; 
• Surveys and avoidance programs for special-status animal species; and 
• Training programs and protection measures for archaeological resources. 

 
As noted earlier, potential changes to the Specific Plan would require consideration 
under CEQA, although it is difficult to describe that process without understanding the 
nature and extent of the changes. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. In addition, the City sent an email update to 
subscribers to the project page for the proposal, which is available at the following 
address: http://www.menlopark.org/projects/comdev_300-550ecr.htm  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Correspondence: Stanford University, received April 10, 2013 
B. Project Plans (excerpt), received January 18, 2013  

 
 

Report prepared by: 
 
Thomas Rogers Arlinda Heineck 
Senior Planner Community Development Director 
 
 
 

PAGE 146

http://www.menlopark.org/projects/comdev_300-550ecr.htm�


ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 147



PAGE 148



ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 149

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



PAGE 150



PAGE 151



PAGE 152



PAGE 153



PAGE 154



1:  AERIAL PERSPECTIVE B0-1

KEY MAP (not to scale)

1

KEY MAP (not to scale)( )

PROPERTY LINE

JANUARY 18, 2013

EL CAMINO REAL

PAGE 155



2:  STREETSCAPE B0-2

KEY MAP (not to scale)

1/2

JANUARY 18, 2013

EL CAMINO REAL

EL CAMINO REAL

BUILDING A

BUILDING A

BUILDING B

BUILDING B

PUBLIC PLAZA

1:  PUBLIC PLAZA

PAGE 156



N

B0-3
JANUARY 18, 2013

PAGE 157



B0-8

+
/- 

38
’-0

”
+

/- 
38

’-0
”

45

45

SECTION BB:  BUILDING A

SECTION CC:  BUILDING B

+
/- 

15
’-0

”
+

/- 
10

’-4
”

+
/- 

10
’-4

”
+

/- 
10

’-4
”

+
/- 

10
’-4

”

+
/- 

60
’-0

”
+

/- 
2’-

10
”

KEY MAP (not to scale)

B

B C

C

+
/- 

13
’-0

”
+

/- 
15

’-0
”

+
/- 

10
’-4

”
+

/- 
10

’-4
”

+
/- 

10
’-4

”
+

/- 
10

’-4
”

+
/- 

60
’-0

”
+

/- 
2’-

10
”

MIN. 10’
CLEAR WALKING 
ZONE

MIN. 10’
CLEAR WALKING 
ZONE

GARAGE

PARKING RETAIL

COMMONS

UNITS

UNITS

UNITS

UNITS

UNITS

UNITS

OFFICE GARAGE BY OTHERS

JANUARY 18, 2013

PAGE 158



BUILDING A - STREETSCAPEBUILDING A - STREETSCAPE B1-3B1 3

KEY MAP (not to scale)

2

1

JANUARY 18, 2013

2:  PERSPECTIVE

1:  PERSPECTIVE - PLAZA SIDE

PAGE 159



1:  BUILDING A - TERRACE B1-4B1 4

KEY MAP (not to scale)

1

KEY MA

JANUARY 18, 2013

PAGE 160



BUILDING A - STREETSCAPEBUILDING A - STREETSCAPE

KEY MAP (not to scale)

1

2

B2-3
JANUARY 18, 2013

2:  PERSPECTIVE - OFFICE SIDE

1:  PERSPECTIVE - PLAZA SIDE

PAGE 161



1:  PERSPECTIVE B3-1

KEY MAP (not to scale)

1

JANUARY 18, 2013

PAGE 162



1:  AERIAL PERSPECTIVE - BUILDING B ENTRY B3-4

KEY MAP (not to scale)

1

JANUARY 18, 2013

PAGE 163



PAGE 164



 

PUBLIC WORKS  DEPARTMENT 
  

 
 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-065 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-2 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Adopt a Resolution taking the following actions: 

1. Appropriating an additional $715,000 to the 
Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project 
from the General Fund CIP Fund Balance; 2. 
Authorizing the City Manager to award a contract 
to the lowest responsible bidder for the Santa 
Cruz Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project 
authorizing a total budget of $1,060,000 for 
construction, contingencies, material testing, and 
construction administration; and 3. Awarding 
Contracts up to $250,000 for the purchase and 
installation of the downtown benches and solid 
waste and recycling bins 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt a resolution taking the following actions:  
 

1. Appropriating an additional $715,000 to the Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation 
Replacement Project from the General Fund CIP Fund Balance;  
 
2. Authorizing the City Manager to award a contract to the lowest responsible 
bidder for the Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project authorizing a 
total budget of $1,060,000 for construction, contingencies, material testing, and 
construction administration; and 
 
3. Awarding contracts up to $250,000 for the purchase and installation of the 
downtown benches and solid waste and recycling bins. 

  
BACKGROUND 
 
The existing plantings and irrigation system were installed on Santa Cruz Avenue 
between University Drive and El Camino Real as part of improvements made in the 
1970’s. The aging irrigation system has breaks in part, due to tree roots, resulting in 
staff hand watering a portion of the landscaping. 
 

PAGE 165



Staff Report #: 13-065  

There are two downtown improvement projects in the Capital Improvement Program. 
The Downtown Landscaping Improvement Project to provide a pilot landscaping plan for 
downtown ($25,000) and the Downtown Irrigation Project to replace the existing 
irrigation system ($320,000).  
 
For the Downtown Irrigation Project, staff hired Callander Associates, a landscape 
architecture firm, to design the irrigation system and the landscaping (Attachment A). 
The proposed irrigation system consists of two irrigation lines that will run down either 
side of Santa Cruz Avenue and provide laterals to each landscaping island along the 
sidewalk. The existing irrigation system in the median island will remain. The plans for 
the irrigation system require boring under the existing brick paver sidewalks and existing 
concrete improvements. 
 
Staff has been working with the Chamber of Commerce and downtown businesses on a 
general landscaping plan for downtown. The original planting pallet included input from 
Sunset Magazine. Callander Associates developed the planting plan based upon the 
original planting pallet.  Staff presented the plans to the businesses and they supported 
the landscaping plans and the irrigation system replacement project. Due to the new 
irrigation installation which would require tearing up the existing landscaping, staff has 
expanded the planting to include all the sidewalk islands on Santa Cruz Avenue. The 
plants will be similar throughout the downtown area, but with different varieties of color. 
The construction plans and plant pallet are in the City Council office for review. 
 
In August 2012, five contractors requested plans and specifications for the project. The 
bid opening for the Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project was on 
September 11, 2012, and only one bid was received from Suarez and Muñoz 
Construction Inc., in the amount of $723,000. 
 
Staff contacted Suarez and Muñoz Construction, Inc. and they stated that their price 
was higher than normal due to the type of work and the location in the downtown area 
and the City’s requirement that the work be performed at night.  Staff also contacted the 
other landscaping contractors and one stated they did not bid due to the requirement 
that the work be performed at night, the other two prospective bidders stated they were 
too busy to take on additional jobs. 
 
On October 9, 2012, the City Council rejected the bid received by Suarez & Muñoz 
Construction, Inc.  After rejecting the bid, staff contacted contractors and requested 
input on ways to reduce the budget.  The contractors stated that the cost would be 
higher than a regular landscape irrigation project due to the following factors: work 
location in the busy downtown area, the boring of irrigation laterals into the landscaped 
islands and hand work will be needed to install the irrigation line in the concrete island 
areas. 
 
Staff met with Callander Associates to discuss options on how to revise the plans in 
order to reduce the price.  The revised plans allow the contractor to work during the day 
with restrictions of work to one block at a time and only one side of the street. The 

PAGE 166



Staff Report #: 13-065  

Chamber of Commerce contacted all businesses via email seeking their input into 
changing the construction work schedule from night to day. No comments were 
received on the proposed changes.  Staff decided to move forward with a second bid 
opening in April 2013 with the changes in the schedule from night to day and reducing 
the depth of the irrigation system.  
  
ANALYSIS 
 
Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project Bids 
 
On April 9, 2013, bids were submitted and opened for the Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation  
Replacement Project. There were a total of four bids submitted. The lowest bid was 
$336,723 from Del Conte’s Landscaping and the three remaining bids were in the 
$650,000 range.  Attachment C provides the bid summary. Staff has not had sufficient 
time to check references for the lowest bidder and is therefore requesting the City 
Council to authorize the City Manager to award the contract to the lowest responsible 
bidder based upon staff’s review of references. Staff is requesting authorization to 
award the contract up to the third lowest bidder to be able to begin the work as soon as 
possible. The next City Council meeting after the April 16th meeting is in two weeks 
which would further delay the construction and potentially move the construction close 
to the Connoisseurs Market event in July. Staff anticipates that the project would be 
completed prior to the Connoisseurs Market event. The construction will not be 
completed when the block party occurs in June, but the site will be cleaned up for the 
block party. 
 
Benches and Solid Waste Receptacles  
 
One of the City Council adopted goals for 2013 is to beautify the downtown area. The 
Downtown Irrigation project includes landscaping all the sidewalk islands on Santa Cruz 
Avenue from El Camino Real to University Drive. Staff proposed new street furniture for 
benches and solid waste and recycling bins to downtown business as part of the 
beautification process. Attachment A provides photos of the recommended benches 
and solid waste bins.  
 
As part of the beautification in the downtown area, new benches and solid waste and 
recycling bins were installed at Fremont Park last year. Due to the cost, staff informed 
the businesses that the implementation of the benches and solid waste and recycling 
bins would be phased in over the next 10 years. To complete the purchasing and 
installation of benches and solid waste and recycling bins, the cost is approximately 
$234,000. A budget will need to be appropriated to purchase the street furniture and 
award a contract for installation. Staff is requesting authorization from the City Council 
to allow the City Manager to award contracts up to $250,000 for the purchase and 
installation of the benches and solid waste and recycling bins, so the purchase and 
installation can be done in the next five months.  
 
  

PAGE 167



Staff Report #: 13-065  

Additional Annual Flowers 
 
Staff has estimated a cost for planting annuals four to five times a year as part of 
Downtown Beautification. The annuals would be located at the end of the five (5) 
median islands on Santa Cruz Avenue and in approximately twenty of the existing 
planters along Santa Cruz Avenue and in front of the Fremont Park sign.  Staff has 
estimated the annual cost to be $20,000, which includes materials and labor to maintain 
these areas. Staff is waiting until next summer before recommending this part of 
downtown beautification in order to gather input from the businesses on the new 
irrigation system, allow time for plant establishment and let the plants be in full bloom 
which would occur in the summer.    
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Proposed Budget      
Design $   45,000 
Santa Cruz Irrigation Construction $ 650,000  
Testing and Construction Administration $   40,000 
Contingencies $   75,000 
Benches, Solid Waste and Recycling Bins $ 250,000 
Total $1,060,000 
 
Original Budget  
Downtown Landscaping Improvement Project $   25,000 
Downtown Irrigation Project  $ 320,000 
Total $345,000 
 
Additional Funds Needed $715,000 
 
The additional funds needed vary based upon whether the award goes to either of the 
three lowest bidders based upon staffs’ review of references. If the City Council 
approves the Resolution, the additional funds to complete the above will come from the 
General Fund CIP fund balance which has approximately $5.8 million.  
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The recommendation represents improvements to the Downtown area consistent with 
the City Council 2013 stated goals. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class I of the current State of California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
  

PAGE 168



Staff Report #: 13-065  

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Conceptual Perspective 
B. Resolution 
C. Bid Summary  
 

Report prepared by: 
Ruben Niño 
Assistant Director of Public Works 

PAGE 169



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 170



S a n t a  C r u z  A v e n u e

B R E E Z E W A Y  C O N C E P T U A L  P E R S P E C T I V E

M e n l o  P a r k ,  C a l i f o r n i a

E x i s t i n g  C o n d i t i o n s

P r o p o s e d  I m p r o v e m e n t s

January 18, 201211055 Breezeway - Concept Plan (2012 01-12).indd

Callander Associates

© copyrighted 2012

Carex tumul icola

Lir iope ‘Si lver Dragon’

Lir iope muscari

Hemerocal l is  ‘Stel la de Oro’

Lir iope ‘Si lver Dragon’ Salvia microphyl la ‘Hot Lips’

Pyrus cal leryana ‘Aristocrat’

Geranium ‘Rozanne’

Phormium ‘Maori  Maiden’

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 171

nsmariano
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 172



ATTACHMENT B 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK APPROPRIATING AN ADDITIONAL $715,000 TO THE SANTA 
CRUZ AVENUE IRRIGATION REPLACEMENT PROJECT FROM THE 
GENERAL FUND CIP FUND BALANCE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO THE LOWEST 
RESPONSIBLE BIDDER FOR THE SANTA CRUZ AVENUE 
IRRIGATION REPLACEMENT PROJECT AUTHORIZING A TOTAL 
BUDGET OF $1,060,000 FOR CONSTRUCTION, CONTINGENCIES, 
MATERIAL TESTING, AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION; AND 
AWARDING CONTRACTS UP TO $250,000 FOR THE PURCHASE AND 
INSTALLATION OF THE DOWNTOWN BENCHES AND SOLID WASTE 
AND RECYCLING BINS 
 

WHEREAS, plans and specifications, dated March 15, 2013 were prepared and 
approved by the Assistant Public Works Director for the Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation 
Replacement Project described above and on file in the office of the Assistant Public 
Works Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Maintenance Division did issue a call for sealed proposals to be 
received at the Corporation Yard, at 333 Burgess Drive, Menlo Park, CA, until the hour 
of 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 9, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Maintenance Division did cause the notice inviting sealed proposals to 
be published two (2) times in The Daily News, a newspaper printed and published in 
this County; and  
 
WHEREAS, said bids were then publicly opened and declared in the Maintenance 
Division office. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
that the City Council does hereby authorize the appropriation of an additional $715,000 
to the Santa Cruz Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said City Council does hereby and authorize the City 
Manager to award a contract to the lowest responsible bidder for the Santa Cruz 
Avenue Irrigation Replacement Project authorizing a total budget of $1,060,000 for 
construction, contingencies, material testing, and construction administration; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said Council does hereby authorize the City 
Manager to award a contract to the lowest responsible bidder up to $250,000 for the 
purchase and installation of the downtown benches and solid waste and recycling bins. 
 

PAGE 173



Resolution No.  

I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that 
the above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a 
meeting by said Council on the sixteenth day of April, 2013, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this sixteenth day of April, 2013. 

Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk  

PAGE 174



 
 

BID SUMMARY 
 

SANTA CRUZ IRRIGATION REPLACEMENT 
 

BID OPENING DATE: Tuesday, April 9, 2013 
 

APPARENT LOW BIDDER 
 

 CONTRACTOR BID 
AMOUNT 

 

1.  Del Conte’s Landscaping $336,723 
 

2.  Bay Construction Co. $624,600 
 

3.  Cleary Brothers Landscape $650,000 
 

4.  Suarez & Munoz Construction, Inc. $698,000 
 

 

* Pending City Council Approval  

ATTACHMENT C

PAGE 175



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 176



 

PUBLIC WORKS  DEPARTMENT 
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: April 16, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-060 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-3 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Consider Appointing A Councilmember To Serve 

On The Blue Ribbon Task Force As Proposed By 
the City of Redwood City Regarding South Bay 
Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Board 
Governance  

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council consider appointing an elected official to serve 
on the Blue Ribbon Task Force as proposed by the City of Redwood City regarding 
South Bay Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Board governance.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA – also known as Rethink 
Waste) was formed in 1982 as a joint powers authority (JPA) with twelve member 
agencies in San Mateo County. Member agencies include Atherton, Belmont, 
Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San 
Carlos, San Mateo, County of San Mateo, and West Bay Sanitary District. SBWMA’s 
primary goal is to provide cost-effective waste reduction, recycling, and solid waste 
programs to member agencies through franchised services.  SBWMA also owns the 
Shoreway Environmental Center in San Carlos which is operated by South Bay 
Recycling on behalf of the Authority. The FY 2012 budget for SBWMA included 
revenues of over $40 million, and operating expenses of $36.5 million.  
 
The SBWMA is led by an executive director who reports to a Board of Directors 
comprised of staff members of member agencies. The staff members serving on the 
Board include City Managers, Assistant City Managers, Public Works Directors, Finance 
Directors, Public Works Superintendents, Recycling Program Managers, and their 
alternates in positions of similar authority. 
 
In a letter dated December 7, 2012, the Mayor of Redwood City requested participation 
of an elected official from each SBWMA member agency to form a task force to bring 
member agencies’ elected officials into a discussion about SBWMA and to explore 
various aspects of the organization (Attachment A). These would include such topics as 
governance structure, work force, compensation, and the overall purpose or mission of 
the agency. The Blue Ribbon Task Force would explore and analyze alternative models 

PAGE 177



Staff Report #: 13-060  

and/or organizational efficiencies, and determine if they would then like to make 
recommendations on any of these topics to SBMWA member agencies. The first 
meeting of the task force was held on March 20, 2013 with representatives of Belmont, 
Burlingame, Foster City, Hillsborough, San Carlos, City of San Mateo, County of San 
Mateo, West Bay Sanitary District, and the City of Redwood City in attendance. The 
next meeting is scheduled for April 24, 2013.  A specific meeting schedule has not been 
set. 
 
On March 6, 2013, Council Member Keith submitted a formal request asking that the 
City Council consider an invitation from Redwood City (Attachment A) to participate on 
the Blue Ribbon Task Force.  The item was placed on the March 26, 2013 Consent 
Calendar and was unanimously approved to be added to the April 16 Council meeting 
for discussion.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 

The SBWMA has held briefings and outreach meetings for elected officials from time to 
time to discuss new services, the SBWMA budget, and other topics of interest. Menlo 
Park’s elected officials have participated in these meetings. There has not been a 
significant discussion on the governance structure of the SBWMA for a long period of 
time and it could provide for an informative discussion. 
 
Staff requests direction on whether Council would like to participate on the task force 
and if so, which councilmember would serve as the representative. 
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

Participation by the City of Menlo Park on the proposed Task Force may have a direct 
impact on City Resources. It is anticipated that additional staff time to review and 
research matters raised by the task force will be needed, which could impact time spent 
on other priorities within the City. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
There are no policy issues as a result of the commitment of a Council liaison to the Task 
Force, but the work of the Task Force itself is anticipated to propose policy issues for 
City Council consideration such as a change in the governance structure of the 
SBWMA.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed action does not require environmental review. 
  

PAGE 178



Staff Report #: 13-060  

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Letter from Redwood City Mayor 

Report prepared by: 
Charles Taylor 
Public Works Director 
 

PAGE 179



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 180



PAGE 181



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 182



PAGE 183

AGENDA ITEM F-4



PAGE 184



PAGE 185



PAGE 186



Kelly Fergusson 
168 Oak Court 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 
 
 
 
 
April 11, 2013 
 
 
Mayor and City Council 
701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 
 
Mayor Ohtaki and Honorable Councilmembers, 
 
It has been a pleasure to serve on the board of the Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency 
(BAWSCA).  My current term expires at the end of June. 
 
I would be happy to continue to serve the City in this capacity by serving another term if this is your 
pleasure.   
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
 
 
Kelly Fergusson   
(via email) 
 
 
 
 
copied: Margaret Roberts, City Clerk 

PAGE 187



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 188


	Agenda
	A1 - Menlowe Ballet Proclamation
	B1 - Commission Appointments
	Att A - Policy Excerpt

	D1 - 1035 O'Brien Drive
	Att A - Resolution
	Att B - Public Access easement agreement

	D2 - Louis Street
	Att A - Resolution

	D3 - Grand Jury
	Att A - Grand Jury Response
	Att B - Multilingual GJ Report.pdf

	D4 - SFCJPA Outreach Plan
	Att A - SFJPA Summary of Projects and Status Update
	Att B - Bridge General Plan
	Att C - Draft Public Outreach Plan

	D5 - Facebook
	Att A - FB Resolution

	D6 - Minutes
	March 26, 2013
	April 2, 2013

	E1 - 401 Pierce Road
	ATT A - Actions
	ATT B - Resolution
	ATT C - Draft CDP
	ATT D - Location Map
	ATT E - Project Plans
	ATT F - Project Description
	ATT G - Planning Commission Staff Report
	ATT H - Approved Excerpt Minutes

	F1 - 500 El Camino Real
	ATT A - Stanford letter
	ATT B - January 2013 plans excerpt

	F2 - Santa Cruz Irrigation SR
	Att A - Conceptual Perspective
	Att B - Resolution
	Att C - Bid Summary

	F3 – SBWMA Blue Ribbon TF
	Att A - Letter from Redwood City Mayor

	F4 - BAWSCA Letter 
	Letter Of Interest - Fergusson





